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Chairman Statement
&

Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or “Chinlink”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) continue to expand and strengthen its position
as an alternative finance service provider to optimize
supply chain cash flow and efficiency of small and
medium-sized enterprises (the “SMEs”) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) and Hong
Kong. Whilst at the same time the Group also employs
logistics services as a tool to control the collateral
inventory under financing. Targeting the same customer
base, we aim to integrate financing services with logistics
and business operations under an established supply chain
ecosystem to provide customized supply chain finance
solutions to our customers, and to build an effective
system to manage the credit risks.

Shortage of funding remains a critical issue for SMEs in
China, and the recent economic slowdown only magnifies
the problem. Last year, China’s economy further slid,
together with contracting production and reclining trading
activities for both domestic and exports, the Chinese
government had set the growth target rate for 2016 at
a lower range of 6.5% to 7.0%. Despite the authority’s
efforts to ease credit by multiple interest rate cuts,
banks in China nevertheless became even more stringent
in approving loans to SMEs, driving them to seek out
alternative ways to finance their working capital and
capital expenditures for purchase of plant, machinery and
equipment. This gives the Group ample opportunity to
develop the SME alternative finance business.

The continuous adverse macro-economy posts challenges
to the Group's financing business. However, given with
our established logistics and IT monitoring systems, we are
able to avert much of the risks by tapping into the clients’
business activities to detect any early warning signals, and
to ensure that the physical goods in control is compliance
with the collateral ratio. Furthermore, we focus mainly
on the products and industries which we know, such as
building and construction supplies and home furnishings,
etc. In addition, some of our clients are the tenants of
the trade and logistics centres collaborated with us, some
of them are also using our warehouse and transportation
services. We have the first-hand information of their
operation and know the well-being of their businesses.
So far, we have not experienced any deterioration in our
credit portfolio.
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Chairman Stat‘ement
L &

Whilst remaining risks cautious in providing financings to
the SMEs, we strike to seek growth through diversified
service platforms. One of the major offerings during last
year is supply chain finance which is an extension from
international trading. It aims to assist our clients in their
normal procurement activities from overseas and local
supplies. Our logistics service providers handle the custom
clearance, warehousing and transportation of the goods
under our title control. Goods will be eventually released
upon payment of the financing sum or the assignment
of trade receivables acceptable for us. This kind of
transaction based financing will be a strong growth driver
in our revenue portfolio since we obtained a captive
customer base in our collaborated trade and logistics
centres in Xi'an City and the soon to open Chinlinke
Worldport Integrated Logistics Park located in Hantai
District, Hanzhong City of Shaanxi Province, the PRC (the
“ChinlinkeWorldport”) . Furthermore, we had set up
an office in Shenzhen City to co-ordinate the trading and
supply chain finance businesses with Shenzhen supply
chain companies. As the world’s largest supply and
distribution hub for electronics and 3C products, Shenzhen
City has a huge demand for supply chain finance and
logistics services.

Another major area of growth will be our finance leasing
business. China’s financial leasing market is the world’s
second largest, behind only the United States’ in terms of
new business volume, and has been rapidly developing.
However, the penetration rate is still relatively low in China
as compared with developed countries, especially in inland
cities like Xi'an City whose overall economic development
is generally behind the coastal areas. As China’s major
strategy under the “13th Five-Year Plan” is focused on
industrial upgrade and step up exports of products and
technology, strong demand for finance leasing is expected.
Together with improved regulations and government
support, especially from the Xi‘an City local authority, such
as concessionary profit tax, etc., we are well-prepared to
achieve a sizable leasing portfolio within the coming 12

months.
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Chairman Statement
N &

The Acquisition (as defined on page 11 of this annual
report) in relation to Daminggong Construction Materials
and Furniture Shopping Centre (Dongsanhuan Branch)*
(the "Commercial Complex”) proves to be highly
successful with a number of benefits. It provides us
with a stable income stream in the forms of rental and
management services fees and asset value enhancement.
At the same time, it also provides a large number of
captive customers for our finance business. The Group
expects the acquisition will continue to bring revenue
contribution and synergize with other businesses of the
Group.

Furthermore, the ChinlinkeWorldport is in satisfactory
progress, as the construction of Phase | is expected
to be completed and will commence operation in the
fourth quarter of 2016. We also entered into a letter
of intent with Hantai District People’s Government of
Hanzhong Municipality, Shaanxi Province, the PRC, to co-
develop the only Hanzhong base national Qinba Chinese
Herbal Medicine Trading Centre* on the site last year.
Compounded by the fact that the site will include the only
custom import bonded warehouse in Southern Shaanxi,
as well as the Daminggong (Hanzhong) Building and
Construction Materials Wholesale Centre*. The custom
import bonded warehouse will also come into operation
later in the year. With all these in place, Chinlinke
Worldport will become a regional trade and logistics
hub with comprehensive facilities equipped in the area.
It will also be a showcase for Chinlink’s unique business
proposition of integrating finance, logistics and business
operations under an enclosed ecosystem, closely linking
buyers and sellers all under our comprehensive financing
platform, with the ultimate goal of facilitating business,
cash flow and supply chain operations in our single

platform.

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman Stat‘ement
I e 4

Given with our clear strategic direction, the major
challenge in the coming years will be our ability to execute
as planned. It will be crucial whether we can recruit and
retain a professional and experienced team within the
Group's diversified and innovative business units. We had
done a good job in our finance lease company by building
up a professional team in the past months. Our supply
chain finance company also successfully teamed up a pool
of experts from the supply chain and electronics industries
and started to carry out business within a short period
of time. Yet the Group will continuously search those
experienced and talented individuals, who would share
with our mission, with passion and devotion, honesty
and integrity, to join us as a team and partner with us to
achieve business goal and share the rewards with them.
Last but not least, | would like to express my appreciation
for the continuous support from our shareholders, the
diligence and contribution from the management team
and co-workers throughout the years in different positions.
| look forward to continually working closely with every
one of you, leading Chinlink to become a trusted and

outstanding alternative finance service provider.

Li Weibin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Financial Highlights
Fo 25 4

TURNOVER BY OPERATING SEGMENTS
BERETMEADT 2ERE
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Financial Summary

S 5 A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
BE=A=1-AL%E —E-RE —T-1F —T-mF —E-zF —Z--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FEL T TR T
Continuing operations BELSEER
Revenue WA 201,297 252,393 151,731 161,365 173,158
Gross profit 7 51,331 55,790 41,040 26,052 54,143
Profit (loss) before taxation BRaEr (BR) 166,988 (76,158) (93,060) (22,690) 10,024
Income tax (charge) credit FiEth (A% E% (7.928) (4,031) 2,718 244 (1,939)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations ~ FELEEK ZEF (BR) 159,060 (80,189) (90,342) (22,446) 8,085
Discontinued operations RIECBEER
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations &1 & £ 25 7| (E1E) - - - - 9,747
Profit (loss) before non-controlling BEERERARR
interests (B8) 159,060 (80,189) (90,342) (22,446) 17,832
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,397) - - - 360
Profit (loss) attributable to ARREBAELERN
owners of the Company (F#8) 157,663 (80,189) (90,342) (22,446) 18,192
Dividends paid EHRE - - - - 346,361
(Restated)
Basic earning (loss) per share SREREF (BB) (E31)
From continuing operations REBELEER HK6.05 centsifl  HK(3.65) centsiEfl  HK(4.87) centsiBfll  HK(1.40) centsi 1l HKO.51 centsi&
From continuing and KEBERALEE
discontinued operations £5 HKG.05 centsi8fll  HK(3.65) centsiBll  HK(4.87) cents (Ll HK(1.40) centsi&fll  HK1.14 centsi& L
Diluted earning per share SREFRA
From continuing operations RERBLEEH HK6.04 centsiE 1l NATER NATEA NATER NATEF
From continuing and
discontinued operations HK6.04 centsiE 1l NATER NATER NATER NATER
At 31 March 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
R=ZB=+-H ZB-RF “T-n% “T-mE —3-Z% it Sk
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiER FEL Titn Ti#n FiEr
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,751,848 340,028 39,754 20,436 2,533
Current assets hBEE 401,366 571,948 667,811 164,817 106,808
Bank balances and cash BAEFERAE 48,975 67,145 228,439 55,696 31,339
Current liabilities hBaE 1,131,653 479,943 338,263 70,522 72,117
Net current (liabilities) assets hE(af)EEFE (730,287) 92,005 329,548 94,295 34,691
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 909,751 203,680 266,435 74,865 917
Net assets BERE 1,111,810 228,353 102,867 39,866 36,307
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B o B A A

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”), the
Company continued to strengthen its foothold in the
alternative finance business, with the aim to deliver a
comprehensive financing platform to optimize the supply
chain cash flow and efficiency for the SMEs in China and

Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group’s main finance services
included financing guarantee and supply chain finance,
a new diversified service stemming from the Group's
international trading business. The Group recorded a
decrease in revenue in financing guarantee mainly because
of the continuous slowdown of the China economy.
Banks in China have tightened their credit approval to the
SMEs and therefore the Group adopted a more cautious
approach in financing guarantee. However, the Group
attained a significant growth from international trading
contributed by supply chain finance business which is a
new addition to the Group’s financing platform, providing
short term financial assistance to SMEs in China and Hong
Kong for specific use in their normal course of business
for procurement of materials and finished goods. This
type of financing is largely dependent on the Group’s
logistics support to retain physical control on the goods
being financed. The Group is able to integrate both
finance and logistics services to achieve a synergy effect
under an enclosed supply chain ecosystem. The Group is
confident to expand supply chain finance in spite of the
current difficult economic climate in China since the Group
has such an unique risk management system, allowing
access to the clients’ business operations and supply chain
processes, and the transactions are all self-liquidating.
Moreover, the Group holds the inventory as the last resort

which further strengthens the Group’s security position.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A i B4 A

Originally, the Group aimed to launch the new finance
leasing business in the fourth quarter of the Year.
However, it took longer time to build up a professional
and experienced team. Hence the finance leasing business
is expected to commence in second half of 2016. With
the addition of finance leasing, the Group will be able
to provide a comprehensive and customized financing
solution to cater for different funding needs. The Group
has strong confidence in this new financing operation
because of the relatively low penetration rate in China,
especially in the north, comparing with the developed
countries and the national priority to develop finance
leasing by encouraging capital investment from the private
sector.

Another major achievement of the Group during the
Year is the acquisition of 100.0% of issued share capital
of E-Innovation Limited (“E-lnnovation”) and the sale
loan of a subsidiary of E-Innovation due to Sino Virtue
Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) at a total consideration
of approximately HK$830,846,000 (the "“Acquisition”),
E-Innovation indirectly held 73.375% equity interest
in both Xi‘an Tang Rong Real Estate Limited* (“Tang
Rong”), as well as Xi"an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao Furniture
and Fixture Limited* (“Ba Qiao”). With the Acquisition,
the Group obtained the use right of a plot of land
(58,698 square metres) (the “Land”) together with the
Commercial Complex (with the Land, collectively the
“Property”) located in the eastern part of Xi'an City, a
large building materials and home furnishing products
shopping centre caters for medium to high-end wholesale
and retail customers. This strategic Acquisition not only
strengthened the Group's asset base, but also broadened
the revenue mix in the forms of rental and management
service fees, as well as expanding the client pool for the

Group's finance and logistics services.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B I R A K T

Regarding the existing logistics services, it remains
as a key component in the Group's risk management
system in monitoring the physical flow of the goods and
inventory level, capturing trade and transaction data of
our customers. It would continue to serve as a strategic
support to the Group’s finance business and act as a
value-added service provider to the Group’s finance
services clients.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was HK$201.3 million,
representing a decrease of 20.2% from HK$252.4 million
of last year. The most significant revenue decline was
from interior decoration work business attributable to
the strategic repositioning of the Group by putting more
emphasis and resources on developing finance business
and in property investment. However, revenue gains
from international trading business, including supply
chain finance, and the property investment together
compensated the shrinking revenue from interior
decoration work business. International trading business
and property investment delivered an encouraging
performance, with revenue amounted to HK$113.4 million
(2015: HK$72.5 million) and HK$44.9 million (2015: Nil),
representing 56.3% and 22.3%, respectively of total
revenue as the top two revenue contributors during the
Year. Gross profit slightly decreased by 8.1% year-on-year
from HK$55.8 million to HK$51.3 million while gross profit
margin rose from 22.1% to 25.5% as property investment
income had higher gross profit margin. With a recognition
of a gain on bargain purchase of HK$310.0 million from
the Acquisition in August 2015 but partially net-off by
the increase in administrative expenses and finance costs
as a result of the Group's expansion and the Acquisition,
the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$157.7 million, compared to a loss of
HK$80.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Financing Guarantee Services

During the Year, the revenue of financing guarantee
services amounted to HK$20.2 million, representing a
decrease of 25.2% from HK$27.0 million of last year. The
drop was mainly attributable to the tightening of bank
credit line to the Group's prospective clients, mostly China
SMEs, and the adoption of a more conservative approach
by the Group, amid a decelerating domestic economy. This
conservative bank lending attitude largely restricted the
Group's financing guarantee business growth. Another
reason for the decline in revenue was the narrowing of
guarantee fee and consultancy fee charge rates as a result

of multiple interest rate cuts during the Year.

Nevertheless, the asset quality of the financing guarantee
business remains healthy with zero default rate since its
inception. Since Chinlink provides financing and logistics
services to the clients of trade and logistics centres,
offering "“inventory-as-collateral” service, giving the Group

better means to manage and contain the credit risk.

International Trading

Revenue of international trading business recorded
a 56.4% growth to HK$113.4 million during the
Year, comparing to HK$72.5 million of last year. The
improvement was primarily because of the expansion of
customer base and diversification to new trading service,

i.e. supply chain finance.
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In June 2015, the Group started the supply chain finance
business in Hong Kong and Xi‘an City to complement
with the existing international trading business. Supply
chain finance helps the SMEs to free up working capital
tie-up in less liquid assets like inventory and accounts
receivables. With the support of the Group's logistics
facilities, the Group can offer a package of supply chain
services including procurement financing, inventory and
receivable financing, custom clearance, warehousing
and inventory management, transportation and delivery.
The Group mainly focuses on procurement financing in
Xi‘an City and Hong Kong, targeted at distributors of
home electrical appliances and critical electronic parts
and components and memory used in digital electronic
products such as smartphones, tablets and storage devices.
Such combination of supply chain finance and logistics
is in high demand from the SMEs who has limited access
to traditional commercial bank credit in China, whilst the
Group’s logistics service can also improve their operational
efficiency. This kind of financing product can also hedge
against the decelerating domestic economy and rising
credit quality pressure because the Group can access
to the clients’ supply chain operations and first-hand
information on their business performance.

Logistics Services

Revenue of logistics services decreased from HK$7.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to HK$0.7
million for the Year, representing a 90.9% drop year-on-
year. The significant decrease in revenue was because of

the contract expiry of a major client at the end of last year.

The Group's logistics services included warehousing and
inventory management, logistics consultancy and other
logistics related value-added services. It will continue to
play a vital role in complementing the Group’s financing
business and development of the Group’s trade and
logistics centre.
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Interior Decoration Work

For the Year, the revenue of interior decoration work
amounted to HK$16.5 million, representing a decrease of
88.2% from last year. The decline in result was mainly due
to the decrease in number of new sizable projects during
the Year as it faces shrunken retail sector, in particular,
luxury products in both Hong Kong and Macau as well
as the decrease in number of transaction in second-hand
property market. As at 31 March 2016, there was very
limited number of projects on hand. As the performance
of the interior decoration work was discouraging, the
Group will explore various options including but not
limited to streamlining the operation to minimize the loss.

Property Investment
The Commercial Complex

During the Year, the revenue contributed from property
investment amounted to HK$44.9 million, which
comprised rental income and management services
income contributed by the Commercial Complex since the
Acquisition completed on 31 August 2015.

With its geographical excellence and the successful
operation in the past years, the occupancy rate of
the Commercial Complex with seven-storey and two
basement floors had been constantly around 90% with
approximately 600 tenants, generating a stable income
stream and strengthening the Group's financial position.
The 600 tenants are valuable resources for the cross-selling

of the Group's finance and logistics businesses.

ChinlinkeWorldport Integrated Logistics Park

The progress of ChinlinkeWorldport has been reassuring,
as Phase | is expected to be completed and in operation in
the fourth quarter of 2016.
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ChinlinkeWorldport represents the first, largest and most
important project in Baohe Logistics Park, which is located
in Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC, covering a
construction area of approximately 0.25 million square
metres. Sitting across 3 major logistics regions (Central,
Northwest and Southwest) while connecting to 3 major
economic zones (Jianghan, Chengdu-Chongging and
Guanzhong-Tianshui). ChinlinkeWorldport will become a
regional trade and logistics hub for the southwestern area
of Shaanxi Province and the nearby provinces and cities
in the near future. To maximize its locational benefits,
the site will equip with the only custom import bonded
warehouse in Southern Shaanxi and the Daminggong
(Hanzhong) Building and Construction Materials Wholesale
Centre. In October 2015, the Group also entered into a
letter of intent with Hantai District People’s Government
of Hanzhong Municipality, Shaanxi Province, China, to co-
develop the only Hanzhong base national Qinba Chinese
Herbal Medicine Trading Centre in ChinlinkeWorldport,
further demonstrating the site’s locational excellence and

future potentials.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profitability Analysis

Revenue was HK$201.3 million for the Year, representing
a decrease by 20.2% as compared with HK$252.4 million
of last year. The revenue comprised property investment
income of HK$44.9 million (2015: Nil), interior decoration
work income of HK$16.5 million (2015: HK$140.4 million),
sales of international trading of HK$113.4 million (2015:
HK$72.5 million), financing guarantee services fee of
HK$20.2 million (2015: HK$27.0 million), logistics services
fee of HK$0.7 million (2015: HK$7.7 million) and other
income of HK$5.6 million (2015: HK$4.9 million).
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Gross profit amounted to HK$51.3 million for the Year,
representing a decrease by 8.1% as compared with
HK$55.8 million of last year, mainly due to the decline in
interior decoration work business. Despite the decrease in
overall revenue and gross profit, the gross profit margin
increased by 3.4% to 25.5% for the Year from 22.1% of
last year, mainly due to the contribution from property

investment income which has higher gross profit margin.

Other income, gains and losses recorded a loss of HK$2.9
million (2015: a profit of HK$10.8 million) for the VYear,

mainly attributable to the exchange loss.

Gain on fair value change of investment properties
amounted to HK$16.6 million (2015: HK$8.8 million) for
the Year. It was mainly attributable to fair value change of
ChinlinkeWorldport and the Property.

Gain on bargain purchase in acquisition of a subsidiary
amounted to HK$310.0 million (2015: Nil) in relation to
the Acquisition.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$80.7 million for
the Year, representing an increase of HK$15.9 million as
compared with HK$64.8 million of last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the Group’s expansion and the
Acquisition.

Finance costs amounted to HK$119.2 million for the Year,
representing an increase of HK$38.2 million as compared
with HK$81.0 million of last year. The increase was mainly
due to the 12.0% coupon bonds issued during the Year,
as part of consideration for the Acquisition and increase in

bank and other borrowings.

Profit for the Year was HK$159.1 million (2015: a loss of
HK$80.2 million) and profit attributable to owners of the
Company during the Year was HK$157.7 million (2015: a
loss of HK$80.2 million).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits amounted to HK$284.2 million in
total (2015: HK$411.7 million), representing a decrease
of HK$127.5 million from that of 31 March 2015. The
decrease was mainly due to the repayment of 7.5%
Convertible Bonds (as defined below) when matured. They
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and Renminbi (“RMB").

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's loans from staff
amounted to HK$11.8 million (2015: Nil) which was
denominated in RMB and repayable within one year.

As at 31 March 2016, the bank and other borrowings of
the Group amounted to HK$379.7 million (2015: HK$9.4
million), representing an increase of HK$370.3 million
from that of 31 March 2015. The increase was mainly
due to the inclusion of bank borrowings of Ba Qiao after
the completion of the Acquisition. The bank and other
borrowings, of which HK$112.5 million, HK$176.3 million
and HK$90.9 million were repayable within one year, two
to five years and over five years respectively, were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.

On 29 June 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent on the best effort
basis in relation to placement of 7.5% coupon bonds
(the "7.5% Coupon Bonds”) with principal amount of
up to HK$200.0 million. The 7.5% Coupon Bonds are
unsecured, repayable on the day falling on the second
anniversary of the issue date and interest bearing at
7.5% per annum, details of which are set out in the
announcement made by the Company on 29 June 2015.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds of HK$200.0 million were
fully placed to not less than six independent placees
in two tranches, details of which are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 15 July 2015
and 31 August 2015. The net proceeds amounting
to approximately HK$184.0 million were used for the
repayment of the 7.5% Convertible Bonds of the Group
with principal amounts of HK$217.5 million matured on
31 August 2015.
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Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 18 February 2015 (as supplemented) (“Conditional
Sale and Purchase Agreement”) entered into between
the Vendor, Esteemed Zone Limited (“Esteemed Zone")
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and the
guarantors, in relation to the Acquisition, as part of the
total consideration of HK$830.8 million, the Company
issued (a) HK$450.0 million of 12.0% unsecured coupon
bonds with terms of 4 months from 31 August 2015 (the
“Issue Date”), HK$32.0 million of which were repaid
on 31 December 2015 whereas the maturity date of
the remaining coupon bonds amounting to HK$418.0
million was extended to 30 June 2016. On 10 June
2016, the Company early repaid HK$166.0 million to
the bondholders and the maturity date of the remaining
coupon bonds amounting to HK$252.0 million is further
extended to 30 September 2016; and (b) HK$120.0 million
of 12.0% unsecured coupon bonds with terms of 5 years
from the Issue Date. The 12.0% unsecured coupon bonds
are denominated in HK$ and interest bearing at 12.0% per
annum.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying value of 8.0% coupon
bonds which was issued in October 2014 amounted to
HK$201.7 million which was repayable within one year,
denominated in HK$ and interest bearing at 8.0% per
annum.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$730.3 million (2015: net current assets
of HK$92.0 million) and the current ratio of the Group
calculated as the Group’s current assets over its current
liabilities was 0.35 (2015: 1.19). The change in current
ratio was due to the increase in borrowings and the issue
of 12.0% coupon bonds, both of which were in relation
to the Acquisition as well as the 8.0% coupon bonds
becoming current liabilities at the end of current year. The
Group will look for alternatives to diversify the fund basis

to enhance the financial flexibility and liquidity.
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On 10 March 2016, Esteemed Zone entered into a loan
facility agreement with Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC"), pursuant to which, subject
to the fulfillment of relevant conditions precedent, ICBC
agreed to provide a 3-year-term secured loan facility
(“Loan Facility”) with maximum amount up to HK$630.0
million in two tranches. The Loan Facility will be secured
by certain storeys of the Commercial Complex. The Loan
Facility will be utilized as follows: (1) HK$470.0 million
is intended to be used for the repayment of the bonds
issued in relation to the Acquisition and for repayment
of indebtedness incurred in connection with the release
and discharge of certain mortgages of the Commercial
Complex; and (2) an amount of HK$160.0 million is
intended to be used as general working capital for the
development of international trading business under the
Group. As at 10 June 2016, the conditions precedent for
the first tranche of drawdown amounting to HK$175.0
million were fulfilled and it has been drawn down on the
same date.

Capital Structure

During the Year, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$40.0 million divided into
3,200.0 million shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
to HK$62.5 million divided into 5,000.0 million Shares by
creation of an additional 1,800.0 million Shares, which
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing Shares.
Increase in authorised share capital was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 25 September 2015, details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcement and circular
dated 4 September 2015 and 9 September 2015.
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As at 31 March 2016, the issued share capital structure
of the Company was constituted of 2,791,676,819
ordinary Shares of HK$0.0125 each (2015: 2,283,666,869
ordinary Shares), representing a substantial increase of
508,009,950 Shares. The increase was mainly attributable
to the following events during the Year:

1. An aggregate principal amount of HK$82.5 million
out of the total principal amount of HK$300.0
million of 7.5% convertible bonds (the “7.5%
Convertible Bonds"”) issued on 30 August 2013
was converted into 110.0 million Shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.75 per conversion share.
As a result, the carrying amount of the 7.5%
Convertible Bonds as at the conversion dates
of HK$79.5 million, together with the relevant
convertible bonds reserve of HK$12.9 million, were
capitalized to the share capital and share premium
of the Company. The remaining 7.5% Convertible
Bonds amounting to HK$217.5 million were due
and fully repaid on 31 August 2015.

2. Pursuant to the Conditional Sale and Purchase
Agreement, 398,009,950 consideration shares at
the market price of HK$0.58 per consideration
share were allotted and issued by the Company
at the completion date as part of the total
consideration of HK$830.8 million.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the share
capital structure of the Company during the Year.
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On 23 December 2015, the Company as issuer, Mr. Li
Weibin as guarantor and Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited as subscriber entered into the subscription
agreement for the proposed issue and subscription of the
10.0% convertible bonds (“10.0% Convertible Bonds")
in the principal amount of US$10.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$77.5 million) which are due 18 months
from the issue date of 30 December 2015, interest bearing
of 10.0% per annum and convertible into Shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.83 per conversion share.
The Company received the net proceeds after expenses
amounted to US$9.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$73.6 million) which were used for general working
capital of the Group and for repayment of debt. As at
31 March 2016, the liability component and conversion
option derivative portion of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds
were valued at HK$66.7 million and HK$7.9 million
respectively.

Material Acquisition

Save as the Acquisition disclosed above, there was no
material acquisition by the Group during the Year.

Details of the Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 18 February 2015 and 6
May 2015 respectively.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2016 was 0.65
(2015: 0.75) which was calculated based on the Group's
total liabilities of HK$2,041.4 million (2015: HK$683.6
million) and the Group's total assets of HK$3,153.2 million
(2015: HK$912.0 million).
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Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group's revenue and expenses are mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and United States dollars
("US$"). The pledged bank deposit of HK$235.2 million
is denominated in RMB and certain bank deposits are
dominated in HK$, RMB or US$. Other monetary assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
US$. During the Year, the exchange rate of RMB to HK$
weakened slightly and MOP to HK$ was stable. Further as
US$ is pegged to HK$, the Directors considered that the
foreign currency risk of the Group is relatively limited.

Contingent Liabilities and Charge on Assets

Save as disclosed in note 41 of the consolidated financial
statements on page 251 of this annual report, the Group

did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group placed pledged bank
deposits of HK$235.2 million to certain banks as securities
in return for the banks to provide loans to the Group's
financing guarantee services customers. Besides, the
Group pledged its assets with carrying values of HK$3.0
million and HK$1,494.2 million to secure obligations under

finance leases and banking facilities, respectively.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for in respect of the
development of ChinlinkeWorldport. Details of the
commitment are set out in note 38 of the consolidated
financial statements on page 248 of this annual report.

The Group will fund the capital commitments through cash
generated from operations, bank and other borrowings
and borrowings from the controlling shareholders of the

Company.
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Events after the reporting period

In respect of the Loan Facility granted by ICBC with
maximum amount up to HK$630.0 million, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Liquidity and
Financial Resources” above, the conditions precedent for
the first tranche of drawdown amounting to HK$175.0
million were fulfilled and it has been drawn down on 10
June 2016.

On 29 March 2016, the Group has entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to issue convertible
bonds under general mandate with principal amount
of approximately HK$300,000,000 in two tranches (the
“Proposed Placement”). The Company re-negotiated
the terms with the placing agent and on 16 June 2016,
the Company and the placing agent re-entered into an
engagement letter to continue the Proposed Placement.
Details of the Proposed Placement are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 29 March 2016 and 22
April 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

MAJOR RISKS
The major risks that may affect the Group’s business are

outlined below:

Economic Risk

The Group’s core business and properties are in Hong
Kong and China. In this context, the government policies,
political conditions, fiscal and monetary policies of
Hong Kong and China have direct or indirect impact on
the Group. The Group closely monitors the economic
environment, evaluates the situation and takes appropriate
actions to mitigate these risks and adjust the Group's

strategies if needed.
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Credit Risk

The Group mainly confronts with credit risk resulting from
trade debtors arising from sale of goods, rendering of
services to the customers and the provision of guarantee
to the lending banks in favour of the financing guarantee
customers in obtaining the loan provided by the lending
banks. The Group has a credit policy in place and the
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis. Individual
credit assessments are carried out to determine the credit
limits and terms which will be reviewed on regular basis.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages the liquidity risk by closely monitoring
its current and expected liquidity requirements and
ensures sufficient liquid cash and adequate committed
facilities from banks and the controlling shareholder of the
Company are available to meet the Group’s funding need.
In addition, the Group also monitors the compliance with
the loan covenants.

Compliance Risk

The Group recognizes the risks of non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has conducted on-
going review of the newly enacted laws and regulations
affecting the operations of the Group and provides
relevant trainings and guidance to the staff.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed 36 employees
in Hong Kong and 313 employees in China (31 March
2015: 43 employees in Hong Kong and 93 employees
in China). The employees are remunerated based on
their performance and working experiences, taking into
account the prevailing market conditions. Discretionary
performance bonus may be given to employees with
outstanding performance with reference to the financial
performance of the Group. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, medical and training
program.
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Maintaining good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operations and
success. The Group is keen to foster a satisfactory and
balanced demand and supply and maintains close relations
with its customers and suppliers.

PROSPECTS

The Group would continue to derive its competitive
advantages from strategic geographical focus and
unique positioning. The existing business operations and
investments are mainly in Shaanxi Province with a major
focus in Xi'an City, the capital of the Province. Under
the “Open Up the West” and the “One Belt, One Road”
economic development plans, Xi"an City is a designated
growth centre to drive the transformation of China’s
under-developed western region into a national economic
pole. Chinlink is expected to be benefited from this
transformation process because of its early establishment,
its local market knowledge and business network. The
Group also enjoys strong support from local government
as evidenced by the approval granted by the government
of Hanzhong City to set up a custom import bonded
warehouse and the Qinba Chinese Herbal Medicine
Trading Centre in ChinlinkeWorldport.

Another major competitive advantage of Chinlink is
its unique positioning in alternative finance service for
SMEs through an integrated financing platform, offering
financing guarantee, finance leasing, supply chain finance
and logistics services. Chinlink’s objective is to offer
better credit channels for the SMEs who are deprived of
traditional bank credit. SMEs have been the backbone
of China’s economic development. However, they often
find difficulties in gaining necessary funding through
regular banking channels, due to the small loan size
which is not justified with the approval efforts, low credit
quality, lack of financial transparency and insufficient
collaterals acceptable to banks. Thanks to the Group's
unique risk management system in combining supply chain
finance and logistics, the Group is able to mitigate these
fundamental credit weaknesses and continue to finance
these SMEs, even under the current economic downturn.
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The Group has earmarked two major growth areas for its
finance business, namely supply chain finance and finance
leasing. As explained previously, supply chain finance
serves to optimize the management of capital and liquidity
tie-up in supply chain process for its clients. Financing
are short term transaction base and self-liquidating, and
the Group’s logistics operation would provide visibility
into the transaction and control on the underlying goods
and inventory. The Group possesses good client resources
through partnering with the trade and logistics centres
in Xi‘an City and the soon to open ChinlinkeWorldport in
Hanzhong City. These clients are mostly SMEs specialized
in wholesale and distribution of building and construction
materials who have invested substantial portion of their
capitals in stocks and receivables and hence have huge
appetite for working capital finance which favours the
development of the Group's supply chain finance business.
In Hong Kong and Shenzhen City, the Group works
closely with the well-established supply chain logistics
operators and taps into their customer base mainly in the
electronic components business. The Group provides them
with procurement and inventory short-term financings
in Hong Kong and the logistics operators handle the
warehousing, custom clearance and delivery. Shenzhen
City is traditionally the biggest hub for imports and
distribution of electronic parts and components in China
whilst China is the largest exporter of electronic products
in the world. There are abundant demands for supply
chain finance in this particular market. Hence the Group
has strong confidence on the robust growth of the supply

chain finance business in the coming years.

The Group's finance lease company will be operational by
second half of 2016. Since the approval for the formation
of a wholly foreign-owned leasing company was granted
by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Commerce,
the Group has spent considerable efforts in building a
professional management team and business plan which
will initially focus on the industries such as healthcare,
infrastructure, public transportation and environmental

protection facility, etc., which have a large demand in
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China. The Group is confident to achieve a sizable leasing
portfolio within the first 12 months of operation. As a
foreign-owned leasing company, the Group is entitled to a
10 times gearing on paid-up capital and is allowed to raise
offshore debts. Given with the huge market potential and
the Group’s funding advantage, outlook of the finance
leasing business is highly encouraging and will be a major

contributor to the Group in the years ahead.

The development of the ChinlinkeWorldport, the Group’s
logistics project in Hanzhong City, is under smooth
progress. The first phrase will comprise of a large scale
commercial area including Daminggong (Hanzhong)
Building and Construction Materials Wholesale Centre,
Qinba Chinese Herbal Medicine Trading Centre,
warehousing and other logistics facilities. Daminggong
(Hanzhong) Building and Construction Materials Wholesale
Centre with auxiliary business facilities with total
commercial area of approximately 147,000 square metres
will start operation by the fourth quarter of 2016.

During the Year, the Group entered into a letter of
investment intent, an investment into a peer-to-peer
(P2P) Internet based investment and leading platform,
and a memorandum of understanding, to form a joint-
venture with a Hong Kong based duty-free retail operator
to engage in cross-border e-commerce business. Both
projects are on hold due to changes in market conditions
and uncertainty in the outlook. However, the Group will
continue to explore new opportunity in relation to Internet
finance and e-commerce areas to expand the Group's
scope of business.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Weibin (“Mr. Li"), aged 46, joined the Group as
an executive Director since 27 January 2012 and was re-
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 18 February 2012. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's
degree in Applied Electronics from Xi'an Technological
University and an Executive Master in Business
Administration from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Since early
2000, Mr. Li has been engaged in research, production and
sales of electronic components and materials, computer
software and hardware as well as research and sales of
computer related equipment. He has also been engaged in
property development, planning and sales, management,
and other property related investments, cultural and
entertainment businesses. His businesses are present in

Beijing, Xi"an and Hong Kong.

Mr. SIU Wai Yip ("Mr. Siu”), aged 60, joined the Group
as an executive Director since 27 January 2012. Mr. Siu
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University
of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years' of experience in
banking and financing and previously held executive
positions at various major international banks, with
specialization in trade financing and corporate banking.
Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed as an
executive director of Matsunichi Communication Holdings
Limited (now known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
stock code: 283) from January 2005 to February 2006. He
was an executive director of Vincent Intertrans (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited, stock code: 563) from July
1998 to May 1999. The shares of these two companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

BITES

ZEMEE ([FERE]) 465 NZT—=
F—A-_ttAMALXER THTES "
WHRZE—ZF A+ \BRAEERRES
BB -FTRAERBARIXERNZERAE T
BHBURARRBASZSREEAEBTIHN
ERBETEN -B_TTTFR FThiE—
ENfEESTRERME BEREREEZ
e EEREE UREBMABER ﬁZﬁﬁ
RHE - BN REWELRR RERHEE -
ﬁ*%&ﬁ@%%ﬁ@Z&ﬁ*Xk&&x
HoXBBHILR ATKES-

WMEXEE(IBEE]) 60 RZT—Z
F-AZTtEtHEHMARER ERTEE &
FEBENBEBRE BHENELT 26 - K%
BTZFROTARELR BRZHEAEH
RIITEAEERC SFIRFEIRNER
BERTEH - EMARERR  BRR_ZZ
AF—AZ-_TTNF_AHHAEZTAN
A@EAERERAG (RBARRMEZER
ERAF BRMHRE :283) 2HTES - BR
—NMANFEtAZ-—NANANFLABRME $#
ExIEHEFEE (SE)BRAR (RBRL
BEEXRTHESEERR LR RO KR
563) ZHITEEF N EME AR 2RHHER
BEAZPrEMR T e

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %5 | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ tfr 4 |39 I 47 Ji% 45 BR 2 W)

29



30

Directors and Senior Management
EFHLRBREMANE

Ms. LAM Suk Ling, Shirley (“Ms. Lam”), aged 49, joined
the Group since 27 January 2012 and is currently in the
role of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for
the Group. She was appointed as an executive Director
on 18 February 2012. She holds a Master in Business
Administration from The University of Adelaide, Australia
and a Bachelor of Science degree from Murdoch University,
Western Australia. She is qualified as a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia. Ms. Lam has over 20 years' of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management, and also
worked for various international audit firms and listed
companies. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lam was an
executive director of Jackin International Holdings Limited
(now known as AMCO United Holding Limited, stock
code: 630), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2010 to
December 2011.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit ("Mr. Lau”), aged 71, joined the Group
as an independent non-executive Director since 18
February 2012, and he was re-designated as an executive
Director on 18 September 2013. Mr. Lau retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC”) in late December 2000 after more than 35
years’ of service. Amongst the major positions at HSBC,
he served as Assistant General Manager and Head of
Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”). He served as the
Chairman of the Institute’s Executive Committee (from
January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently the
Honorary Advisor of the Institute's Executive Committee.
He has served as a Member on a number of committees
appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December
2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June
2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003),
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
(from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting
Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004) and
the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). Mr. Lau also served
as a Chairman of Business Environment Council Limited
(from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of Highlight
China loT International Limited (previously known as Ford
Glory Group Holding Limited, stock code: 1682), Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Royale
Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198) and Leoch
International Technology Limited (stock code: 842). The
shares of these four companies mentioned above are listed

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. FUNG Sau Mui (“"Ms. Fung”), aged 60, joined the
Group in 1976. Ms. Fung was an executive Director,
director of Finance and Administration as well as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and resigned from her
positions and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 February 2012. Ms. Fung has
over 30 years’ of experience in financial management,
accounting, costing, material sourcing and purchasing, and
personnel management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), aged 77,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 17 December 2013. Dr. Ho is a former
member of the Legislative Council (1996-2012), a
former Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th National
People’s Congress and the past President of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (1987-1988). He holds a
Doctorate in Civil Engineering from City University of
London, United Kingdom; an Honorary Doctorate of Laws
from The University of Manchester, United Kingdom; an
Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from City
University of Hong Kong; a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong; and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Geotechnical Engineering from
The University of Manchester, United Kingdom. Currently,
Dr. Ho is the Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the
Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and LingAo Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (2005-present) and
Professional Advisor to The Ombudsman of Hong Kong
(Engineering and Surveying) (1995-2013, 2015-present).
He has served as a Board Member of the Airport Authority
Hong Kong (2008-2014), the former Chairman of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee (2009-2013) and
the Founding Council Chairman of City University of
Hong Kong (1992-1994). He is also an independent
non-executive director of China State Construction
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3311),
GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800),
Deson Development International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 262) and AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code
1496). The shares of these four companies mentioned
above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. LAI Ka Fung, May (“Ms. Lai"), aged 50, joined the
Group as an independent non-executive Director since
18 February 2012. Ms. Lai obtained a Master of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong
Kong in 2001. She has been a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2003. She is the sole proprietor of May
K. F. Lai & Co., Certified Public Accountant, and has been
engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is
also an independent non-executive director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887), the shares of

which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. CHAN Sim Ling, Irene (“Ms. Chan”), aged 53,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 18 February 2012. She graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Hong
Kong in 1985. Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over
18 years’ of experience serving as an independent
non-executive director of listed companies. She is an
independent non-executive director of See Corporation
Limited (stock code: 491) and Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (stock code: 887). She was also an independent
non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (stock code: 296) and New Media Group Holdings
Limited (now known as Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited, stock code: 708), and retired in August 2013
and March 2015 respectively. The shares of these four
companies mentioned above are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LEE Wing Yan, Joanne (“Ms. Lee"), aged 40, joined
the Group on 17 October 2011. She is currently the
Corporate Development and Communications Director and
is responsible for the Group's strategic planning, corporate
communications and investor relations. Ms. Lee holds
a Master in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She also obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies from City University of Hong
Kong and graduated with first class honors. Ms. Lee has
over 10 years’ of marketing and business development
experience in consumer electronics and IT industries. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lee served as a Visiting Fellow
at City University of Hong Kong, Department of Marketing
from July 2008 to October 2011. Her teaching areas
included Strategic Marketing, Relationship Marketing and
Services Marketing.

Mr. MAG Chiu Fai ("Mr. Mag”), aged 41, joined the
Group on 26 March 2012. He is the Financial Controller
and is responsible for the Group's financial management
and accounting matters. Mr. Mag holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Mag has over 15 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. He also
worked for two international audit firms. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Mag was a Senior Accounting Manager of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited (stock code: 680), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2005 to July 2010.
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining good standard
of corporate governance as it believes that corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the smooth
and effective operation of a company and can enhance
shareholders’ value as well as safeguard shareholders’
interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions under the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for the year
ended 31 March 2016, save as certain deviations disclosed
herein.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group

with the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
to the executive Directors and senior management who
perform their duties under the leadership of the Managing
Director.
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The Board currently comprises eight Directors including
four executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors represents one-
third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The list of the Directors and their biographical
details are set out in the “Directors and Senior

Management” section of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the Year,
the Board convened a total of five meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed “Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

For all such meetings, notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors at least 14 days before meeting and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for discussion at the Board meetings. The
agenda and meeting materials are normally sent to all
Directors at least three days before the regular Board
meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company. In addition
to regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board
met with the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of the executive Directors.

All Directors have direct access to the company secretary
of the Company who is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance and compliance issues as well as
taking the minutes of the Board and committee meetings.

Such minutes are open for inspection by the Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business and family relationship among members
of the Board.
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The Board oversees the overall management and
operations of the Company. Major responsibilities include
approving the Company’s overall business, financial and
technical strategies, setting key performance targets,
approving budgets and overseeing the performance of

management.

Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive Director, and Ms.
Lai Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, the
independent non-executive Directors, have letters of
appointment with the Company for a specified period of
one year. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, an independent
non-executive Director, has a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of service for three years.
All of them are subject to retirement and rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws"”).

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. All retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws provided that (i) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company, and (ii) any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the following annual general meeting of
the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-election at

that meeting.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the
Board with reference to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee’s recommendation as well as the Directors’
duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.
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The Company has received annual written confirmation
of independence from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers them to be independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company deviates
from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li
Weibin is the chairman and the managing director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its managing
director to be the same as that of chief executive under
the CG Code). The Board considered that the non-
segregation would not result in considerable concentration
of power in one person and has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making

and implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. In December 2015, on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board has approved and adopted
the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
in light of the amendments of CG Code, and the same
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Lai Ka Fung,
May, possesses appropriate professional qualifications
in finance and accounting and meets the requirements
of Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. All of the
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and none of them are members of the

former or existing auditors of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the risk management and internal
control and financial reporting matters and made
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
meets at least twice a year with management and external
auditor and reviews their reports.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance
of members during the Year are set out as below section
headed “Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

During the Year, the Audit Committee performed the
following duties:

(a) reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015 and the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2015 with
recommendation to the Board for approval,

(b) reviewed reports on risk management and internal
control systems covering financial, corporate
governance, internal control and operational

functions;

() considered the independent auditors’ independence
and fee in relation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2015 and non-
audit related services; and

(d) recommended the Board on the adoption of the

revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees payable/
paid to external auditors was made up of an audit fee
of approximately HK$1.8 million and a non-audit related
service fee of approximately HK$0.6 million. The latter

included taxation service and professional service.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the attendance of members during the Year are set
out as below section headed “Attendance Record of the

Meetings”.
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During the Year, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee performed the following duties:

(a)

reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
of the Board and made recommendations on
suitable changes to the Board to complement the

Company'’s corporate strategy;

assessed the independence of all independent non-

executive Directors; and

reviewed the remuneration packages or fees
(including salary adjustments) of the executive
Directors, non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors and senior
management with recommendations to the Board

for approval.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members

of senior management of the Company by band for the

year ended 31 March 2016 are disclosed in notes 11 and

12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE SRLE
MEETINGS 0 8%
Individual attendance of each Director at the Board RAEEAN BUESEEFEEH BFRE
meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Nomination Egoxk RAakFNEEeez AQFK
and Remuneration Committee meetings, the annual RAFAE ((RERBEAE]) RERERFRAKR
general meeting ("AGM") and the special general g (IRERFRE]) 2@ EFBERES 10
meetings (“SGMs") of the Company held during the Year i
is as follows:
Attendance/Number of meetings
HE/gRRE
Nomination
and
Audit  Remuneration
Name Board Committee Committee AGM SGMs
RER BRER BRR
®E g8 ENERES gMEES BEAE KEAE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Li Weibin (Chairman 5/5 N/A N/A 11 112
and Managing Director) TEA TEA
TEREE (TEREFLHLE)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip 5/5 N/A 11 11 2/2
wEELE ~ER
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 5/5 N/A N/A il 2/2
MR Z T TiER TER
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 5/5 N/A N/A 11 2/2
RAEE TR THEA
Non-executive Director
HRITEF
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 4/5 N/A N/A 11 12
BAEERL TiEHA TiEA
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 5/5 12 71 il 2/2
MEREBL
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 5/5 22 il 7 2/2
BRERZ T
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 5/5 212 7 7 112
BB 2+
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Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires the
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors, as equal board members, should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Ms. Fung Sau
Mui, a non-executive Director, and Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene, an independent non-executive Director, were unable
to attend the SGM held on 21 May 2015 due to their
other business engagements. Mr. Li Weibin, the executive
Director, was unable to attend the SGM held on 21 May
2015 due to his other business engagements.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company provides regular updates
on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has maintained a training record in order
to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken and they are asked to submit a signed training

record to the Company on annual basis.
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During the Year, each individual Director has attended REFER ZFEFEEDL2MEEFER
training courses or workshops or reading materials REREZZBEMBZEIRES A B
relevant to his/her professional and/or duties as director. S HEREER - FERBEE_T— R F=
A summary of the training they have received for the year A=+—HBIEEEEX ZHIHMENT

ended 31 March 2016 is as follow:

Name Type of trainings

el b Ebel

Executive Directors

HiTEE

Mr. Li Weibin (Chairman and Managing Director) B
PEEEE (LTEREFLLIE)

Mr. Siu Wai Yip B
mMEEEE

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley A, B
ORI 2+

Mr. Lau Chi Kit B

Elkgeie

Non-executive Director

HHTEFE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui B
Vo S

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUIHHTEF

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond A, B
fAERE L

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May A, B
REBL L

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene A, B
BRIEIC &L+

A: attending course/seminars and/or conferences and/or A 2MBERBRME RUZRE T
forums provided/accredited by Professional Body k/wg@EmRk,/ Lilwg

B: reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties and B: MENEFRERETHEB &R
responsibilities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties as set out below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and

practices on corporate governance;

to review and maintain effective risk management

and internal control systems;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged insurance cover to indemnify

Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in

the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation

thereto.

(@ HERBIARARFBEREEE R ZEK
RRER:
(b) BEEGEFBERNRAREENANEE

FEHIE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
good corporate governance practices and a sound
system of control which is risk based, the Company’s risk
management framework is therefore designed to be an
integral part of the Company’s strategic and business
planning processes and embeds into each key activity and/

or function.

Risk Management Governance Structure

The Board has the responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Company's strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal controls. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems by the management. Management who owns
and manage risks on a day-to-day basis should in turn
provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of these systems. The internal audit is an independent
monitoring function responsible for reviews of adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal control

systems using a risk-based assessment methodology.

Control Environment and Monitoring Activities

The Group's internal control systems include an
organizational structure with clearly defined delegation of
authority and responsibility. Policies and procedures were
established to govern business operations and internal
controls to be implemented as management intends.
The Group's company secretary, internal and external
legal advisors and other management together oversee
adherence to relevant laws and regulations including the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards, etc.
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Budgeting and performance measuring criteria were
established by the management for its day-to-day
monitoring of business operations. Heads of departments
and business units regularly meet to review business
performance, the risks associated with their operational
activities and the relevant internal control measures to be
embedded in the processes to mitigate the risks the Group
is facing. The management also regularly prepares monthly

reports to the Board on the Group’s performance.

The Group conducts business based on the principles
of fairness, honesty and integrity and is committed to
the highest level of standards of ethical behavior and
accountability. Its code of conduct sets out the important
principles and expectations of appropriate business
conduct to ensure the Group’s employees’ compliance
with the code. The Group’s whistleblowing policy enables
a transparent working environment and provides channels
and guideline to all employees the procedures to disclose
any misconduct, malpractice or irregularity of which they
become aware. The Group did not receive any report of
whistleblowing incident during the Year.

During the Year, the Board has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of such systems of risk management and
internal controls. The management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the risk management and internal

control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the employees of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.
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The internal audit function reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Board and aims at assisting the Board
in fostering quality and continuous improvement of the
Company's risk assessment and internal control processes.

The internal audit function’s main responsibilities include
the followings:

(a) independently review and evaluate the adequacy,
effectiveness and efficiency of risk management
and internal control systems regarding the financial,
compliance and operational performance and
safeguarding of assets;

(b) facilitate management in identification of risks,
and development of risk mitigation and monitoring
strategies as part of the risk management
framework;

(0) monitor operational compliance with the Group’s
established policies and procedures; and

(d) provide advices to the management and conduct
special reviews in specific areas concerned by the
management in addition to the planned audit
activities.

The internal audit function carries out assessment based
on the internal audit annual plan approved by the Audit
Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from pages
86 to 88 in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lam Suk
Ling, Shirley, the company secretary of the Company,
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2016.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board endeavours to communicate with shareholders
through annual and other general meetings directly.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. Updated information of the Group is also
available to shareholders through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings
of the Company at which Directors are available to answer
shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by

shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene a SGM of the Company. Shareholders holding in
aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for the SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 7/F, Two
Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong
or at the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at

general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal (which may properly be put to the meeting) for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company:

(a) any number of members representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the

Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the

Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 7/F., Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders
concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies

Act once valid documents are received.
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If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should follow the “Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company”, which can be found on the

website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing via the following channel:

The Company Secretary

Chinlink International Holdings Limited
7/F., Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

E-mail: shirleylam@chinlinkint.com
Telephone: (852) 2168 0777

Facsimile: (852) 2168 0780

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Except for the increase in authorised share capital of
the Company that took place in September 2015 which
have affected the total number of unissued shares of the
Company and thus the relevant section of the Bye-Laws,
there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year. Details of the
increase in authorised share capital of the Company are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 9 September 2015.
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Active implementation of corporate social responsibility
has always been one of the Group's priorities. As a
responsible entity, during the Year, the Group continued
its commitment to environmental protection and social
responsibilities. Details of the Group’s initiatives and
achievements are set out below:

CARING FOR POLLUTANT EMISSION AND
USE OF RESOURCES

The Group aims to comply with the applicable laws
and regulations relating to environmental protection
in the countries where the Group conducts businesses.
Colleagues are encouraged to minimize waste and
use resources efficiently. During the Year, the Group
implemented several measures to reduce the usage of
resources which resulted in reduction of greenhouse gas
emission, for instance,

o installation of auto-sensing escalators and LED

lighting sources in the Commercial Complex

o use of recycled paper and Forest Stewardship
Council certified paper

o encouraging employees to switch off non-essential

lights and office equipment when not in use

o encouraging employees to communicate internally
and externally by environmental friendly means,

such as telephone and emails, etc.

With the prevailing importance of slowing down global
climate change, the Group will continue to take up the

responsibility of environmental protection.
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CARING FOR EMPLOYMENT OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group strictly follows the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong and Employment Contract Law of the PRC.
The management of the Group encourages a culture of
diversity and promotes equal opportunities, and aims to
create a respectful, fair and safe working environment
for employees of all business units and complies with all

statutory requirements.

Competitive remuneration and other fringe benefits
including medical care scheme, comprehensive insurance
scheme for employees in China and special leave such as
compensation leave, marriage leave and compassionate
leave, etc., are offered to employees. Remuneration
package is reviewed individually on an annual basis
reflecting each employee’'s work performance,
contributions and market developments.

To enhance a good work-life balance, employees are
encouraged not to work overtime and in case they do,
they are entitled to certain allowance and reimbursement.

The Group provides different forms of communication
channels, including internal newsletters and face-to-face
interview, through which their voices are heard and their

needs are considered.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES' HEALTH AND
SAFETY

The Group is responsible for providing a healthy and safety
workplace for its employees. To ensure hygienic working
conditions, regular cleaning of air-conditioning systems
and disinfection treatment of carpets are carried out at
the office. Also, employees are encouraged to take part
in charitable and recreational activities in order to keep

healthy in physical and mental ways.
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For the Commercial Complex, fire-fighting equipment is
regularly checked to ensure its functionality, and safety

seminars are organised periodically.

Also, the Group equips with fitness equipment and sport
facilities for its employees in the PRC, such as basketball
courts, badminton courts, table tennis room, billiards room
and other sports venues. Employees are encouraged to use

these facilities.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES’
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group understands continuous and effective employee
training is essential for a success of an organization.
Through the training, the Group can educate employees
about necessary knowledge and techniques for the
business and also share corporate culture with the
employees. During the Year, the Group arranged a number
of job related training sessions to its employees and
sponsored/subsidized certain employees to attend external
professional seminars.

CARING FOR ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group treasures a fair and efficient business and
working environment, and thus gives special importance
of anti-corruption practices. According to the Group's
Employees’ Handbook and Code of Conducts, employees
are prohibited to request or accept any gifts which could
compromise employees’ objectivity or induce an employee
to act against the best interest of the Group or the
Group's clients.

The Group has launched a whistleblowing policy to provide
employees with a channel to report any misconduct,
malpractice or irregularity of which they become aware of.
The policy enables a transparent working environment and
provides guideline and procedures to all employees.
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CARING FOR COMMUNITY
INVESTMENTS

Since the establishment of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee in early 2015, the Group
has been proactively contributing to the society by
partnering with different local communities, mainly non-
governmental organizations, through a combination
of cash and in-kind donations and community service
participations. The Group believes in the power of
investing in communities and young people to make

meaningful change to society.

Supported by Food Angel, a social welfare organization,
the Group sponsored Bake to Feed voluntary activity on
9 May 2015. Chinlink Corporate Volunteer Service Team
made cookies using ingredients collected from restaurants
and the cookies were delivered to the elderlies by Food
Angel afterwards. The activity was successful not just
in reaching out those in need but also in promoting the
message of treasuring resources on planet and reducing

waste and bringing joy to the employees.

During the Year, the Group sponsored Silk Road Youth
Leadership Programme 2015-2016 (the “Leadership
Programme”) jointly organized by Peking University, Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Xi‘an Jiaotong University.
The Leadership Programme offered students a platform
to develop their self, ethical and community leadership
qualities, interpersonal and community engagement
and global outlook, etc. Students were selected from
the three universities and explored along the Silk Road
during summer and winter holidays. The journey started
from Xi'an followed by Turkey, Israel and Kazakhstan and
students had visited a number of government ministries,
rural and grassroots communities. The Group has been
very supportive in cultivating the young people to be
a capable, global-thinking and forward-looking future
leaders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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On 4 Mar 2016, The Group sponsored and participated
in Art for ALL! voluntary activity organized by TREATS, a
social welfare organization. The activity aimed to promote
a caring, accepting and integrated society through making
tote bags with children with mild intellectual disability.
Chinlink Corporate Volunteer Service Team paired up with
the children playing games and assisting them to make
tote bags. Through participating in the activity, volunteers
understood more about children with mild intellectual
disability and arouse their attention to this special group

and other minorities in the society.

Foping County of Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province had
been severely affected by heavy rainfall which caused
houses damaged, snapped electricity supply, damages
to the agricultural crops and roads to some villages and
personal injury. ChinlinkeWorldport team visited the
affected families and gave a helping hand to them by

making and in-kind donation on 22 July 2015.

SOCIAL RECOGNITION

The Group has been devoted to participate in various
charitable events and this is the second consecutive
year that the Group was awarded the Caring Company
logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service (the
“Council”) in recognition of the Group's contributions to
the care of community, employees and environment.

The Council has launched the Caring Company Scheme
since 2002 to recognize the effort of corporates and
organizations, which are actively fulfilling corporate social
responsibilities. Having awarded the Caring Company
2014-2016 logo has proved the Group’s contribution to
the society and exemplified the Group's persistence in

fulfilling social responsibilities.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 89 of this

annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 10 to 28
of this annual report.
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ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The sales to the top five customers for the Year amounted
to HK$114.7 million, representing a decrease of 24.8%
from HK$152.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The top five customers in the Year represented
approximately 57.0% of the total revenue as compared
to approximately 60.5% for the year ended 31 March
2015. The largest customer in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
19.4% of the total revenue in the Year as compared to
the largest customer in last year of approximately 24.9%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five customers are located in Hong Kong and Macau

and one is located in the PRC.

The purchases from the top five suppliers amounted to
HK$116.6 million, representing a decrease of 18.9% from
HK$143.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The top five suppliers in the Year represented
approximately 77.8% of the total purchases as compared
to approximately 73.1% for the year ended 31 March
2015. The largest supplier in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
28.5% of the total purchases in the Year as compared to
the largest supplier in last year of approximately 32.0% of
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2015 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five suppliers are located in Hong Kong and Macau

and one is located in the PRC.

Maintaining good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operations and
success. The Group is keen to foster a satisfactory and
balanced demand and supply and maintains close relations

with its customers and suppliers.

FEEFRMUER

23
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the section headed “Major Risks” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 24
to 25 of this annual report and notes 4, 5 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Details of environmental policies and performance of the
Company are set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2016
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2016, together with the
reasons therefor are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set

out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE AR PDF) Z AR 2

COMPANY Fﬁﬁ

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to i ANFEZA=+—H AAFWLMEA]
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as at #Ho /)E%$A AR ([RER]) 2@EE-

31 March 2016.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), BE-—NWN—FZ2EREQANE (KIEFT)
the contributed surplus account of the Company is RABZHABBREAIHS IR -BETIE
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot AT ARB P RBMARBBASTIRSK A
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of & S VEL 9K

contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay (@ HAZBEXHMSI 5 BHE EDH
its liabilities as they become due; or B4 1838 1 51

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby by EBEEAZREAMEAEAEG B
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its BITIRAR R &ER 28 -

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS 5=

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016 and BE_Z-—R"F=ZA=T—"HBLFEIREZE
up to the date of this annual report were: RERBABMHZEETMT :
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Li Weibin FEMEE

Mr. Siu Wai Yip BEXLE

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley MR &+

Mr. Lau Chi Kit BIEHREE
Non-executive Director HHITEE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui BHEE L+
Independent non-executive Directors BHTHPTEE

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond OF-Ei

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May RERE X+

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR 188 75 22 &
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In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Li RIEARIMAIES7IE  FEMESE BB AE
Weibin, Mr. Lau Chi Kit and Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ARAERBEETERAQAREEREAFK
will retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming grEEFeRBERT - ULAMAESHET
annual general meeting of the Company. Being eligible, SEBALFEEBEET-
the abovementioned Directors will offer themselves for re-
election.
The directors who have served on the boards of the RAFERRBERNRSE BARRRAMNE
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the RAEFEEB I EFNT:

date of this report were:

Mr. Li Weibin
TEMW A

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
RIE B LA

Mr. Wong Kam Hong
EIESLL

Ms. Guo Li Na
Ey= ] e

Mr. Wang Hong Li
FRIKE

Mr. Liu Wei
Elf S

Mr. Zhao Jun

Mr. Wang Zi Heng
IRELRE

Mr. Siu Wai Yip
mEXERLE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui
HHEEL L

Mr. Kwan Kam Ming
ek s

Mr. Tang Yi Feng
Bkt

Ms. Wang Hong
Faz+

Ms. Duan Shan Shan
E% i 5t 22 -

Mr. Chen Yun Peng
REWEE

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
ORI Z+

Mr. Tai Wing Wah

Mr. Loo Chi Kwan
EEBLE

Ms. Zhao Ying
HEZt

Mr. Liu Shu Li
2|4t 1B % A&

Mr. Xi You Liang
FRERKE

Mr. Tao Wei Jun
s LE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the four executive Directors, Mr. Li Weibin, Mr. Siu
Wai Yip, Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley and Mr. Lau Chi Kit,
have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for no fixed term which may be terminated by one month

notice in writing by either party respectively.

The non-executive Director, Ms. Fung Sau Mui, and each
of the two independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Lai
Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, have entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
fixed term of one year commencing on 18 February 2016

respectively.

The independent non-executive Director, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 17 December 2013.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.

BEEZBREEN
MARITERNFEMELE  BEEEE H
BELZLRABRELEEAESRRARA
# B4 B E HIMR 2 PR 1k - M AT e AE A —
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FARFEL L RRER L+ HEHRIER
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T—RE=A+N\BRER-

BYFATESTMERB LI HBARARR]
BEFHERA=F2&EK BT =F+_
R+t HEAERK-
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERBETHRAER
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN RAERXTREM
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BEIEZRG -
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND HEBRARESF
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS BEZREERER
As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions RZBE-—RE=ZA=1+—HB FFRAQA
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company BRaTHRABNURBEEEBCHEALTER
and their respective associates in the shares, underlying NRAMEBEELE (FRRBEBENFESE
shares and debentures of the Company and its associate BHERIBEGD ([BHFRBE®EHE]) EXV
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the ) 2lkm HEARDREST - HEEAETD
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws RARBIREBEEFES REEKROIEIS2EEE
of Hong Kong (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register ZELMzERRER HBRE LT AAE
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of FHTEHFRHZFETRASITAGEAR
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the AN R RERAT

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RARBEBRZ KR
Approximate
Number of shares of HK$0.0125 each percentage of
SREE0.0125% 7 2 RHKE the total
number of
Shares in
Personal Corporate issue of the
Name of Director interests interests Total Company
EERABE T
ROBH 2
EEpA (N3 NEER Bt BARD L
Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li") 14,090,000  1,546,303,160  1,560,393,160 55.89%
FEREEE ([ZXE]) (Note) (P &)
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Note: Bt &
These shares are held by Wealth Keeper International Limited #% % IR 19 B Wealth Keeper International Limited
([Wealth Keeper|)#FH HE2HBEEITRAH
FEEXEERREE AN BEEFSFRHAEK
Bl » 2= 5 A A8 A A Wealth Keeperii B 2 &%
1,546,303, 160/ i {7 H A #E 25 o

("Wealth Keeper"”), the entire issued share capital of which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in the entire 1,546,303,160 shares held
by Wealth Keeper by virtue of the SFO.

RARREREZ KRB

Long positions in share options of the Company

64

Approximate
percentage of

the total number

of Shares

Number of in issue of

Name of Directors Capacity share options the Company

EERLAE BT

IR E Bz

EEpns g7 BREHE MABE D

Mr. Li Weibin Beneficial owner 8,600,000 0.31%
FEMEE EnEAA

Mr. Siu Wai Yip Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.21%
MEELE EnEAA

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.21%
MR 2+ EnEAA

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Beneficial owner 4,000,000 0.14%
ZIE Rt EnEAA

Ms. Fung Sau Mui Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.07%
e+ EnEAA

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond Beneficial owner 4,000,000 0.14%
fA[$EZRE L EnEAA

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.07%
REBLL EnEAA

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.07%

BRIEIC 22+

BEmlAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of
their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debenture of the Company or

any associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the
Board may determine. Share options granted should
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter
of grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the
grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power
to determine the period within which payments or calls

must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined
by the Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of a share.

B EXAEEEN R_T—RF=A=1+—
B EEHARA ﬁmﬁﬂ()\ﬁﬁkﬁfﬂﬂ%éé
AT W ERAR QB SAEATE BEE 2 B
BEROREFTREEARERER -

ERESTE
RZE——FANA-+—B ERERAA
BT ARNRBREBAFRG EHE ARF]
R —EER T E ([ZEtE)) -

Zit BB EEAKEARAEERSEER D
BRE (FARSHAKEMIERRZ B
L3

$E'<?J‘5§%'Jriﬂ'* AR EZR

ER2EERLBRENZBESSUEE
Z*ﬁ%@ﬂxfm%ﬁ(@ o PR BB AR ZE I IR B
B HIE 28 B MR M - O A BB AR R B
EEANALERERERA QR XM1.00
BILZRE X ZTEGRRA M A EREZE
IR EXSERETLALAEELM
R ERB M2 R -

BEREZACEHEFSETE REARMN
TZERSE: (WhHnREBH (BAREE
B)EBXMERHRER LMK WHIE: (i)
B REZRL AT REE X B AR
BRMER LR FHRTE : R
[ERIER
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its Shareholders to
refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.

The total number of shares issued which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates abstained from voting. Share options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective associates in any
12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the total number of
Shares in issue of the Company on the date of grant and
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved

in advance by the Shareholders.

AT R EZET 8 R A D B HE 1t 8 A i
FERHZAEBREM A BT ZROEE
FRAGEBNIENRAZAEEALRR
AlZBETROBEZ210%  HALQF] A BE
RRERAES KRR ESZBREEHNL
BRMUEEHERREBE R 2B HTRNDZ
10% Rt EREHRRER  ZAREAR
AR AT 8IPT IR 2 P R (B3R
EREEEDARITE Bl CRMEETT
FBZBRE) TERAEEA-

REBZER T ERE B B2 g1 E M 1218 A B
(PREEHER)  AREZTERAARME
A EMERETEIE TEREEER2HEE 2
BlRE (BEETFE BEEEERITERR
E)ETERMEETRAITFTETZAEBAR
MBE THEBARLEAZERITRG 2
1% HABEEERBRRERE LERRERYL
BRBREASEARIIN MEBEERKS
HEREBEBALTEAEZRAG LRELE-
fA A 3 B AR R S B 37 FE 1T E S ok AL A fal H
BATREZERE 2 BBROEEMI2ME
AHEEREREARAQARZEHTRMHE
,20.1% % H (&&= 55,000,000/ 7T - &I
WIBRER R ELRIE - FAEE -
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The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share options can be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. There is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme

will expire on 20 September 2022.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 September 2014, the Company was authorised to
refresh the scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum
of 228,366,686 shares options under the Scheme.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company at any time shall

not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no share options
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 338,966,686, which
represents approximately 12.14% of the total number of
Shares in issue of the Company as at 30 June 2016 (i.e.
2,791,676,819 shares).

EXZgUaRRNBRAEBREZITEMSR
HERE B N IR I A B SH10F R AT 1T (&
BRTEBREIMVEAREBREZRED
BRI A —RRTE AT EHR —F ==
FAAZTHER-

EARRARZZE—NFEANAZ+ BRI
BREBAFAREG L ARAEREE TSR
TR FELAR R % 5t 81 8517 £ 228,366,686
DEERIE - RE A LA - BB ZETEI R A
N EMEATE B A i st B AT I B M R AT
LA ARITERBREETER TEITZ
RO EFFBERESTSEBABTREEITRG
230% e

HE-_Z-XRNFZAZ+—RHLFEARN I
mIEREERD T EHEK KK -RAE
WEBE ZETEETAHEIT RO EE
4 $£5338,966,68610 IHE R AR RN =
TE-—RNERNA=ZTBHZERITRMAE (A
2,791,676,8190K 810 ) 2 £912.14%
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The movements in the share options granted under the HE_Z—R"F=A=+T—HIEFE RE
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016 are shown ZErEIRE c BRESEHI AT
below:
Number of share options
BREXE
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Validity price of
Name or category of 1 April during during during during 31 March  share period of share
participants 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016 options share options options
RZB-1% KEER KEER REER KEERN RZB-RE BREZ BREZ BREZ
SREZBEAER mA-H i % d# %% =ZR=t-B KREBH BAE TRE
HKS
BT
per share
s
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Li Weibin 8,600,000 - - - - 8,600,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
ZEEAE -=%mA (Note 1)
ZtRA -mFEA-TRAZ
—ZEMAZT=H
(PizE1)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
BEELE —=FMA (Note 1)
ZtME -EFEA-THMAEZE
ZZEMAZT=A
(BzET)
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 to 23-04-23 0.58
iRk &t —Z£NA (Note 1)
ZtRA  -EFRA-TRAZ
“ZEMAZFZH
(B&ET)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
EELES —=%M0A (Note 1)
ZtHE  -EFEA-THEAE
“ZEMAZT=H
(HEE1)
Non-executive Director
FHUTES
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
BABRL -Z£mA (Note 1)
ZtHE -EFEA-ZTHEAE
“ZEMAZT=AH
(HEE1)
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BUKHTES
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000  17-12-13 17-12-14 10 16-12-23 0.68
fAEREL “ZEFZH (Note3)
TtH —mET-ATLAE
It il N
(FHEE3)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
PREZL —ZENA (Note 1)
ZtRA  -EFRA-TRAZ
ZZEMAZT=ER
(B&E1)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
RER LT -=%mA (Note 1)
ZtRA  -EFEA-TRAZ
—ZEMAZT=H
(PizE1)
34,600,000 - - - - 34,600,000
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EHREHRE
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Validity price of
Name or category of 1 April during during during during 31 March  share period of share
participants 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016 options share options options
R-E-1% KEER KEER KEER KEER R-F-RE  BREZ BREL BREZ
SaEIHERER mA-H it i Bt %% ZRZt-B KBS B ke
HKS
B
per share
B
Others
Eth
Employees 26,000,000 - - - - 26,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
EE —ZEmA (Note 1)
ZtEE —MERAZTHEAZE
ZZEMAZT=H
(PzE1)
15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000 29-11-13 29-11-14 t0 28-11-23 0.70
—ZF+-H  (Note2)
ZthB  —BEET-AZTNBE
—Z#+-A=tN\R
(HEE2)
Other eligible participants 35,000,000 - - - - 35,000,000  24-04-13 24-04-14 t0 23-04-23 0.58
EtadnsEE —=%MA (Note 1)
ZtHE  -EFEA-THEAE
“ZEMAZT=H
(H&E1)
110,600,000 - - - - 110,600,000
Notes: s -

The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2014 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next 20% of the share
options shall become exercisable from 24 April 2015 until
23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of
the share options shall become exercisable from 24 April
2016 until 23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the
next 20% of the share options shall become exercisable
from 24 April 2017 until 23 April 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2018 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive).

BERE B TIRA T AMEE: ()Y
20% 2 BERRHE R T —HFEMHA =11
HE-_Z-_-"FMWA=-+=-H(EBRFEE
M E)RAIFATE: ()EIR20% 2 B E - 15
R-ZE—RAFWMA-+HBE-_ZT =%
MAZ+=B(REERMAB) A FI1{E:
(i)E K20% 2 BERRHE - R ZFT—RFNW
A-+mMBE-_Z-_=FmMA-+=0 (8
FEEMB)A FIT6: (vE X20%2 8
B EgR_E—+tFOA-+HEHEE=
E-=ZFNA-+=R(BEEREMA)A
FATEE RV T20% 2 BERR#E - B =
- N\FNA-F+UHEE-_ZT =4 A
Z+=A(BEEEMA) I T
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HHE R
2. The validity period of the share options are vested into

five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2014 until
28 November 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
29 November 2015 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2016 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 29
November 2017 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2018 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive).

3. The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2014 until
16 December 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
17 December 2015 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2016 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 17
December 2017 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2018 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive).

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted,
i.e. 23 April 2013, 28 November 2013 and 16 December
2013, were HK$0.56, HK$0.68 and HK$0.68 per share,

respectively.

2. BREZEMHIDEAT>AMLEE: ()
BH20% 2 ERE BR T —ME+— A
—tThHEZZE-_=F+—A=+NH(E8
FEEMB) AT ()EHIR20% 2 AR
- BR-_ZE-—RAF+—AZ+tNAZE=Z
ZEFF+—AZ+N B (REEEMRA) A
FAE (ER20% 2 BRE BR=-F

—RNE+—AZt+NAhBHE-ZZE-_=F+—
AZ+NB(BEEEWA) I FITE: (iv)
HR20% 2 BE R _E—+tF+—A
—tABEZT==Ff+—A=+/\B (8
FERMA) A FIT6E: RWBT20% 28
i BR =T \F+—A=Zt+hAE=
T=F+—AZ+N\B(BEEEMA)
AT

3. BREZBRBIIEAT ) AMEE ()
BH20% 2 EIRE SR T —MFE+ = A
THHEZZZ=%+-A+XB (BF&E

BB )" FITE (i)EIX20% 2 BALHE -
BRZZE—AF+-_ATEHE=ZT ==
F+ZA+B (8 TE%):FEEI)—I%
B (i) H R20% 2 B E - R = 7~
F+ZA+tEREZZ==F+= )EH'/\
A(BEEEEMA) A FITE: (vEIX20%
ZERE R -_ZT—tF+_ATtHZE
—E_=F+ZA+AA(BEEEMA)
Al FATIE  R(VER T 20% 2 BRI - i8R =
T-N\F+ZAt+EREZZT==F+=
AT+ RB(BREEEMB) I

AR B D B 2R R AR X H A AT —
(M=F—-—=FWA=-+=R -ZF—=F
tT—AZ+TNAAERZZ—=F+=A+KH)
Z W T BRI R ER0.56/E 7T 0.68/8 T &
0.68/& 7L °
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above in and Chief

Executive's Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,

"Directors’

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and any Associated Corporations”, at no time during
the year ended 31 March 2016 was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company are set out
below:

BERMOR

(R
BREX[EERERTHRABRAD AR
IR ERAE 2 1D ABRRGN RESDES
ZHEERER| —HRBEBEEN KDFH
FRARKEEAHBRARSERBEE—F
—AFZA=+-AULFERZE@MESEET
TAEARE REERTAEBREARF
oA 6] 4t 0 1 2 B 1 o £ 4 P 2o

ITERREK

Hitt A = R G

ISEELC) g

ZERRER
R-ZB-—XFEZ/=+—0 BR(BELA
REEBITRABBRIN RARR Z BRI K
HEARMD T FEABRNADAREES
RHEIGDIF336IGFE 2 BRMA - KA
THEARRZHERERMT :

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of TRZR X B 38 A K A8 B AR £
the Company ZRE
Approximate
percentage of
Interest in the total
Number of underlying number of
ordinary shares shares Shares in
Name of of HK$0.0125 pursuant to issue of
substantial Shareholders Capacity each the Scheme Total  the Company
BREE REZTE ERDNRERT
001252 REBERHZ R EH2
TERRER/HE 54 EBERYEA B st BREDL
Wealth Keeper Beneficial owner 1,546,303,160 - 1,546,303,160 55.39%
ERERA
Ms. Cao Wei (“Ms. Cao") Interest in spouse 1,560,393,160 8,600,000  1,568,993,160 56.20%
Boutr([8xt]) EER (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PBzET) (MEE2)
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Notes:

1. These shares comprises (i) Mr. Li personally held
14,090,000 shares, and (ii) 1,546,303,160 shares held by
Wealth Keeper, the entire issued share capital of which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li, the spouse of Ms.
Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested in
the entire 1,560,393,160 shares held by Wealth Keeper
and Mr. Li by virtue of the SFO.

2. These underlying shares are held by Mr. Li, the spouse of
Ms. Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested
in the 8,600,000 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Company discloses the following continuing connected
transactions incurred during the Year.

—_

ZEROGBEE(BEEEMBARE
2 14,090,0000% B 15 : K (ii)H Wealth
Keeper## 5B 21,546,303,160/% i {7 - ™
WealthKeeperz 28 B B TR AHE 2+
ZHRBEREZEAERER ALt BIEFH
HRHEEDN B 2R AR B Wealth
Keeper R F 5 £ #5H 2 2 #1,560,393,160
AR 5 o A #E 2 o

2. ZEMBARNHE LT 2B REEE -
Ft - RIEFEF LR EGEG L THRA
78,600,0008% #H 8 B {7 1 #E 5 #E 25 o

B EXFAEBEEN RE—RF=ZA=1+—
B SiEEMATRARE RN HAEBRND
hOBEERERRARAREBEESFLHERK
PIZE336GFEZELMA  KASTHAER
NAZERHIER °

BEXS
RiF ETRAFE14AAT - RRFZHBEIA TR
AEERNETZHEBERS -
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CLI Design Limited, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”)
with Golden Life Investment Limited (“Golden Life")
on 28 November 2014 for the lease of Workshops Nos.
1 to 8, 19 to 21 on the 2nd Floor, of Decca Industrial
Centre, 12 Kut Shing Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong, with
an aggregate gross floor area of about 6,149 square feet
and Car Parking Space Nos. P9 and P10 on the Ground
Floor of Decca Industrial Centre, 12 Kut Shing Street, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong at a monthly rental of HK$71,500 and
monthly building management fee of HK$9,876 for a term
of three years from 1 December 2014 to 30 November
2017. According to a written notice served by Golden
Life, the monthly building management fee was increased
from HK$9,876 to HK$10,616 with effect from 1 January
2016. The transaction pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive

Director, is one of the directors of Golden Life.

NN T B A R E B R A A R A A EAB R IR
BERAR ([BRE]D) RAEMNEBEES
BEE125 E R T P02 12891 - 19521
SRT5 (REEmMELNE,149F T R) KA
BBEETHE2RNEETEP LM TPIR
PIOSREBEU R —F—WNF+— A=+ N\HFIL
—IERE RS ([HEHR]) - A /71,500
BTmESAMEETEE BI876E L B
T-—NFE+-_A—BARE-_T—+F+—A
=t+AHIlE ABH=F -REABRELZ—H
EHBA  FAYMEEIEERI,S76/8 TIL M
2106168 T - B_F—"F—H—HEE
M-HRIERTEE R EBL LT ABEESP
—REE HBRBEHEREIETIRSE
REMBAET 2 HERERS -
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group paid
rental and building management fees of approximately
HK$858,000 (2015: HK$806,000) and HK$120,732 (2015:
HK$109,416) to Golden Life pursuant to the Tenancy
Agreement and the written notice.

On 12 March 2015, REEEFEREEFRARA
Al (Shaanxi Chinlink Financial Guarantee Limited*)
(“Chinlink Finance”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and AZ R ERARMEELEEERR
‘A7 (Xi'an Dewantong Commercial Operation and
Management Company Limited*) (“"Dewantong”) entered
into a financing guarantee contract (“Dewantong FG
Contract 1”) and on 31 March 2016, Chinlink Finance
and Dewantong entered into a new financing guarantee
contract ("Dewantong FG Contract IlI”, together
with the Dewantong FG Contract I, collectively, the
"Dewantong FG Contracts”). Pursuant to Dewantong
FG Contracts, Chinlink Finance has agreed to provide
financing guarantee to the lending banks in favour of
Dewantong for procuring Dewantong in obtaining the
bank loans.

*  For identification purpose only

RBE-T—A"F=ZA=+—RHLEFER
AEEREHRERZREDRARBR N
S RYEERBELSS8,0008 T (ZF
—H 4 : 806,000/ 7T ) 120,732/ 7T
—HF 109,416 7T) °

R-_ZE—RF=A+-B AAFAZEE2
EWNBARIRALEFSMEERERAA
([BEET2ME | HAZEERNEELE
BERAA (EBBI L —HBEER
GH(EBBERMEEREN I ULN-E
NFZA=Zt+—H ETEhomEHRES
B DA REERAN ([ EEERERE
{%n?{\JIIJ CEREERREEREN S
AIEEBREEREN)) BEEEER
BERAN TEFSHRECRERZEESR
MERBITRHEBEERAREEERES
ﬁETTE@W

>u>§ \\

* EHREE)
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The principal terms of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set

REBREERANZEIEZHRRHEINMT

out below:
Guaranteed Approximate  Guarantee
Contract Contract date amount guarantee income  service period
ANER LR BReE EREOBA EREEHH
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AREBET) (AREEB&ET)
Dewantong FG Contract | 12 March 2015 10.000 0.250 12 March 2015 to 11
March 2016
EERREEREA 0% —hF=ZA+ZHE
=ATZH ZE-R¥=ZAT-H
Dewantong FG Contract Il 31 March 2016 7.000 0.175 31 March 2016 to 30
March 2017
EERREERSQ ZTRE -3
=A=+—H ZA=Z+-HZE
—tF
=A=+H

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
has received/receivable from Dewantong for financing
guarantee services fee of total approximately RMBO0.24
million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.29 million)
(2015: approximately RMB0.86 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.08 million)).

The transactions pursuant to the Dewantong FG Contracts
were constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as Mr. Li, an executive Director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly
holds 50% of Dewantong’s equity interest. Further
details of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12 March 2015
and 31 March 2016, respectively.

BEZZE—AF=ZA=1+—RHLFE F~%£H
Bl EREERRERRREBRAA LY
AR #240,0007T (4855 7 49290,000/% 7T)
—E-RF H ARM860,0007T (FHER
#91,080,000%7T) ) °

HRARBMITEERIERR R A EBE
RERERZS0%KRE WREEEARE
BRAENETZRGER ETRAUBT 28
BHRER FHRERARERRENZE
—THBERARABHS AT —RF
ZA+ZBRZZE—RF=ZA=1+—H2ZA
A o
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On 25 November 2014, Chinlink Finance and 78 % [&
SETEBRMAMR AR (Xi'an Hui Jing Zhuo Yuan
Information Technology Company Limited*) (“Zhuo
Yuan”) entered into a financing guarantee contract (“ZY
FG Contract 1”) and a consultancy services contract (“ZY
CS Contract 1”) and on 27 November 2015, Chinlink
Finance and Zhuo Yuan entered into a new financing
guarantee contract (“ZY FG Contract I, together with
ZY FG Contract |, collectively, the “ZY FG Contracts”) and
a new consultancy services contract (“ZY CS Contract
I1”, together with ZY CS Contract I, collectively, the “ZY
CS Contracts”), pursuant to which Chinlink Finance has
agreed to provide financing guarantee to the lending
bank in favor of Zhuo Yuan for procuring Zhuo Yuan in
obtaining the bank loan and Chinlink Finance has also
agreed to provide corresponding consultancy services to
Zhuo Yuan in return for services income.

*  For identification purpose only

R-B—NE+—A_+HB TELLEE
HAZERETEERMBRAT ([Ex])
I —HOREERREN ([ETMERREN
1D E—HO@BAREEH ([ETBARES
HHUAER—E—FAF+—A=-++tH &
ERSRMEREBTII Y —HIREEREYN
(METRMEEREHN]  ERETHREER
AR SBAEIRMEEREN] ) K—10
MaAREEH ([ExBARKEEHN] &
EE TEARBEED S A [ETEHR
BEW]) B ETEFEHMECRERE
THEFRRITREREERRABFEETES
RTEFRREERSRECRBRETRMH
1 FE 35 o AR 75 A E R AR 75 WK A 1B B [B1 3R -

* EHREE)
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The principal terms of the ZY FG Contracts and ZY CS BEITREERGARELEARBEO 2L
Contracts are set out below: ZIRFEINAT
Approximate
guarantee/  Guarantee/
Guaranteed consultancy  consultancy
Contract Contract date amount service income  service period
BR/EARY ER/EA
BHNER ELEE EREE BAMA  REHH
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AR¥BEET) (AR¥BEET)
ZY FG Contract | 25 November 2014 14.000 0.420 25 November 2014 to
25 November 2015
ELRERREN —Z-mE —ZT-mE
+-A=+=EA +—-A=+HBZ
i SiS
+-A=t+%H
ZY CS Contract | 25 November 2014 Not applicable 0.702 25 November 2014 to
25 November 2015
B ARBA L —T-mE Nili —T-mF
+-A=-+=A +—A=t+HBZ
—T-1F
+-A=t+%H
ZY FG Contract Il 27 November 2015 9.000 0.225 27 November 2015 to
26 November 2016
BRRERRANI -84 -5k
+-AZ++H +—AZt++tHZE
“E-RF
+-A=t+xH
ZY CS Contract Il 27 November 2015 Not applicable 0.405 27 November 2015 to
26 November 2016
B ARBE LI —E-1E T -5 g
+-AZ++H +—AzZt++tHZE
—E-RF
+—A=+xH
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
has received/receivable from Zhuo Yuan for financing
guarantee services fee and consultancy services fee
of total approximately RMB0.95 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.15 million) (2015: approximately
RMBO0.39 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.49

million)).

The transactions pursuant to the ZY FG Contracts and
ZY CS Contracts were constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as the major beneficial
owners of Zhuo Yuan are the relatives of Mr. Li. Further
details of the ZY FG Contracts and ZY CS Contracts are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25
November 2014 and 27 November 2015.

On 9 March 2015 and 12 March 2015, Chinlink Finance
and BREEE AT KX (bIREFBR AR (Shaanxi Gun Shi
Xin Tian Di Cultural Investment Company Limited*) (“Gun
Shi”) entered into two financing guarantee contracts
(“GS FG Contract | & 1l1”) and a consultancy services
contract ("GS CS Contract”), respectively, and on 28
March 2016, Chinlink Finance and Gun Shi entered into a
new financing guarantee contract (“GS FG Contract Ill”,
together with GS FG Contract | & I, collectively the “GS
FG Contracts”). Pursuant to the GS FG Contracts and
GS CS Contract, Chinlink Finance has agreed to provide
financing guarantee to the lending banks in favor of Gun
Shi for procuring Gun Shi in obtaining the bank loans and
Chinlink Finance has also agreed to provide corresponding
consultancy services to Gun Shi in return for services

income.

*  For identification purpose only

HE-_Z-—XEZA=Z+-—BHLFE K&
e R TR E ERRIE B R KL
R &8 B4 £4 A RE950,000T (HER
#91,150,000% L) (ZE—HF - HARK
390,0007T (85 A #7490,0008 7L ) °

HRNETZ IR EaBAARTREZHE
AL BRBETHEERE QO RIETE S
RIBANETZRHEBR EMHRAET 25
BHEXZ FHEIREEREORET
FHARBANZE—FFBERNARF B
BR-_E-—NF+—AZ+THABR-ZT—1F
t—AZ+TtRZRAMA-

R-ZE—RAF=ZANBR-_ZT—RF=A
TZH EESSREERERA R KX
L EBRAR (FEAD) PRI LM EE
BREN([RABEERENIRN]) K—17
BHRBELN (RABARBEN]) ARR
ZE-ARFZAZFTNR EEFESREHR
BAGIN—MFBEREREN ([RARMER
REHN] BREABERERE ORI &
BEIEABEEREN]) BEEEME
EREHNREAFEARBKEL EER SR
EEREMEAMERRITRHEREERIN
RETAEBERITER MEEFRSBE I
B[R = AR A 12 4548 B 75 30 R 75 A BUBR 75
WAVEREIFR -

* EHREE)
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The principal terms of the GS FG Contracts and GS CS
Contract (as amended) are set out below:

ROBREERGOLRAFARB AL (K
ER]) 2 EBIRRFHMAT -

Approximate
guarantee/  Guarantee/

Guaranteed consultancy  consultancy
Contract Contract date amount service income  service period
BR/EARE BR/EA
BHNER ELEE EREE BAMA  REHH
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AR¥BET) (AR&BET)

GS FG Contract | (as amended) 9 March 2015 (Note) 4.500 0.134 9 March 2015 to
6 March 2016
BARBEREN (KET) “E-h¥=ZANA —AF=ZANEZE
Lik:3) ZE-REZARH
GS FG Contract Il (as amended) 12 March 2015 7.000 0.040 12 March 2015 to
(Note) 22 May 2015
BARBEERE DN (KERT) 0% —RF=A+=ZAHZE
=A+Z=H —hA¥RA=1+=H
Lik:3)
GS CS Contract (as amended) 12 March 2015 Not applicable 0.080 12 March 2015 to
(Note) 22 May 2015
BRFARBEH (KELT) —E-0F TEA —E-hF¥ZA+-HE
=A+Z=H —hAFfRA=1+=H
Lik:3)
GS FG Contract Il 28 March 2016 5.000 0.125 28 March 2016 to
27 March 2017
FORMEERALN —T-RE -z /\$ A=-+NHZ
= e AN = —tF=A=t++H

Note:

On 24 March 2015, Chinlink Finance entered into the
early termination agreements (the “Early Termination
Agreements”) and supplemental agreement (the
"Supplemental Agreement”) with Gun Shi, in relation
to early terminate the GS FG Contract Il and the GS CS
Contract and to revise the guarantee amount of the GS
FG Contract | from RMB8.0 million to RMB4.5 million in
order to release Chinlink Finance as the guarantor of the
respective loans.

The Early Termination Agreements became effective on 22
May 2015 and the revised guarantee amount under the
Supplemental Agreement was effective from 3 June 2015.

Mist: R-ZE—RE=ZA -1+ WA LEFHEE
BHRATVRER LS ([REKLEH
B RwmamE ([MEBE) REEH
RELIEEORMEERENIREL LN
RIEEHUREREBEERE LDIZER
£ 5B ARKS,000,000TEE A ARK
4,500,0007C - ARG EEFERMEERS
BRZERAC

RELILHER T HFEA -+ A
EREREBRAT 2B T EREED
ﬁQ;g*ﬁE/\ﬁ:E /_:E)dz
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
received/receivable from financing guarantee services
fee and consultancy services fee of total approximately
RMBO0.19 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.23
million) (2015: approximately RMB0.04 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.05 million)) from Gun Shi pursuant
to the GS FG Contracts and GS CS Contract.

The transactions pursuant to the GS FG Contracts and
GS CS Contract were constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as 68.13% of the
equity interest of Gun Shi held by the relative of Mr.
Li. Further details of the GS FG Contracts, the GS CS
Contract, Early Termination Agreements and Supplement
Agreement are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 March 2015, 12 March 2015, 24 March
2015, 22 May 2015, 3 June 2015 and 28 March 2016.

The guarantee amount and financing guarantee services
income charged to Dewantong, Zhuo Yuan and Gun Shi
were based on the credit risk assessment to respective
parties and the prevailing market bank loan rate in the
PRC. The consultancy services income charged to the
respective parties was based on the scope of services
provided.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

(i) by the Group in the usual and ordinary course of
business;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or

from independent third parties;

(ii)  in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements and the contracts mentioned above
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and

its shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of

the Company as mentioned above.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Year are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements and include transactions
that constitute continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules

have been complied.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from

pages 35 to 51 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most
important assets and stakeholders of the Group and
their contribution and support are values at all times.
The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies according to industry benchmark as well as
the individual performance of employees. Other fringe
benefits, mandatory provident fund and share options are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form
a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “FINANCIAL
REVIEW” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
from pages 16 to 24 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" from pages 65 to 70 of
this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reasons of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duties in their respective offices or otherwise in relation
thereto.
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The Company has taken out insurance against all losses
and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against Directors and other officers
of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that

had a significant impact on it.

EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of senior management of the
Group is set up by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

The Company had adopted the Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group made

donations amounting to approximately HK$1.30 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was

held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
discussed with the management of the Company on
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters. Information on the composition of the
Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance

Report from pages 35 to 51 of this annual report.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EETSEBREZERARAT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 89 to 263, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

BFNEEERBERHZEHEA VB RE
FEHER AN RERRERERFTES
0 BER (ER—EER)MES LT
REMEMBEN - HMHATAAEEOAS
AEREMA L ABREREERBRIEME
F-RAESREZEEHMASEMZIEL
EREABETTEZ EULBEANERB BT
BERE YRERBTER UABEER
EUMBRRREE N FREMERGERRL -

BERSRNITEFNERERSSMEHRE
FESBERBEEENNELERE MEEN
12 Fr BOR 70 A% BREM 69 21 i - B 5 R (A R
PR MEBRG M B HRERTFAEAER
PR E) R B o AP R T RS - R BED
BER ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ $MW%TAW%
WA AR BIEH] - U REHEE R FRE
F-BYESER TZW*BT i B R RE 3 R
ER-BRITEBREFEESTMRANGIK
ROBBEERAFHN S ETAHAEME
ARFEEEMBEHRENBEINHRITA -

BZHEGE BAMMEGSHNEZRENRER
BEHRRMANBEZEREHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 ZE25 | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ tfr 4> |39 [ 47 Ji% 45 BR 2 W)

87



88

Independent Auditor’s Report
A IR &

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2016, and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AR 1R i S H A 2 T i A R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % ~F—NE=H =+ —H IL4FE

2016 2015
—E-XxE —T—h4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FTHER T T
Revenue A 7 201,297 252,393
Cost of sales and services SHE R AR 7S A AR (149,966) (196,603)
Gross profit EH 51,331 55,790
Other income, gains and losses H s Fle= R BB 9 (2,875) 10,810
Gain on fair value change of investment & &% 2 A F{E
properties FH) U 18 16,556 8,762
Gain on bargain purchase in acquisition W —EH B Q72
of a subsidiary HEEEBE W= 35 309,966 -
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHRK A (8,156) (5,751)
Administrative expenses THAX
— equity-settled share-based — RS EE ARG
payments BEM Z AR (7,339) (12,169)
— other administrative expenses —HEMTBAX (73,328) (52,617)
(80,667) (64,786)
Finance costs B BB AR 10 (119,167) (80,983)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRELRDE R (E5E) 13 166,988 (76,158)
Income tax expense P58 X 14 (7,928) (4,031)
Profit (loss) for the year KEE @A (FEE) 159,060 (80,189)
Other comprehensive expense Ht2mEAX
Item that may be subsequently Hig B EE
reclassified to profit or loss: EmoIEE :
Exchange difference arising on RMEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE = %A (7,660) (1,479)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  ZN4E fZ 44 2 [ WA
for the year (XZH) 151,400 (81,668)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AR 1R i S H A 22 T i A R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #% % —/N4E = =+ —H L4

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FExT TFAET
Profit (loss) for the year EEEERR (BE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABHEE A 157,663 (80,189)
Non-controlling interests B3l g 1,397 =
159,060 (80,189)
Total comprehensive income EEFEZEEA (BX)
(expense) for the year wE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE? ¥ =IN 151,301 (81,668)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A 99 -
151,400 (81,668)
Earnings (loss) per share BRERN (EE) 16
— Basic —HK HK6.05 cents 4l HK(3.65) cents /1l
— Diluted —#58 HK6.04 cents &4l HK(3.65) cents /&1L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2016 R -F—X4E=ZHA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XF —hf
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FERT FAT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment e e L 17 25,220 24,921
Investment properties A 18 2,647,938 244,416
Intangible assets EmILEE 3,946 6,201
Deposit paid for acquisition of W EE 2
investment properties [RENE & 19 32,312 33,720
Deposit paid for prepaid lease AN T ERIE 2
payments for land EffiES 20 29,918 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of a U B — MM E AR Z
subsidiary [BENE & 35 - 30,000
Amounts due from former subsidiaries  J& U 51 ff /B A 7] BR 18 21 11,937 =
Deposits and prepayments 7 & R IR FRE 577 770
2,751,848 340,028
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 22 3,251 2,006
Deposit paid for prepaid lease T HAERE
payments for land [EANE& 20 - 31,223
Accrued revenue FEEHUR A 3,123 5,520
Trade receivables F’EH&E% BEIE 23 6,433 70,183
Trade receivables from related EYWEEARICES
companies BRI8 23 208 5,803
Loan receivables el & X 23 77,381 10,030
Bills receivables A 24 - 2,332
Other receivables, deposits and HibfEWERTE - 12 e &
prepayments A IR 20,996 11,799
Amounts due from former subsidiaries & U 5l ff B A 78R 18 21 5,793 21,306
Pledged bank deposits BHEFRITER 25 235,206 344,601
Bank balances and cash RITEGFENMRS 25 48,975 67,145
401,366 571,948
Current liabilities mEAE
Deferred revenue RIEU A 2,057 2,382
Trade payables B2 58R1R 26 13,664 75,244
Other payables and accruals H A ARTE &
ezt & R 32,895 16,192
Loans from staff ETER 11,838 =
Construction costs accruals fE ST IR SERN R 206,134 38,548
Receipts in advance TE W FRIA 27 31,607 2,649
Deposits received from tenants M P KBz & E 27 25,110 =
Amounts due to former subsidiaries FE A R BY /B & 7] BRIA 21 - 9,536
Amounts due to related companies JEHREE A B BRIA 28 37,817 22,195
Amount due to a director B —REEKIA 28 16,320 -
Provision for warranty IRE R 219 1,999
Financing guarantee contracts BEERE A 41 2,418 2,935
Tax payable JESBIIE 6,132 3,453
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMEK 29 112,454 9,396
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%F B EH 32 430,506 =
8.0% coupon bonds 8.0%E B EFH 32 201,684 =
7.5% convertible bonds 7.5% 0 R EH 33 - 294,472
Obligations under finance leases B & E A 798 942
1,131,653 479,943
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2016 A Z=F—RNE=ZH=+—H

2016 2015
—RE —ET—hF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FExT FA&T
Net current (liabilities) assets RE (BB EEEE (730,287) 92,005
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 2,021,561 432,033
Non-current liabilities ERBEEB
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% A] #2 % f& 5 33 66,683 —
Conversion option derivative AR BRES 2
embedded in convertible bonds ?ﬁ‘ﬂﬂéf AT H 33 7,891 =
8.0% coupon bonds 8.0%ZEEEH 32 - 193,621
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0 /oT = % % 32 128,380 =
7.5% coupon bonds 75@j—ut\%= 32 198,546 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 30 200,917 7,707
Receipts in advance TE\J'&/‘B)\ \ 27 32,169 =
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 29 267,247 -
Amounts due to former subsidiaries FEAS BB /B A 7] 21 6,437 =
Obligations under finance leases AU E M E AR 1,481 2,352
909,751 203,680
1,111,810 228,353
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital & s 31 34,896 28,546
Reserves & 662,859 199,807
Equity attributable to owners of the RNAEEE ARG
Company 2 697,755 228,353
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR M 414,055 =
1,111,810 228,353

BEER_FT—RNFENA
E89H FEF263H ZFRA
EOWHUATRERER

=+ RBEHIIRN
AR LT

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 263
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Weibin SIU Wai Yip
F R mEX
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
TE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equ

FE=ZH=

—N

—%
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Notes:

(i)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % ~F—NE=H =+ —H IL4FE

The entities established in the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC") are required to appropriate 10% of its
net profit, as determined under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (2006) and other
relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital, provided that the balance of
statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

In pursuant to the Interim Measures for the Administration
of Financing Guarantee Companies issued at 1 September
2010 by the Shaanxi Province government authorities
in the PRC, companies providing financing guarantee
services shall establish unearned premium reserve equal
to 50% of guarantee premium recognised during the
year and indemnification reserve of no less than 1% of
the outstanding guarantee balances. Balance at end of
the reporting period represents difference between such
required reserve and the financing guarantee contracts
liabilities the Group has already provided for.

Wt -

0

(ii)

M EARLME ([HE])KZNERA
HEEAEAE910% (AR 5 o B A B AR AR A &
Bl et R (ZTTRF) RE AR
ROEE)IBRELEERRFER BEEH
2 B & ANE50%

FERERP BTN EROERRTE AE
MWERT RERBFEEN BRRBHRE
B(WA) TAEREER EEZENME
BEETRRFHRERTSEREMELRD
25% °

REBETFBERAEBRTHAR=_F—FF N
H—B#MHm (BEERFRAREEETH
) BE REREEERREZARIAR
IARIBEEERS (HERFERNERNE
RUABIS0% ) - AR ERBEELEEBS (T
ERREBERERE1% ) - MEREH
EAMRERBRASE DR ZREER
BREEZER-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % % —NE=H =+ —H L4

96

2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e K
Profit (loss) before taxation R AT = A1 (B548) 166,988 (76,158)
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Interest income F B Z8 (12,407) (8,573)
Finance costs B 7% Bk AN 119,167 80,983
Adjustment on amounts due from I =N
former subsidiaries BRIE 2 FH B 5,747 =
Adjustment on amounts due to XL ENG
former subsidiaries BRI 2 A (3,099) -
Gain on bargain purchase in Wi —EHB AR Z
acquisition of a subsidiary EEEE W= (309,966) =
Imputed interest income from amounts &I AT B A & BR 18
due from former subsidiaries ZIHEF B A (2,172) (1,905)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BE &
equipment RBITE 3,231 2,163
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIER B AR
doubtful debts, net FEE (456) (885)
Write down of inventories iR 17 & 1,021 =
Equity-settled share based REREER®G
payments AT R 7,339 12,169
(Reversal of provision) provision for RE (BHERED)
warranty recognised BEER (102) 1,709
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  KE R
plant and equipment B2 EE 1 =
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE 2,255 564
Gain on fair value change of BREWE 2 N E
investment properties FH) s (16,556) (8,762)
Gain on fair value change of BARRBRES 2
conversion option derivative BmREITETA
embedded in convertible bonds REEEY = (4,324) =
Exchange difference on translation of SENRRIFEGH
intra group balances MECIERZEZR 5,168 407
Operating cash flows before movements % & & & & )7l
in working capital KERBME (38,165) 1,712
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (8mn)md (2,266) 2,205
Decrease in accrued revenue FE TR AUR 2,397 4,370
Decrease (increase) in trade U 2 2R TR R
receivables (3Z0) 69,119 (62,604)
Decrease (increase) in bills receivable FEYE B (3 m) 2,332 (2,332)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivable JEWAE AT 2 Z 5
from a related company BRIER A (420) 5,437 (184)
Long term rental deposits paid ENERHAEE RS - (590)
Increase in other receivables, HEibEIWERTE - 2 e Rk
deposits and prepayments B A< IR I 0 (3,087) (991)
(Increase) decrease in loan receivables  FEYTE X (3240) k2> (67,565) 11,080
Decrease in deferred revenue iR T Y AR (325) (45,144)
(Decrease) increase in trade EE S8RE (D)
payables 0 (61,580) 62,166
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance FBURFRIE (J5 4> ) 12 hn (10,534) 1,729
Refund of deposits from tenants REMPE® (1,777) =
Increase in other payables E b RS ERTE R
and accruals FEET & F3E N 3,671 3,342
Utilisation of provision for warranty REREFER (1,678) (164)
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Net cash used in operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Profits Tax paid outside
Hong Kong

Interest received

NET CASH USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of time deposit
Repayment from former subsidiaries
Net cash inflow on acquisition of

a subsidiary
Interest received

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % ~F—NE=H =+ —H IL4FE

REERREFE
ENEEBNEH
ENEEAIMEZ
S B

B WF 8

REXBERZ
BE 38

REXE
Y 13 7 53 757 3K
A1 B /BB 2 R)3& 5K

FRAWBE-RHNBAR

ZHERNFER
2 W F 8

Purchase of property, plant and equipmentis & %1 % i = & 5%
Additions of investment properties under R B EZ R EME K

construction and leasehold land
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

HE T
FEDERRTER
Yo Bl B A IR1T 17 K

Deposit paid for acquisition of investment U BE 14 & ¥ % 2

properties
Deposit paid for acquisition of
a subsidiary

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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B
WE—FHRBEARZ
B

BREXRKME (EH)

ZBE R

2016
—E—-XF

NOTE HK$’000
Wi TERT

(104,021)
(22)

(5.810)
214

(109,639)

35
24,482
12,407
(1,398)

(17,681)

(300,550)
409,488

126,748

2015
—T—RF
HK$'000
FET

(25,405)

(3,445)
4,920

(23,930)

69,514
293

8,543
(3,393)

(193,779)
(492,582)
487,783

(33,796)

(30,000)

(187,417)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % — % —

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of 8.0%
coupon bonds
Expenses on issue of 8.0%
coupon bonds
Proceeds from issue of 7.5% coupon
bonds
Expenses on issue of 7.5%
coupon bonds
Proceeds from issue of 10.0%
convertible bonds
Expenses on issue of 10.0%
convertible bonds
Interest paid
New other borrowings raised
New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of other borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Advance from staff
Advance from a director
Repayment of obligations of
finance leases
Increase in bank overdraft
Repayment of bank overdraft
Repayment of 6.5% coupon bonds
Repayment of 7.5% convertible bonds
Repayment of 12.0% coupon bonds
Proceeds from issue of shares
Expense on issue of shares
Advance from related companies

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 APRIL

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 MARCH,

represented by bank balances and cash

NEZA =+ —HIEFE

NOTE
Kz

eSS
EITB.0%NELES
P15 5018
BETRO0%ZEEHZ
X
?X{‘ﬂ SWOKA;,\ ,\3‘7%
P18 5838
%&ﬂ5%¥wﬁ%z
7
2£1710.0% A #2 j (& 5
FT8 518
%ﬁmo% AR (& 5
2Rz
AR
I EMER
FIERITER
EEEMER
EEETER
REEB T ZHK
KE—RBEZEN
EERmERE
FHE
RITHE S IE N
BERITEX
1%}&6 5 /o—r o fiﬁ
B&7. 5%7?’*‘!&1&#
BEI120%EZEEA
%ﬁhﬁ%%ﬂﬁ
BIIRMZAX
Eb= NGB

R (O

BMEXK (EH) AT
ZREFHE

ReRkREEEER
B F

ROA—BRZHER
REEEER

SEEREEH 2

E/
2

R=A=+—H2
HEPREEHE
REBITEFRES

2016

—E—RE

HK$'000
TERT

200,000
(16,000)
77,505

(2,829)
(60,787)
26,298
53,046
(18,257)
(64,097)

1,189
16,320

(1,015)
4,875

(233,813)
(32,000)

16,811
(32,754)

(15,645)
67,145

(2,525)

48,975
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2015
—hF
HK$'000
TAET

200,000

(16,159)

(38,660)
150,000
2,332
(195,000)
(797)
273

(466)

(4,921)
(190,450)

192,500
(315)
22,244

120,581

(90,766)
158,925

(1,014)

67,145




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted limited liability entity and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wealth Keeper
International Limited (“Wealth Keeper”),
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Wealth Keeper
is Mr. Li Weibin, the chairman and managing
director of the Company. The address of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
trading of consumer goods (including trading of
furniture and fixtures) and electronic components
and interior decoration works in Hong Kong and
Macau and provision of financing guarantee
services and consultancy services in the logistic
industry in the PRC. During current year, the
Company has acquired a new business engaging in
property investment. Details are set out in note 35.

Having considered the major subsidiaries of
the Company are mainly engaged in trading of
consumer goods and electronic components and
interior decoration works in Hong Kong and Macau,
of which most transactions are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$"), the functional currency
of the Company is HK$. The presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements is also
HK$.

N E

HEE
ZNU/NECIDEN NIEIE B3 20 g VAl o350
REREERA EROEEBHS
RHMBRAG ([BRRFR]) Lo
HEERBKRERQARDNER#
M R B B sk it A 32 2 Wealth Keeper
International Limited ([Wealth
Keeper |) ' iffWealth KeeperZ 4%
ERBEASFEREE (RNRAERE
REFMEKIR) ARRAFMPEE
MEBEEWENMIERANFERZ
[ARIER] RREE -

ARABIREER AT - HHE QA
ZEIBXBOREEREER (B
BRREKEES) REFEHES R
FEEMBRFAREEARMHITRE  ERX
PR EREREEFRRSE EYRT
EZBRRE - AFEEAR ARAER
B-HEUENEREZHEY BH
AFIEERMIRE3S ©

ZEINARFAZEEMBLRARANEIE
HEERHERREFZEHEZIAR
REBLRFAREEARGH TR H
PABORHTHAET ([BT])ET
B BARRZWEEEBET A
MBEBERZEINEBNRAETT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

the directors of the Company have given careful

consideration to the future liquidity of the Group
in light of the fact that, as of 31 March 2016,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$730,287,000.

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:

(1

the availability of the Group's existing credit
facilities of approximately HK$1,030,000,000
- a new long-term credit facility of
HK$400,000,000 from a controlling
shareholder of the Company obtained in
June 2016, in which HK$120,000,000 has
been drawn down; and a long-term bank
loan facility available as at 31 March 2016
of approximately HK$630,000,000, in which
HK$175,000,000 has been drawn down; and

the proposed placement of HK$300,000,000
convertible bonds (the “Proposed
Placement”) — on 29 March 2016, the
Group has entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent to issue convertible
bonds under general mandate with principal
amount of approximately HK$300,000,000
in two tranches. The Company re-negotiated
the terms with the placing agent and on 16
June 2016, the Company and the placing
agent re-entered into an engagement letter

to continue the Proposed Placement,

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

mE kWA
BEX (&)
REEGAVBEHRRE ENAEE

R-EBE—R"FE=ZA=+—RHZR5HE
& R %8 B B) & EE 49730,287,0007%
T ARBEFEREEREAEEH
RIKBFE Mo

ARAEFETINERAEBZEERR
B - AT R

(1

AREBAUESZREBEEER
& #71,030,000,00058 jT — A&
RAIRZE—R"FENAB—%
ERBRFRESZ2HRAEE
B & 400,000,000/ 7T » H
120,000,000 jT B 2 B :
FRZE—-—ARE=ZH=1+—
HRIESZ RHRTE R
& 49630,000,000/% T * &
175,000,000/ 7L E B HREL: &

# 5% B 300,000,000 7T
TR ESs(EREES
B|) - R-—_ZT—X<XF=ZA
Zt+hB AEEEHEE
REBITZEEHBZEURE—
BEBESMAETASEL
300,000,000/ JT 2 7] # f% 1&
F o AN ) BB E R IR E AT
BER R_TE—X "FEXA
+ARB AARHEEERES
AL ZRE LA B 1T 3
AL EEIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i 3R I T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

the directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the

first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of the above amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HE KRR

HE (&)

AAREERA AEBEABAR
BELSRREHEBABRETER
7] I8 B AR BV E 2 B R AT - AR R Uk
B REMERRDEFEEEE
2 ey

V& R 35T R ARAERT
BRMBHREER
(TEBHMBHREED])
RAFE AEBEECERER TS
EREGHMAG ([ERGHAAR])
M2 BAEHBREERZIBETA

BRGHENE 9%  RTRNHE:

(B3T%K) EEHH
BAI KRG ER BANBREE=3-F
(BEIAR) ER_T-_ERHAY
FEME
BEMBREEN=F——

FRNHREER
(BaT%) ER_T-ZFEHC

ERbE

RAFEREM LMEBM GRS LA
ZEFT AL EHANEBRAFEE LB
EFEZHBRATMAR,RZF
REMBHRERABZEEENTMNE
REE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—RF =1 =+—H IL4FF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFHITREEBIT
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL EEMBHREER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (ERMBHREEL])

(continued) (%)

AREE E KRR ER T 5IE 8 M =
REBZ I REERTEEYBRE

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective: AR

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? BEAYKREENER SpTIA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with EEUBREENZISE HRPFAHZEE
customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases? ARBMBHREENF 165 HE

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements to HKFRSs BB R EER ﬁ/’égﬂ‘kiﬁi’ﬁﬁﬂ
2012-2014 cycle! (3T %) —FE M

ﬂ%ﬁZﬁTEﬁL’E*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*

Entities: Applying the

BRMBREERE10%R
(B2 REAE:

S SO0 <,

— o

HESRAREER
84 YN
AEA nZFEJE’Jéf“‘

BR ER&aARZD

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception' (BETA) BAUBRE I
RAZ125 (B4
A EERIF8%
(ggx)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of ERUBASENZNT MBRASRKESL
interests in joint operations' (gax) giRE
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 BEMBREEAZIR BFEHHREEAES
“Revenue from contracts with (BTXK) RIEREFANIN
customers"? N fi] &R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative' ﬁ?(%{%é}rf)ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ REIHH
H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable BREHEANZICH  MEREBBZURAR
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and (E5A) REBE: ERR'
amortisation' EAIZ38% (E51A)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants’ BRGHENZICE ~ RRLEMED
and HKAS 41 SCHENS LT
RIS HES) \
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative® %?(%{%E}r%ﬂ'J%7?ﬁ BREEHLS
’H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets BB G ERE125 RAZRBRRDE
for Unrealised Losses® (BATXK) EHEEE
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ' RZTE—RF-—A—Bkz&ER®
1 January 2016. ZEEBBRER-
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZZE—N\F—A—HxkzEHRHA
1 January 2018. ZFEBBAES-
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 RZZE-NF-—HA—B=z&R%K
1 January 2019. ZEERE AR
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 MASEE 2 B 2 BB 2 FE
a date to be determined. AR AR

3 R-ZE—+tF—HA Bz &K
ZEREHABAER -

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E % —NF=H =+—H ILFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will

supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

P& R 3 5] R AR 4B FT
ERUBREER
(EEMBREED])
(#&)

BEHNBEHEERZE 165 [HE ]

FEEMBHRELENF165R K ERE
HESRAE B G ERF 175 [
B 5 ABE—ABEASTREREAL
REABARSBEE12EANME
HERREERAB KIEFHEBEE
REBEEE-ARBME REFE
BRI E165% - AEARER
EREEE (RREEEEAHEMRA
EEE)PHEAR(RTEBELEX
NEERIE) - Bt A&HE A EHERE
REEEFEREERGEMNS L&
HERBENRSERDER/LSE S
RREEBD ERERERTEI -4
S EREEERMERBNIRR
BEEEGFE-FERFBETAFEHEEE
N HERABRAGESERITRE
BERTEEMEE I TTEREEEM
FUERENBERT  HREEERE
PP H B 53R - Ut & 7 BE 32 050K B K
BMAGHZBRETR REERANR
BERENEB G ERNFITRDE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
(continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types
of leases differently.

As set out in note 36, total operating lease
commitment as lessee of the Group in respect of
leased premises as at 31 March 2016 amounted
to HK$7,869,000, the directors of the Group do
not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared
with the current accounting policy would result
in significant impact on the Group’s result but
it is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9
was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 R I T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—RF =1 =+—H L4 F

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

(continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

(continued)

o In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

o The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been
introduced.
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108

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may result in
provision of 12 months and lifetime expected credit
losses on financial assets and financial liabilities and
is not likely to have other material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group based on

an analysis of the Group’s existing business model.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related Interpretations when it becomes

effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers” (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the

Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations

in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have
a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed

review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’'s
financial performance and positions and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new CO (Cap 622) regarding
preparation of accounts and directors’ report and
audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2016 have been changed to comply
with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidation financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that deferred tax assets
or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income

Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when

applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related tax.

Revenue from contract that includes both interior
decoration services as well as sales of furniture and
fixtures is recognised based on the substance of
each separately identifiable component. Revenue
from sale of furniture is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed. Revenue from
interior decoration services is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
at the end of the reporting period, determined as
the proportion of the value of work certified by
independent surveyors relative to the total contract
sum. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that

they have been agreed with the customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at

which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing

managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor

effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured

reliably;
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Income from provision of financing guarantee
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the guarantee period.

Management fee income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of relevant contract

period.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Revenue from provision of logistic services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract
period.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

For contracts where the revenue recognised exceeds
progress billing based on milestones as set out
in the services agreement, the costs incurred but
not yet billed, plus recognised profit, is recognised
and shown as accrued revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position. For contracts where
progress billings exceed revenue recognised, the net
amount is shown as deferred revenue.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held-for-use in production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, other
than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and

their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land currently held
for undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

In the circumstances where the Group determines
that the fair value of an investment property under
construction is not reliably measurable but the fair
value of the property is expected to be reliably
measurable when construction is complete, such
investment property under construction is measured
at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
measurable or construction is completed (whichever
is earlier).

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under construction.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF=H =+—H IL4FF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period

in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives (other than those not
yet available for use) is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets that are not yet available for use
are carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

FTEST
BR (&)

MEMERGEAEENRER LD HR
BRABOBETABEANEE-FTA
HHERI REERE-

A2 B (E A THA
REHENFREHREREERR
FA< o

EREMERANEERBERIKE
MAFEXEEEEENRNRE
(HABREE) BRAAEEEE R
HEANEREERGS M BRRE
SIfERE T EAHE -

HEMNRZRLNBER RBERE
BRbzEEE DR EthEZER
BH RN E EEE -BEMX
BEEIN B R A RERR -

A& EE A

KELEHENHESKRARABHEY
NEREN B AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %5 | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ tr 4> |39 | 47 Ji% 45 B 2 W)

123



124

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of

translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share options granted to employees and

consultants providing the similar services

For share options granted to the directors,
employees and consultants providing similar
services to the Group, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the

share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “results
before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company has reviewed the
Group's investment properties and concluded
that substantially all of the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the director of
the Company has determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the
Group’s investment properties has been measured
based on the tax consequences of recovering the

carrying amounts entirely through use.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H K M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF=H =+—H IL4FF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEgit
POLICIES (continued) BE (&)
Taxation (continued) TiIE (&)
Inventories FE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FETDRKARAZEFEIRES
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials PIRR - ABREEZEYMR K (WEA)
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those BEEIEARANURBFEEXERRH
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the BEMRAHEZREE -FERAT
inventories to their present location and condition. KAMEFARRESE -

Costs of inventories are calculated using the

weighted average cost method.

Retirement benefits costs RKEFER

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme A E B KB R EE RIS
and state-managed retirement benefit scheme MetElm@t 2ERERERBES
are recognised as an expense when employees HZAHKE  BRERX -

have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

1 30 CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ v 4> [ B 5 6 45 PR 23 7 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 53R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, bills receivables, loan receivable,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
former subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables,
the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 )
BR (&)

EREE (&)

ERREREBRTEABBEERAE
FE A SR M A2 U BE T 45 3 48 R B MY IR AT
ELRMEE -NBERERER ERNE
WEE(BREKRESER BKRE
B RWER HMRERERZS
KR ELRRE SHEMRETHE
RAEBITEFRRE) DERAERM
FROE Yo 55 P AR AT AT BRI E S
RATIERAEREEZRENS
TR -

R A DA B B SRR - 14 B
B MR E (R F| B R TEEA) B
b o

EHEEZRE
ERRERFBAREREHRTEHR
BEREDR BEXNEYREARE
EEEBRTER N EBEFRN G
ARREREAN B RERZER KR
EWRIRRELEN —HASHENM
BB RRE

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ th 4> [ B 42 it A B 2 W] | ANINUAL REPORT 2016 ZE 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables,
such as trade receivables, bills receivables, and
loan receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables
is reduced by the impairment loss directly of all
loans and receivables with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities other than derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities other than derivative financial
instruments including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, construction costs accruals,
loans from staff, deposits from tenants, amount
due to a director, amounts due to former
subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies,
the debt component of the 10% convertible
bonds, 8.0%, 7.5% and 12% coupon bonds,
bank overdraft, obligations under finance leases
and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as

an equity instrument.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The value of early redemption option derivatives
embedded in the convertible bonds which is closely
related to the convertible bonds is included in
the liability component. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds and warrants

reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, is not remeasured and will remain in
convertible bonds and warrants reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds and warrants
reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
bonds and warrants reserve will be released to the
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

The component parts of the convertible loan notes
issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is a

conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component
and conversion option derivative are recognised
at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible loan notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss

depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

A financing guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the Group to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder i.e. banks, for a loss it
incurs because a specified customer fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. The
financing guarantee contract is initially measured
at fair value as represented by the consideration
received from the specified customers and the
consideration received is recognised as revenue
on straight-line basis over the guarantee period.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financing guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 "Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the Group's revenue recognition policy.

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgment that the
directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group's
deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale be rebutted. Accordingly,
deferred taxation in relation to the Group's
investment properties has been measured based
on the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amounts entirely through use.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from the Land and the Commercial Complex
that are measured using the fair value model,
the concessionary tax rate of 15% is applied as it
is recognised as “Go-west” region development
programme corporate which is entitled to apply the
rate of 15%. The directors of the Company believe
that the Company can keep applying the 15%
concessionary tax rate under “Go West” region

development programme.

4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

When there is objective evidence of an impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows to determine the
impairment loss. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. At the end of the reporting
period, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$6,433,000, net off with allowance for bad
and doubtful debts of HK$1,672,000 (2015:
HK$70,183,000, net off with allowance for bad and
doubtful debts of HK$2,128,000). Details are set
out in note 23.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision for financing guarantee contracts

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the Group recognises the provisions of
financing guarantee contracts. Such estimation is
based on the available information as at reporting
date and is determined by the Group’s practical
experience, the default history, financial position
of relevant customers assessed on an individual
basis in the industry and taking into consideration
of industry information and market data. Where
the actual obligation the Group requires to fulfill is
more than expected, a material provision may arise.
Amount of corporate guarantee provided by the
Group is disclosed in note 41.

Fair value of investment properties

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has applied a market value basis which
involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
prices realised on actual sales or arising prices of
comparable properties, comparable properties are
analysed and carefully weighed against all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market values, asset was used in its highest and
best use or selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

148

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4. BARGEHE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION Kbt REEZ
UNCERTAINTY (continued) FERR (&)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

As described in Note 33, the Directors use
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For
embedded derivative components of the convertible
bonds, binomial model is used for valuation
of the components which involves several key
assumptions and estimates including share price
volatility, dividend yield and risk-free rate. As at 31
March 2016, the fair value of embedded derivative
components of the convertible loan notes is
approximately HK$7,891,000 (2015: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
the amounts due to related companies, 10.0%
convertible bonds, 8.0%, 7.5% and 12.0% coupon
bonds, financing from a director and bank and
other borrowings which are disclosed in notes 28,
32, 33 and 29 respectively and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated losses and profit.
The directors of the Company monitor current
and expected liquidity requirement as well as the
summary compliance report on loan covenants
regularly. The directors of the Company review the
capital structure on a continuous basis. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends
and issuance of new shares as well as raise of new
bank/other borrowings or advances from related
parties and the repayment of existing bank/other
borrowings or repayment to related companies.
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A7 BB R I R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. S®WTAH
Categories of financial instruments TR TEDR
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables (including & & fE Uk B 18
cash and cash equivalents) (BREEeERESEEER) 425,796 522,463
Financial liabilities LHRAE
Amortised cost IR 1,732,117 659,204
Financial liabilities classified as DERBAAFET ABEZRD
at FVTPL — conversion option TREBE-—TBRES
derivative embedded in Ff7 Bt 422 A A
convertible bonds PTETA 7,891 =
Financing guarantee contracts BEERE X 2,418 2,935
Obligations under finance leases &l & f & & & 2,279 3,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and bills receivables, loan receivable, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due from/
to former subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a director, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, construction cost accruals, other payables
and accruals, loans from staff, obligations under
finance leases, bank and other borrowings, 10.0%
convertible bonds, conversion option derivative
embedded in convertible bonds, 8.0%, 7.5% and
12.0% coupon bonds and financing guarantee
contracts. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk, and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
G5 A TS o 3R MY

b = |

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T@MIA
(continued) (%)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B 7% B b B IR B AR R B
(continued) =
Market risk 7% /2
Currency risk g
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign ARBIHETHWHEBRRABUINEFEZ
currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign HE  SAKEEERINERRR - LN
currency risk. In addition, certain trade receivables, REMNEBER 2INEEBIN 5F
bills receivables, bank balances and trade payables FEWE ZERIE - BINER R1TTETR
are denominated in foreign currencies other than FERT B 5 RRIE AN FH(E
the functional currency of the respective group
entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign AN 52 (B 35 e I A ONEE SR IR © AT
currency hedging policy. However, management EREEeESI ERRTERAETE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will R R ERIINE RS
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s foreign MWONEHBEZ A RBEEREERE
currency denominated monetary assets and BERBEAHCEABNT
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-Af —T-0F CZB-Af C—T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET TR THT
Macau Pataca (“MOP") R (TAMz]) - 6,039 - 36
United States dollars ("US$") %7t ([%7T]) 112 63,648 77,192 63,473
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TAR%]) 30,775 31,333 - -
30,887 101,020 77,192 63,509
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

For certain group entities whose functional
currency is HK$, the change in exchange rate of its
functional currency against MOP or US$ respectively
has not been considered in the sensitivity analysis
below as HK$ is pegged to US$ and MOP is always
stabilised with unchanged value to HKS$. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group does not expect any significant movements
between the exchange rate of US$ and MOP
against HKS.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has significant
monetary assets denominated in RMB as the foreign
currency of the group entity. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end
for a 5% change in the foreign currency exchange
rate. A positive number below indicates increase in
post-tax profit (2015: decrease in post-tax loss) for
the year where RMB strengthen 5% against HKS,
the functional currency of the group entity. For a
5% weakening of RMB against HK$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit (2015: post-tax loss) for the year and the
balances below would be negative.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

TRMITAR

SR EE B R MR

TS ER (&)

=7q A

435 )
sG]

BREDN (&)

RMB
AR
Year ended 31 March
BE-ZHA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—RfF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Increase in post-tax profit FRRTIE T
for the year EF 1,285 =
Decrease in post-tax loss FARTIIEER
for the year VR - 1,309

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk in relation to RMB
impact as the end of the reporting period exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the impact of interest rate changes
on variable-rate bank borrowing, variable-rate bank
overdraft, variable-rate loan receivable, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the impact of interest rate
changes on obligations under finance leases, fixed-
rate bank and other borrowing, 8.0%, 7,5% and
12.0% coupon bonds and 10.0% convertible
bonds.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section in this note. The Group cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate
(“HIBOR"”), Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate and
based rate fixed by People’s Bank of China (“PBOC
Rate”) arising from the Group's HK$ and RMB
denominated borrowings as well as the Group’s
HK$ denominated loan receivable.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

For the variable-rate bank balances at 31 March
2016 and 2015, the directors consider the Group’s
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal taking into account the minimal fluctuation
on market interest rate and the carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below were determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
variable-rate bank borrowing, variable-rate bank
overdraft and variable-rate loan receivable at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis was
prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
point (2015: 25 basis point) increase or decrease
represented management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2015: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/
increase by HK$554,000 (2015: post-tax loss
decrease/increase by HK$6,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the end of the
reporting period exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

The Group is required to estimate the fair value
of the conversion option derivative embedded in
the convertible note at the end of each reporting
period with changes in fair value to be recognized
in the profit or loss as long as the convertible note
is outstanding. The fair value adjustment will be
affected either positively or negatively, amongst
others, by the changes in market interest rate,
the Company’s share market price and share price
volatility.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk and volatility risk arising from conversion option
derivative at the end of the reporting period only
as the directors of the Company consider that
the change in market interest rate may not have
significant financial impact on the fair value of
conversion option derivative.

If the Company’s share price had been 5%
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the
year (as a result of changes in fair value of
conversion option derivative) would increase
by approximately HK$2,090,000/decrease by
approximately HK$740,000.

If the volatility of the Company’s share price
had been 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 (as a result of changes in fair value of
conversion option derivative) would increase
by approximately HK$530,000/decrease by
approximately HK$521,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financing guarantees provided
by the Group arises from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financing guarantees provided by the Group as
disclosed in the note 41.

In order to minimize the credit risk in relation
to receivable generated from interior decoration
work and trading of consumer goods, regarding
counterparties failure to discharge the obligation
to the Group, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt as stated above, loan receivable and
amounts due from former subsidiaries at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Regarding the policies in order to minimize the
credit risks of the loan receivable, only referral
customers and short term borrowing requests
are accepted. Besides, the credit department is
responsible for formulating appropriate credit
policies. It also conducts background and credit
searches and carries out credit assessment and
submits proposal to executive directors of the
Company for further consideration. Then the
executive directors of the Company take reference
of these information and assess the financial
position of each referral customer to consider if
the loan is approved. Subsequently, the credit
department performs subsequent loan review
regularly to assess if any outstanding loan requires
attention to its collectability.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In relation to the Group providing guarantees to
secure obligations of customers for repayment
of their bank borrowings, if there is a default
in repayment by these customers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding bank
borrowings together with any accrued interests
and penalties owed by the customers to banks.
Such guarantees will be released by banks upon
the repayment of the underlying loans. In order to
minimize the credit risks of these loans, only referral
customers are accepted and short term guarantees
are granted. Besides, the credit department conduct
background and credit searches and submit to
executive directors of the Company for further
consideration. Then the executive directors of the
Company take reference of these information
and assess the financial position of each referral
customer before the guarantee is granted. In
addition, the credit department performs site visit
and loan review regularly to ensure follow up
action is taken to recover overdue debts, if any.
Further, certain portion of those loans had been
settled by the customers to banks subsequently. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk on such guarantees is
significantly reduced. Detailed disclosure of these

guarantees is set out in note 41.

The Group's bank balances and pledged bank
deposits, are placed with banks of high credit rating
and reputation and the Group has limited exposure
to any single financial institution.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in Hong Kong and Macau,
which account for 28.6% (2015: 98.8%) of the
trade and bills receivables and 100% of the loan
receivable (2015: 100%). Further, the Group has
concentration of credit risk of the refundable
deposit paid for prepaid lease payments for land. In
the opinion of directors of the Company, given such
deposit is placed at the PRC government authority
directly, relevant credit risk is limited.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 84.5% of the total trade and bills
receivables is due from one of the Group’s major
customer. Such trade receivables had been fully
settled by this customer during current year. At
31 March 2016, the Group has the concentration
of credit risk as 85% (2015: 100%) from the
loan receivable due from a company which is the
subsidiary of a listed company in Hong Kong with
sound financial position and an individual borrower
which is director and owner of a construction
company with sound financial position (2015:
a company which is the subsidiary of a listed
company in Canada with sound financial position).
Management of the Company assigned a team to
closely follow up the debts due. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider the risk has been
properly addressed. Other than that, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Other than the concentration of credit risk on bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills
receivables, loan receivable and amounts due from
former subsidiaries, the Group has no significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings.

The Group relied on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. The Group
monitored and reviewed periodically the conditions
of loan covenants of the existing banking facilities
and tried all efforts to comply with the loan
covenants. In case of any breach of the loan
covenants noted, the Group would communicate
with the respective bank to discuss the possibility of
revising the relevant loan covenants and arranging

for waiver of immediate repayment.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:

(1

the availability of the Group's existing
credit facilities of approximately
HK$1,030,000,000 - a new long-
term credit facility of HK$400,000,000
from a controlling shareholder of the
Company obtained in June 2016, in which
HK$120,000,000 has been drawn down;
and a long-term bank loan facility available
as at 31 March 2016 of approximately
HK$630,000,000, in which HK$175,000,000
has been drawn down; and

the Proposed Placement — on 29 March
2016, the Group has entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to issue
convertible bonds under general mandate
with principal amount of approximately
HK$300,000,000 in two tranches. The
Company re-negotiated the terms with the
placing agent and on 16 June 2016, the
Company and the placing agent re-entered
into an engagement letter to continue the
Proposed Placement,

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

the directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. E@WMIA
(continued) (%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) % (&)

Liquidity tables

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or 3 months Total carrying
effective less than to 1-2 Over undiscounted  amounts at

interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 31.3.2016
RZB-XR%F
mE¥s RERS ZfiRZ BRS¢ =A=1-H
ERAE  DHR=fEA -5 -FERE BBRE nEEE ZBREE
% per annum HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERE TET TR TR TR TERL TERT
31.3.2016 —E-REZA=1-H
Trade payables ERESEE - 13,664 - - - 13,664 13,664
Other payables and accruals EiEARERETER - 18,146 16,261 - - 34,407 34,407
Construction cost accruals BRI A - 206,134 - - - 206,134 206,134
Amount due to a director ER—2ESHE - 16,320 - - - 16,320 16,320
Amounts due to related companies fEftBEARIEE = 37,817 = = - 37,817 37,817
Amounts due to former subsidiaries [ fi 15 B 2 7 708 - - = = 6,437 6,437 6,437
Loans from staff BIEH 125 11,838 - - - 11,838 11,838
Other borrowing - fixed rate HBEZR-E8 12.47 5,944 65,646 5,361 = 76,951 71,041
Bank borrowing - variable rate ROER-F 8.16 30,017 13,859 62,824 206,455 313,155 303,785
Bank overdraft - variable rate 5.25 4,875 - - - 4,875 4,875
Obligations under finance leases
- fixed rate 2.77 234 705 865 720 2,524 2,279
7.5% coupon bonds - fixed rate 11.61 - 15,000 215,000 - 230,000 198,546
8.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate 12.13 - 216,000 - - 216,000 201,684
12.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate SEF-ER 12 443,011 14,400 14,400 163,200 635,011 558,886
10.0% convertible bonds, included  10.0% A R &2 -
the embedded derivative BETRRES 2
components of convertible bonds ~ ARXFTELASS 24.94 3,877 3,877 89,314 = 97,068 74,574
Financing quarantee contracts issued 2EHREERAD
~ Maximum amount guarantee ~BRBER
(note 41) (Hiit41) = 328,734 = = - 328,734 -
1,120,611 345,748 387,764 376,812 2,230,935 1,742,281
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

Total
Weighted On demand carrying
average or 3 months Total amounts at
effective less than to 1-2 Over  undiscounted 3132015
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows HK$'000
METH RERH =S AERRE
ERFE  SR=EA - -EE@mF BARE REEE
% per annum HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GER= T TiEn TR T TEn TR
31.3.2015 “E-hfE=fA=1-H
Trade payables ERESEE = 75,244 = - - 75,244 75,244
Other payables and accruals ~— EENEEREBFE - 16,192 - - - 16,192 16,192
Construction cost accruals JEHRER K - 38,548 - - - 38,548 38,548
Amounts due to former ER AT B 2 A]
subsidiaries 1B - 9,536 - - - 9,536 9,536
Amounts due to related ERBEAR
companies HRIE - 22,195 - - - 22,195 22,195
Bank borrowing - fixed rate ~ RITER-T & 1.76 2332 - - - 2332 2332
Bank borrowing - variable rate  $RTEF 28 272 7,064 - - - 7,064 7,064
Obligations under finance leases B8 &7 &4
- fixed rate -8 2.81 291 872 1,013 1,585 3,761 3,294
7.5% convertible bonds 75% AR ES
- fixed rate -8 22.03 = 322,500 - - 322,500 294,472
8.0% coupon honds 80%EEESH
- fixed rate -8 12.13 = 16,000 216,000 - 232,000 193,621
Financing guarantee BELBEER
contracts issued X
- Maximum amount guarantee  — &= BIER
(note 41) (Hizta1) - 427,149 - - - 427,149 -
598,551 339,372 217,013 1,585 1,156,521 662,498
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A B SR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

The amount included above for financing guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the directors of the Company consider that it is
less likely that the amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the
bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause was included in the “on demand or less
than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The aggregate carrying amounts of this
bank borrowing amounted to HK$6,245,000
(2015: HK$7,064,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Company did not believe that it was probable
that the bank would exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank
borrowing would be repaid one to seven years
(2015: one to eight years) after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreement. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
would amount to HK$6,837,000 (HK$1,001,000
repayable within 1 year, HK$1,001,000 repayable
1 to 2 years, HK$3,003,000 repayable 2 to 5
years and HK$1,832,000 repayable over 5 years)
(2015: HK$7,838,000 (HK$1,001,000 repayable
within 1 year, HK$1,001,000 repayable 1 to 2
years, HK$3,003,000 repayable 2 to 5 years and
HK$2,833,000 repayable over 5 years)).

Fair value

This note provides information about how the
Group determines fair value of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €I A
(continued) (%)
Fair value (continued) NFE(E)

RERSE PR ATRRESA
iR AT AE T RAE A FER
B-TRAHEEMREHRARZ
BERREITETARFENERE
TEMNER (LEZMEBH
EEFERBABIE)

The conversion option derivative embedded
in convertible bonds is measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair value of this conversion option
derivative is determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used).

Fair value at Fair value Valuation technique and Significant
Financial liability 31 March 2016 hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
RZB-RE
ZA=t-BH
EREE AYE AVEER HEFEREERAHE EXTABRRGAHE
Conversion option  Conversion option Level 3 Binominal option pricing model Volatility of the share
derivative derivative embedded price of the comparable
embedded in in convertible bonds: The fair value is estimated based on  companies, determined
convertible US$1,018,000 the key inputs: risk-free interest by reference to the
bonds (equivalent to rate, discount rate, share price historical share price of
HK$7,891,000) (from observable market date), the comparable companies
(as at 31 March volatility of the share price of the  (Note)
2016) comparable companies, dividend
yield and exercise price
AEREFAIE  ATARE S A E=FE ZEA R EERE AEEBRAAREKELS

BEITET A

RESTETA:
1,018,000% 7T (#H

RETZGARE: BERRAX &

RUBLRARBERE
BREE (M)

£17,891,000%7T)
(R=Z—~%=AR
=t+—-A)

Note: The higher the volatility of the share price
of the comparable company, the higher
the fair value of the conversion option
derivative. The volatility of the share price
of the Company used in the fair value
measurement is 55.62% (2015: nil).
Details of the sensitivity analysis is set out
in “other price risk”.

BE-RE (KTBRETEEES
) - TALRATRERE RS
ERTEEBATE

HieE: FIE LB QB R E KRR
A BBHETETAERATE
e AT EFEMRAN
AR ) B B R 18 £55.62%
(ZZ—RF ) BKE
A EEN [H A ERR
Bl Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EWMIA
(continued) (%)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MR RERBFEREGR

(continued) (%)

Fair value (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements of financial liabilities

Conversion
option
derivative
embedded in
convertible
bonds
GE:Y 4¢3
FiT B 3R B R
PTETE
HK$'000
FAT
At 30 December 2015 (date of R-Z—H&+_-H=+H
issue of convertible bonds) (TR fEAEITEE) 12,246
Fair value gain recognised in REEER A TE
profit or loss & (4,324)
Exchange realignment bE i & (31)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—RF=A=+—H 7,891
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. SR ITHE
(continued) (%)
Financial risk management objectives and policies AR ERE B R RBR
(continued) (%)
Fair value (continued) NFE(E)
(i) Fair value of the Group's financial liabilities (1)

that are measured at fair value on a

H

Kfs{E

recurring basis (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation NEEF=

processes Er

The Group engages qualified external AEEeZEREERINGEE
valuers to perform valuations for financial M ST AEETHE 25T
instruments. The accounting officer reports FEFFFRNAESEEETE W
the findings of the valuation prepared by HEERINBEEM R E
the qualified external valuers to the board BER ITHEERIAAT
of directors of the Group every half year BERHHREE- B BEERMN
and explain the cause of fluctuations in UREESHEERABBEATF
the fair value of the financial instruments. EFfANBASBENERER
Information about the valuation techniques EXHRE-

and inputs used in determining the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

6.

W E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Fair value (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured on a recurring basis
The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortized
cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
As at 30 December 2015, the fair values of
convertible bonds (categorized within Level
3 hierarchy) of approximately US$8,426,000
(equivalent to HK$65,307,000) have been
determined using discounted cash flows at
an appropriate debt yield which being the
sum of base interest rate, based on the yield
of Exchange Fund Bills & Notes.

NEZA=+—HIEFE

TRMITAR

[ B B 38 B 1R R BUR

%%;ﬂ% \ﬁéﬁﬂ%i&%&
BHEKATENEMERE
ERERBENEEDSEHR
HAFEMRAE - R=_Z—*h
F+ZA=+H AIBKRE
F(BERE=ZE)NATHE
49 58,426,000% 7T (HE R
65,307,000/ 7 ) * Jhf &
B2 BB WS R (B EEF =X

B IRIBINER S ZIR 2 W
$§+§WEE£E£E%//|LE#E°

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ v 4> [ B % 6 45 PR 23 7 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

7. REVENUE 7. WA

WA fBETEFEmZHEEE " N
REAKMHTEE BERRRS DR
R MEREREEZRBEA > D

Revenue which represents the sales value of goods
supplied to customers and service income from

interior decoration work, financing guarantee

services, logistics services, property investment and
money lending is analysed as follows:

Hrann :

2016 2015
ZE-RE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Revenue from interior EAEM TR
decoration work WA 16,538 140,362
Revenue from international B E 5
trading A 113,388 72,488
Revenue from financing & R AR 75
guarantee services WA 20,231 26,961
Revenue from logistics services  #777% AR 7% W A 687 7,662
Revenue from property MEKRE
investment WA 44,888 =
Interest income from money BERE
lending A 5,565 4,920
201,297 252,393
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focus on the types of goods supplied and services

provided by the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are (i) interior decoration work,
(ii) international trading, (iii) financing guarantee
services, (iv) logistics services and (v) property

investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
acquired E-Innovation Limited (“E-lnnovation”)
which is principally engaged in property investment
— property leasing and property management
business. Since then, the CODM reviews the
financial performance of property investment
operation separately. Results from property
investment are presented as an operating and
reportable segment. Meanwhile, money lending
business was not reviewed by the CODM and
therefore it is not a reportable segment. Revenue
from money lending is presented as unallocated

revenue.

The revenue streams and results from these
segments are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as
the CODM does not review segment assets and
liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RIEFLERDERFEAIRERMZ2
BEADRAMTES (T ELER
RE(XEEERKE]) ) 2EF
EERAGEHREzEmEERE
oz AR5

AEEREEE YGRS ERFIHR
MEENAZ2HRDMBANERNRKHS T
2 (NEERE 5 - (i & B R R
(V)RR R EE

HE-_ZTZ-—X"F=-ZA=1+—HLtF
= AK% BEUWEREI AR AR (1A
Bl HEXEREMERE-WEMR
ERMFEBEBEG - 1& FELER
REERBEHMERELDE L MBR
W MEREZEEZNR—AEE
RAI2FHHE - Ak EEEBRLEHR
FTEREBRREEN Bt HW3E—
B2/ - BERAZIARS
BEUg A o

ZEPBLBMARBREREETIAEE
EXDANBREZEB THEEE
ERREETHERN BUESE 5
Bl &R R AT R o

DHMEEXABYREINDHIETEL
BRREBELEBRNADHLEERAE
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BR o B i R B R
For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F
SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7 B & K
(continued) (%)
Segment revenue and results D EUA KR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue AEBERAZHREEDME D RE
and results in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC by BB RPFARFPBEZBWAREES T
reportable and operating segments: s
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
BE-Z-5~% BHE-ZT-1%
ZA=t-BL#FE ZA=+-HLEE
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)
revenue  for the year revenue for the year
EELBEF EEABEF
pak: 1 ON (F#) AEHEA (E#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Interior decoration work IW%%IE 16,538 (10,261) 140,362 6,553
International trading BERE 5 113,388 (7,947) 72,488 (4,506)
Financing guarantee services & & R k7% 20,231 13,910 26,961 18,145
Logistics services 7 AR 7% 687 (3,762) 7,662 1,478
Property investment MERE 44,888 333,649 = =
Revenue and result for A2/ HHA
reportable segment REE 195,732 325,589 247,473 21,670
Unallocated revenue ENGE N 5,565 4,920
Total st 201,297 252,393
Unallocated income, gains &7 Bt Wi« Fllzs
and losses k&R (2,091) 14,845
Equity-settled share-based  KEm&EE RGN AER L
payments (E (5,333) (8,788)
Unallocated gain on fair AOBERENZE
value change of investment Z AT EEH
properties Ynzs 10,842 8,762
Gain on fair value change of FI# k&% 2 /14
the derivative components ~ TE#HD 2 AFE
of convertible bonds 2Elin 4,324 -
Unallocated corporate 7 PN AT
expenses FxX (47,176) (31,664)
Finance costs MM A (119,167) (80,983)
Profit (loss) before taxation B E AT A (E1E) 166,988 (76,158)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents
the profit/loss earned/suffered by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
equity-settled share-based payments in relation
to central administrative staff, gain on fair value
change of investment properties (except for gain on
fair value change of certain investment properties
and gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a
subsidiary under property investment operation),
other income, gains and losses (except for reversal
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net,
adjustments on the carrying amount of amounts
due from former subsidiaries and amounts due to
former subsidiaries), directors’ emoluments and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

~\ b~ IN
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. NHEH
. =
(continued) (%)
Other segment information H h 55 & & #}
. . . E—N = EE .
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit STENMERAEERIE:
or loss:
Year ended 31 March 2016 Year ended 31 March 2015
BECE-AEZAZt-HLER HE-R-REZA=T-ALER
Interior ~ Financing Interior ~ Financing
International ~ decoration quarantee  Llogistics  Property Inernational ~ decoration  quarantee Logistics
trading work services services  investment  Unallocated Total trading work services senvices  Unallocated Total

BREA IAKHIE REAREE  MREE  NRRR #AE #it  EREA ERRAIR BAARRE  MARE KA it
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000
Tn TR TER Tr TR TER Tén  TéEn TR TAn TR TR TAR

Write down of inventories BEGE - 1,02 - - - - 1,021 - = - - - -
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% BER BN E

equipment 17 3 9% 409 481 2,195 331 17 29 9 608 1410 2,163
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EFAERHE - - - 2,255 - - 2255 - - - 564 - 564
Reversal of alowance forbadand A RREFE

doubtful debs, net (456) - - - - - (456) (885) = = = = (885)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE BER

plant and equipment REER - - - - 1 - 1 - - - - - -
Geographical information Hh 13 B Y
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, REBEEEBUNEE RFIRF
Macau and the PRC. Despite the revenue from EERBEEZWRADNREHRE
money lending which is based on the locations SAEME S EREERBINEE
of fundings advanced, all the remainings of the FZHRERTRAREREBELH
Group's revenue from external customers are TEHD & &l 5 o

based on locations of business registration of the
customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7 B & K
(continued) (%)
Geographical information (continued) Hhig & kL (&)
The Group's revenue from external customers REBERBINSBEL Z2WARKEE
and information about its non-current assets by FrEMEl D 2 ERBDEEFBAOT :
geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMBEF 2B A ERBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-Af —T-RF CZB-Af C—T-IF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER TET
Hong Kong and Macau B RRM 86,442 151,566 19,631 21,621
The PRC i 114,855 100,827 2,657,473 318,407
201,297 252,393 2,677,104 340,028
Information about major customers FEEXFPEH
Revenue from customers contributing over RERFE BEPBAGAREEBI
10% of the total revenue of the Group of the A10% A EEAT -
corresponding years are as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-REF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Customer A el N/A FER 28,924
Customer B2 BFZ? 39,072 N/A i B
Customer C? BEFR? 42,879 62,956
g Revenue from interior decoration work W ERNEMITREZBA
2 Revenue from international trading Z BRE S 2 A
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 9. Hfthzm FMER
LOSSES B8
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Other income H Y 25
Interest income ISV N 12,407 8,573
Imputed interest income from JE W A1 Bt B8 A &)
amounts due from RIBZHESR
former subsidiaries A B WA 2,172 1,905
14,579 10,478
Other gains and losses H o Fl 25 & B 48
Adjustments on the carrying JE 42 BT Bt /B A )
amount of amounts due FRIBAREE
from former subsidiaries 2R
(note 21) (BtiE21) (5,747) -
Adjustments on the carrying JE 1 BT B/ A 7
amount of amounts due to FRIBAREE
former subsidiaries (note 21) 2 (KiE21) 3,099 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HKE
plant and equipment &S =l ot (1) =
Net foreign exchange loss P& 5 FE 1R (20,802) (553)
Reversal of allowance for bad RIBREE
and doubtful debts, net B[O F =8 456 885
Gain on fair value change of AR ES 2T E
derivative components of TAHD <A TE
convertible bonds (note 33) s (H17£33) 4,324 -
Others HAh 1,217 =
(17,454) 332
(2,875) 10,810
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT
Interest on: A T&IEZH L :
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERK 18,389 3,661
Effective interest expense 10.0% Al R EH 2
on 10.0% convertible bonds BERFAEREZ 4,029 —
Effective interest expense 75% A R ES 2
on 7.5% convertible bonds ERAEREZ 23,613 59,714
Effective interest expense 6.5%REEHZ
on 6.5% coupon bonds ERFEMEZ - 11,497
Effective interest expense 8O%ZEEEH 2
on 8.0% coupon bonds ERHEMRAX 24,063 9,780
Effective interest expense T5%REEHZ
on 7.5% coupon bonds BERAEMAX 14,546 —
Effective interest expense 120%EEEH 2
on 12.0% coupon bonds EERERE M 38,935 =
Obligations under finance leases & & 7 & A& 221 120
Total finance costs B 75 R 2N 4B RE 123,796 84,772
Less: Amount capitalised in R B E
investment properties Z B
under construction ] (4,629) (3,789)
119,167 80,983
Finance cost capitalised during the year ended RBEZZ—HAF=A=+—H1t
31 March 2015 arose on the specific borrowings FE REBETERZIERCEHK
was approximately HK$1,845,000. Finance XN #) 51,845,000 T R EE —
cost capitalised during the year ended 31 T-RE=A=T—HLFE X
March 2016 arose on the general borrowing B—RUEEREES Z2E RN K
pool of approximately HK$4,629,000 (2015: N#4,629,0008 L (ZF — A F:
HK$1,944,000) are calculated by applying 1,944,000% 7T) T3 FE A & 510.51%
capitalisation rate of 10.51% per annum (2015: CEREE(ZE—RHF:12.13%)
12.13%). FC
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

EEREETH

AEME
ERRERFAL(ZE—REF N
REFRBERTRABEUNMS
M

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 11.
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
eight (2015: eight) directors and chief executive
were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-—E—A"F=ZA=1t—HLEE

Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled
Directors’ and other scheme  share-based Total
fees benefits contributions payments 2016
REREE
FMR RAEN HURGARER @t
EsHe HitEH SEMR A E “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TR THET
(Note (i)
(HizE0)
Executive directors HITEZE
Li Weibin ZEM - 2,020 - 516 2,536
Siu Wai Yip FEE - 1,576 18 360 1,954
Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Wi - 1,333 18 360 1,111
Lau Chi Kit EIEEEES - 364 - 240 604
Non-executive director HHITEZ
Fung Sau Mui 5518 180 - - 120 300
Independent non-executive B HHTEE
directors
Lai Ka Fung, May BRE 168 - - 120 288
Chan Sim Ling, Irene R 168 - - 120 288
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &R 720 - - 387 1,107
Total st 1,236 5,293 36 2,223 8,788
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U 265 ¥l % BfF AR

For the year ended 31 March 2016

11.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 11. EERESITH
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS AEEME
(continued) (#&)
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_T—HAF=-A=+—HLFE
Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled
Directors’ and other scheme share-based Total
fees benefits  contributions payments 2015
BEREE
230 I RIAEH  UARDEER b
B0 H g AR ZE® ZE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TEL TR
(Note (1))
(Kra0))
Executive directors HITEE
Li Weibin TR - 2,000 - 842 2,84
Siu Wai Yip BEX - 1,560 18 587 2,165
Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 9854 - 1,320 18 587 1,925
Lau Chi Kit Bl - 360 - 392 752
Non-executive director HHTEE
Fung Sau Mui ik 180 - - 196 376
Independent non-executive B HHTEE
directors
Lai Ka Fung, May R5E 168 - - 196 364
Chan Sim Ling, Irene R 168 - - 196 364
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &R 720 - - 668 1,388
Total ECH) 1,236 5,240 36 3,664 10,176
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
Note:
(i) Equity-settled share-based payments represent

share options granted to directors of the Company
under a share option scheme adopted by the
Company in year 2012. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group's
accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions.

Details of share options granted to directors of
the Company and other employees, including the
principal terms and number of options granted,
are set out in note 34.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Li Weibin is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosure above
include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
compensation for loss of office or an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments in both years.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

EERBEITH
AEME

(#&)

Hiat

() EHEEEEAR BEWZ R
REARTR B —F RN
BEHERTFARAEEZBR
o SR 2 EE T REAR
B AR BRI R 52
BB

BYAARESREMEES ZERK
BHFE(BERLEREZEEZE
KRB ) &AM E34 o

EXFAITRHTESZCHFMEERRKS
EEARAREMBRRERREZ
AR 7 S A

EXFIRERITES 2HFMEBZRE
FREARAREMBRABZESR
HZ R M-

EXFIRBUIRATESZIHMER
AREBETARBEFTRHZRBEM
AT e

FEBEENBARBDZIEETHA
B RELIRECHMEREEER
TETHRABMREHRB M -

LRER AEBARAARFTES
K EBALT L EEE - RS E
MAREBHIMARE B M4 T 52
T o MER ARFLEEEWEME
] B < -
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42 A RS R 3R M A

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—RF =1 =+—H IL4FF

12. EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12. ET#M=
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEEBREEaMEzATHZ=
in the Group, three (2015: three) were directors of FZ(ZE—RF ZR)BARAIZE
the Company whose emoluments were disclosed - HMSERMEFIMHERE -BEZ
in note 11. The emoluments of the remaining two T-RE=ZA=1T—HBHIEFE &
(2015: two) highest paid individuals for the year ME(ZE—AF - WMAB)&ZaMEA
ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: TZMEmT
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
Salaries, bonus and - FEAL K
other benefits H A EH 2,129 2,364
Equity-settled share-based REREENRG HER
payments Z AR 240 =
Contributions to retirement RIRE R FTE
benefit schemes K 66 92
2,435 2,456
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%7C 21,500,000/ JT 2 2

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
five employees with the highest emoluments as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

HE-ZT— "Gk —HF=H
T-RLEFE AEBUERAAR
=EMES ZHe  ERR3IE
EMAREERMAAEBER 2 8BS
SRBEBL S E o

ok

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ r 4> [ B % 6 45 B 23 7 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 53R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i 3R I T

13.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBADER (E8)
2016 2015
—E-XE —EF—ARF
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Profit (loss) before taxation has & %+ Bl Kl (&518)
been arrived at after charging B (Gt A)
(crediting): T%|EE :
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,800 1,180
Depreciation of property, plant %1% = K& &
and equipment Z2IE 3,231 2,163
Amortisation of intangible assets #& 2 & &= # §4 2,255 564
Write down of inventories WoR I &
(included in cost of sales and (st AEE R
services) Bk 75 B AN ) 1,021 =
(Reversal of provision) provision {#%& (H#HE@E ) B &
for warranty (included in cost (st AEHE R
of sales and services) ARG A AR ) (102) 1,709
Staff costs (including directors’ B TR A (BIEEE
emoluments) (note 11) Me) (HaEr1)
Wages, salaries and other B FH R EA
benefits 2wl 32,749 29,766
Retirement benefits scheme RNE R ETE
contributions TR 916 712
Equity-settled share-based RREDEEURN &
payments (Note) HiE 2k (A aE) 7,339 12,169
41,004 42,647
Cost of inventories recognised  HRARAZ Z
as expenses FERA 114,575 71,528
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - -BER&EZ
plant and equipment &5 18 1 =
Operating lease rentals paid in ~ BREAEME >
respect of rented properties BENEEHERS 8,974 7,718
Operating lease rentals paid in BB AEREZ
respect of office equipment BENEEHERS 43 238

Note:

Amount included equity-settled share-based

payment to consultants of HK$2,099,000 (2015:
HK$3,427,000) in connection with the services
provided by the consultants who solely rendered
services and reported their duties to the Group
during the current and prior reporting periods.
Such services are similar as in nature to those
rendered by employees of the Group.

Z B BIE R AN RS HE &
BAERSHEEZRAEBRER
R ERNSHEMRRZREM
3% 55 B R S 2 i i s 4 B AR
5 BER 2 45£2,099,000/8 7T (=
T — F4F 3,427,000 7T) A #H
RISEAEEE SR Z R MHEL
AL
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

14. FEHHAX

2016 2015
—E—XRE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Current tax: AREFRIE :
Hong Kong B 49 17
PRC A 7,719 4,865
Macau P 74 189
7,842 5,071
Underprovision in prior years: BEFERBETRE
Hong Kong BB 2 =
7,844 5,071
Deferred tax (note 30) EER IR (H75#30) 84 (1,040)
7,928 4,031

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law"”) and implementation regulation of
the EIT Law, the concessionary tax rate of 15% is
applied to the newly acquired subsidiaries, namely
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (as defined in note 35),
during the year end as it is recognised as “Go-
west” region development programme corporate
which is entitled to apply the rate of 15%. The
entitlement of this tax benefit is subject to renewal
by respective tax bureau in the PRC every year. The
tax rate of the remaining PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at the
maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

IR F 2 BB MG iR st FERR
S A16.5%5 & o

REFECEMETE ([RERER
EDREEMERAEREN - KA
FER EEHE15%E B R HEE
ZHB AR - BNER KGR (Ex M
iE35) RRAAZEARERRR [ E
EER REERBAER AEEE
15% 2 HE - WHBEEBEHENEAR
TEEEREREFETER KT
TENBARZHEE —_TTN\F—
A—B#5825% -

It W F 2RI PR 1S i SE R T $R (A 5 I
AR MR EREHRERT12%5E -
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AR B SR M T

14.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FreBimx (&)
AEEHETRGABRREMEE
Wk Nz BRATRR (B8) 2 585
o

2016 2015
—EB-XF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Profit (loss) before taxation B R m A (E1E) 166,988 (76,158)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax E& B FS T %£16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (ZZE—HF:165%):TH 27,553 (12,566)
Tax effect of expenses not ST EERAERIBIR 2
deductible for tax purposes DTS- 25,911 13,333
Tax effect of income not taxable UzETAEF 2
for tax purposes W% (52,756) (638)
Tax effect of tax losses not BTGB R AR R
recognised DTS- 5,555 1,411
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) 2 B & fE 2
not recognised % Ea (929) (1,191)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBDEEEMREE Z
subsidiaries operating in other  MiB2A & 2 R =X
jurisdictions 2B 2,594 3,682
Income tax expense for the year ANEE S FHX 7,928 4,031
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—RF =1 =+—H L4 F

15. DIVIDEND 15. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year HE_T—RNEZA=1+—HILEE
ended 31 March 2016, nor has any dividend been NI ERNSIEZRNKRE  B®RE
proposed since the end of the reporting period HARURTTEEZZENERNEKE (=
(2015: Nil). T-—hF: |\

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BRER (FEH)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings AACIHEBEARBEERERAREER
(loss) per share attributable to the owners of the F(EE) HRETIEFE

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss) &H (E518E)
2016 2015
—E—-XF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Earnings (loss) for the year RUNGTEESRER
attributable to owners of the R EE AT
Company for the purposes of (BE)z
basic and diluted earnings NAaEE AEG
(loss) per share KEEFRF (FEE) 157,663 (80,189)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B 3R M T

16.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
(continued)

Number of shares

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

BRERN (BE)
(#&)

s 10 BX

‘000 ‘000
T T &
Weighted average number of RUETEER
ordinary shares EXRAEN (EHE)
for the purpose of basic 2 EEARniE
earnings (loss) per share EHE 2,606,667 2,199,264
Effect of dilutive potential BT R
ordinary shares B2
Share options BEse 5,418 =
Weighted average number of R EFR
ordinary shares for the BERRN (BE)
purpose of diluted earnings TR N
(loss) per share 15 2,612,085 2,199,264

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds, conversion of outstanding 7.5%
convertible bonds during the conversion period
in year 2016 as they would result in increase in
earnings per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 7.5%
convertible bonds and the exercise of share options
and warrants as they would result in decrease in

loss per share.

&:I: iﬁ—/\ﬂi H + E_U:
FE FESREFERNT ERR
TE-AFREBRBAM KSR
10.0% A MR EH B B8 I - 5 R 8
BZISHAIBRBRESFCDEER  RE
EHEHSBHERAFILE M-

KBE-E-EF=A=+-ALF
B B B R R R
B2 2 7.5% AT AR A 5 M BR R B
RERBBREECETE RERK
EEREREAND -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRKHE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and Leasehold Computer and office Motor in
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles progress Total
HELH B £E
kEF HENEEE ElRE REAERE RE ERIR #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

cosT KA

At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MEMA-R 18,264 611 1,031 370 1,640 852 22,768

Additions RE - 688 548 90 5,147 - 6,473

Exchange realignment EHAZ - (1 (1) = @) = @
RZE-1F

At 31 March 2015 ZA=t-8 18,264 1,298 1,578 460 6,785 852 29,237

Acquired on an acquisition  # YR EE — R K

of a subsidiary BRAKEE - - 475 1,363 446 - 2,284

Additions RE - 78 540 334 446 - 1,398

Disposal HE = = = {7) = = )

Exchange realignment B aE - 43) (49) (16) (109) = 17)
R=Z-RE

At 31 March 2016 =A=1-A 18,264 1,333 2,544 2,134 7,568 852 32,695

DEPRECIATION &

At 1 April 2014 RZT-NMEEA—-A 761 335 387 101 570 - 2,154

Charge for the year FEERE 609 490 248 61 755 - 2,163

Exchange realignment A% - (1) - - - - (1)
RZZ-1F

At 31 March 2015 ZA=1-H 1,370 824 635 162 1325 - 4316

Charge for the year TEERE 609 21 469 278 1,654 - 3,231

Eliminated on disposal I 3 - - - 6) = = (6)

Exchange realignment AR = (27) (16) 6) (17) = (66)
R=B-RE

At 31 March 2016 =ZB=t+-H 1,979 1,018 1,088 428 2,962 - 7,475

CARRYING VALUES REE
R=E-RE

At 31 March 2016 =B=t+-H 16,285 315 1,456 1,706 4,606 852 25,220
RZE-RF

At 31 March 2015 =h=t-H 16,894 474 943 298 5,460 852 24,921
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings terms of the lease, or
30 years
Leasehold improvements 10% for owned assets
or over the lease terms
for the leased assets
Computer equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

At 31 March 2016, leasehold land and buildings of
the Group with carrying values of HK$16,285,000
(2015: HK$16,894,000) were pledged with a bank
to secure a loan granted to the Group. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, allocation
of the carrying amounts between the leasehold
land and buildings elements could not be made
reliably, accordingly, the owner-occupied leasehold
land and buildings of HK$16,285,000 (2015:
HK$16,894,000) are included in property, plant and

equipment.

At 31 March 2016, the motor vehicles with carrying
value of HK$2,969,000 (2015: HK$3,996,000) are

assets held under finance leases.

17.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

3 BERRE

(#&)

A EZYE BERREREME
BRIEZTIIZIN UWEAEITE - IR
ZERMTE

MELHE BRESFHI0FZ
g5 nEE

MEVMFEERE BEEERI0%AEHE
BECHESH

Pk} 20%

RZZE—XRF=ZA=+—H 25 H
AREE 416,285,000 L (= —H
F 116,894,000 T ) 2 HE T Hh K18
FEERGRIT ERALETAEEE
KRB -RNRFEERR BEGE
EHHE T HEEFHLHBREBE LS
fid » A 11£16,285,0008 T (— &2 —F
% :16,894,000/87) 2 XX AMEE
T RAEFEFAME - BB RFEEF o

R—ZZE—XR"E=ZA=+—H KM@
542,969,000 . (=T — A F:
3,996,000/ 70 ) 2 TE T AR ERE
REZEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWMHE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Completed properties held for — #H{EHT B R Z B TR Y E
rental purpose:

At 1 April RMUA—H - =

Addition from acquisition of KB W — I E A A

a subsidiary (note 35) ZARE (H7E35)

(Note (a)) (Kiit(a)) 2,083,894 -
Exchange realignment ERE R (6,442) =
Net changes in fair value RIERERZ A E

recognised in profit or loss BE)FE 1,216 =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,078,668 -

Leasehold land with i AR EEE AR R A&
undetermined future use: Z ST
At 1 April REA—H 143,623 =
Addition from acquisition of B W — M E A

a subsidiary (note 35) ZNE (K1iE35)

(Note (a)) (Ktit(a)) 134,445 -
Exchange realignment ME 3, 8 2 (5,428) (323)
Additions NE 14 135,184
Transfer to investment EREERE

properties under construction &Y (68,088) =
Net changes in fair value REZEERATE

recognised in profit or loss FH)FE 4,498 8,762
At 31 March R=A=+—H”H 209,064 143,623
Sub-total NF 2,287,732 143,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWMHE
(continued) (%)
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Investment properties under ERIREYE
construction (Note (b)): (Katmb)) -
At 1 April KRMEA—H 100,793 -
Exchange realignment ME 3, 8 2 (8,377) (225)
Transfer from leasehold land EE O RARBERR
with undetermined future use RagsBE L 68,088 =
Net changes in fair value RIERBERZ AFE
recognised in profit or loss FH) 55 10,842 =
Additions NE 188,860 101,018
At 31 March R=A=+—H 360,206 100,793
Total #5 2,647,938 244,416
Unrealised gain on properties STARFEEELR
revaluation included ZMEERL
in profit or loss for the year REIE W 16,556 8,762

Notes: HaE -

(a) During the year, the Group acquired the (a) RAEE AEERBLRRAE
Commercial Complex and the Land (as defined PR B 2 75 K18 Rzt i
in note 35) which are located at the eastern (E&ZAKFE3S) R=F—AFN
district of Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, with fair A=+—8 (KEAH) 2AFELN
value of approximately HK$2,218,339,000 as at #2,218,339,000/8 Lo sz L b 2 &
31 August 2015 (acquisition date). Certain portion FHHOREBELE BNAETER
of the Land is currently vacant with undetermined RAZ -BEAEDHBETE=SH
future use. The Commercial Complex are rented AP I WERE S R EEWA -

to third party tenants and receiving rental and
management income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2016, it is considered the fair
value of the building portion of the logistics park
located at Hantai district, Hanzhong City, Shaanxi
Province, the PRC (the “ChinlinkeWorldport”)
could be measured reliably in view of the stage
of completion reached. The whole portion of
investment properties under construction and the
remaining undeveloped leasehold land portion of
the ChinlinkeWorldport (the “Hanzhong Land”)
are measured at fair value.

As at 31 March 2015, the amount represented
the construction costs for the building portion of
certain investment properties under construction.
Since the fair value of the building portion of
the investment properties under construction
could not be measured reliably at the end of the
reporting period, the amounts were carried at
cost until either the fair value becomes reliably
measureable or reaches the stage in which the
construction is completed.

The Group's investment properties are categorised

into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. At the end

of each reporting period, the directors of the

Group work closely with the independent qualified

professional valuers to establish and determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to be

used in determining the fair value of the investment

properties. Discussion of valuation processes and

results are held amongst directors of the Company

at least twice a year.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

18.

REWMRE
(#&)

Hiet: (&

(b)

RZB-—RF=A=+—H0 &R
BERER TR NP ERES
ZEhmEaRZYRE ([EEF
Tt RE )BT D 2 A FER
BRENFEFTE-BREEREY
EREERD B 28T AKFH
BHEL A ([Eh L)y
BRAFEE-

R-ZE-—RAF=A=+—B &%
BIEETHERREMEZETHD
ZEBRA - HRERREMEZ
BFERIZATFERBEHRD
BEF AT 2 MEZ B RIARK AT
FROEERQTEEAEAELDE
BTREBR AL

AEBEZRENVESBRRFEEBMR
ZEZEB-REBEHRR AEEZ
EFRBVAEREX[MEMEBIS
- URIMCBEAREERENSE
ARFEZEERERERBAE A
RAEEEFELHUMBERF LG
A7 i PR

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ th 4> [ B 42 it A B 2 W] | ANINUAL REPORT 2016 ZE 3R




18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the fair values of the
Land and the Commercial Complex in Xi‘an City
determined by Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited (“Ascent Partners”) are approximately
RMB115,700,000 and RMB1,737,000,000
(equivalent to HK$138,458,000 and
HK$2,078,668,000) respectively.

For the Commercial Complex and the Land, the
valuations have been arrived at using the direct
market comparison method of valuation, where
comparison based on prices realised on actual
sales or asking price of comparables is made.
Comparable properties are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at

a fair comparison of market values.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
development plan of the ChinlinkeWorldport
has been approved by the relevant government

authority.

18.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

REWE

(#&)

RZFE—RE=ZA=+—H AXH
FEZHAERAR ([XHFE])E
EURAZMZZIHEEERNEZ
REED A A ANR®E115,700,000
T M AR #1,737,000,0007C (#EE R
138,458,000/ 7T %2,078,668,000%
JT) °

MEERBRZ LTS HETE
REEMSHELEOEER MR
DIREERHEEER 2ERKEHA
B BERET - HAELBRWER
HAT W FAESMEZBBEESE
hEE NEBEMEZ AR

BE_Z-—XE=A=+—HL#F
B AREEHSD ottt 2 FETE
EEGRBTE I8 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the fair value of the
investment properties under construction of the
ChinlinkeWorldport and the Hanzhong Land were
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Ltd
("Colliers”) (2015: Cushman & Wakefield Valuation
Advisory Services (HK) Ltd. (“C&W")). As at 31
March 2016, the fair value of the investment
properties under construction and the Hanzhong
Land are approximately RMB301,000,000 and
RMB59,000,000 respectively, equivalent to
HK$360,206,000 and HK$70,606,000 respectively
(2015: nil and RMB115,000,000 respectively,
equivalent to nil and HK$143,623,000 respectively).

For investment properties under construction, the
valuation has been arrived at using the residual
approach by making reference to recent sales
transactions of completed properties as publicly
available to determine the adjusted unit rate of the
completed investment properties, less estimated
costs to completion and expected developer’s
profit margin so as to determine the value of the
proposed development as if these were completed
as at the date of valuation.

BE X -ARE=ZA=+—HILFEE

18.

REWE

(#&)

R—ZZE—R"E=ZA=+—H ZIE
PRt ABLERKRENERE
Fr s AFEELERDREEYE
BEER(EB)ARAR([BA)) (=
T-hF - aRTEREXEBRSA
RARI(IE&E]) ) ETZHEE
B-R—_E—RNF=ZA=+—8"
EREEMERER I 2 AFE
DAl A ANRE301,000,0007T &
AR #59,000,0007t o B ZER
360,206,000/ jt 70,606,000
T(ZE—FAF D ATEAR
#115,000,0007T ' P Rl EER TR
143,623,000/ 7T ) °

BERREMEMNS RELNEEZE
EXRMEZORAHAARHEERS
RAMBEEB UBETETKRE
MEZKBBEME R BT
RARBERRER 2N BREMERE
EERERZEE(BOZEDEER
EEBBTRK)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i 3R I T

18.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

For the Hanzhong Land, the valuations have been
arrived at using the direct market comparison
method of valuation, where comparison based
on prices realised on actual sales or asking price
of comparables is made. Comparable properties
are analysed and carefully weighed against all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of

market values.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

Ascent Partners, Colliers and C&W are independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group and has appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar projects

in relevant locations.

18.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

BENE

(&)

FER TS EEDERAEED
B E L BORE B T BTV IR A
ARBERHEZDRABEKEE
RIT-AALBOEEHEANTRYE
EMEEAZMAEH KRR AR
B AEERFZMELE-

REFMERIFER VWEZES
REMBAERBZAE-

YHAFHE sHIRSRAEREEY
BEREZEAVAEREXMGEM I
BEHARLH ZBOERETHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
G BB R

b7 N

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF=H =+—H IL4FF

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWMHE
(continued) (%)
Set out below is the significant unobservable inputs ATHRERARAFEFEZERDN
used for fair value measurements: AT B R AE

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value

Fair value as at

31 March 2016 Valuation techniques  Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price

R-B-RF

ZA=+-AzAYE ER%E IEFTEEGAE mETHER FTUBRERABHATEZER
HK$

BT

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose

FEHBAMZETRYE

Xi'an Commercial Complex - fair values determined by Ascent Partners

BARHERNE B EEE A TE

HK$2,078,668,000
(RMB1,737,000,000)

Price per square metre of gross Retail portion: RMB10,477
floor area which derived (equivalent to HK$12,538)/

The higher the price, the
higher the fair value

Direct market approach

198

2,078,668,0007% 7
( AR#1,737,000,0007T )

from the construction

area, using direct market

comparables and taking

into account of adjustments

on location, footfall and

development scale factor

BEMSZE RERERBEZBTHRER

REBARE  UHRAEED
5 & t BB RS R ot
g HinfEREFHRER
BEAZZ AE

sqm

Office portion: RMB5,453
(equivalent to HK$6,526)/
sqm

Car park portion: RMB4,126
(equivalent to HK$4,938)/
sqm

ZERD  ARK104777
(18%R12,53887) /
FAHK

BREHH : ARES453T
(18%R6,526%87) /FH
*

FEMLHD: ARB4,1267
(1851R4,938%7T)/
FAHK

BREE ATEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BREWE
(continued) (%)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (continued)

Relationship of

Fair value as at unobservable

31 March 2016 Valuation techniques  Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
R=ZB-R%

ZA=t-HBzAYE fER % FETURERAE nEFHEE TABERAEEAFEZBE
HK$

BT

(2)  Leasehold land with undetermined future use

HABERKRAE AELH

(i) Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex - fair value determined by Ascent Partners

() BEARE_H-aXATEEELATE

HK$138,458,000 Direct market approach  Price per square metre of gross  RMB1,178 (equivalent to The higher the price, the
(RMB115,700,000) floor area which derived HK$1,409)/sqm higher the fair value
from the area of land and
respective plot ratio, using
direct market comparables
and taking into account of
adjustments on location,
land use right terms and
development scale factor

138,458,000 7 BRMSA RELHEEZREAELE AR®1178T (RER ERER ATEER
(AR¥115,700,0007T) FHARBRREMARER ¥ 1,409%7T) /FAHA
FREETSIELREER

RAEF RAALE - T FRE
FHRBERARREZHE

(i) the Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by Colliers

(i) EhLt-—AFEHRSNEE

HK$70,606,000 Direct market approach  Price per square metre of gross Commercial land: RMB157 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB59,000,000) floor area which derived (equivalent to HK$188)/sqm  the fair value
from the area of land and Residential land: RMB184
respective plot ratio, using (equivalent to HK$220)/sqm
direct market comparables
and taking into account of
adjustments on location,
land use right terms and
development scale factor

70,606,000/ 7T EEMSE BEIHABZEEEEZE HERM: ARKIS7TT BREE ATEER
( AR %59,000,0007T) FPHABEREARER ¥ (BEM8SBT) /FhXk

KRAEEMSIALREE EEM: ARKI84T
REHRMUE TEAE  (ASR208T) /THK
FHRERABREZHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 R I T

For the year ended 31 March 2016

18.
(continued)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (continued)

Fair value as at
31 March 2016

R-B-RE
ZA=t-HZAVE
HK$

BT

Valuation techniques

fEER

Key unobservable inputs

FEFUBRBAE

18.

ARAEREATABREG ABETA
FEFEZER (4

Relationship of
unobservable

Weighted average price inputs to fair value

MEFIER FTABRERABERAPEZBHE

ERRANE

Investment properties under construction

Chinlink e Worldport (Retail portion & accommodation/office portion) - fair values determined by Colliers

EETEHRE (REXDER/MAEHD) -~ hZNEELTE

HK$360,206,000
(RMB301,000,000)

360,206,000/ 7T
( AR ¥301,000,0007C)

Residual approach (i)

B (i)

Market rent, taking into
account the differences

in location, and individual
factors, such as frontage
and building age, between
the comparables and the
property

mEHE KEENEE
2 KB RARATELL
RANEZHANEREE
GlllEES

(ii

Expected developer profit

(i) FEHBREHET

Construction cost to
complete

(iii) BEETERAA

(iii

(iv) Discount rate
(iv) FrE =

(v) Rate of finance cost

(V) IR AN E

9.5%

Retail portion: RMB2,543 The higher the market rent,
(equivalent to HK$3,044)/sqm  the higher the fair value.
Accommodation/office portion:
RMB1,029 (equivalent to
HK$1,231)/sqm

ZERH: ARM2543T WEHeHR ATELS

(1RER3,044%70) /FH R
EE/BREHS -
ARE1,0297T (SR
1,23187) /FHA
20% The higher the expected

developer profit, the lower
the fair value.
ERREERTES
ATEBE
RMB 145,000,000 The higher the cost, the lower
the fair value.
AR #145,000,0007T RASE A TEYE
9.5% The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

FREGER  ATELE

The higher the rate of finance
cost, the lower the fair
value

BBRAFESS AT EY
&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i R I T

18.

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

18.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (continued)

Fair value as at

31 March 2015 Valuation techniques

R-Z-1%

ZA=t-HZAVHE fEER %
HK$

BT

Key unobservable inputs

IEFUBRRBAE

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value

Weighted average price

FTABRHAER
mEFIE AV EZBE

(1) the Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by C&W
ER i -mREEEATE

HK$143,623,000
(RMB115,000,000)

Direct market approach

143,623,000 7T
( AR¥115,000,0007C)

BRMSA

Price per square metre of
gross floor area which
derived from the area of
land and respective plot
ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking
into account of adjustments
on location, land use right
terms and development
scale factor

RELHEBEZBEEEL
BYRRERRBBRR
x WRAEETSAEL
RYBEREARALE T
EAEFARERAER
EPA

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The deposit of RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$32,312,000 and HK$33,720,000 at 31 March
2016 and 2015 respectively) represents pre-sale

deposit paid to an independent property developer

for the acquisition of twelve retail shops located
in Xi'an City, the PRC. As of 31 March 2016,
the construction of the retail shops remained

incomplete and management expects to receive

notice of delivery of properties in September 2016.

Commercial land: RMB151
(equivalent to HK$189)/sqm

Residential land: RMB172
(equivalent to HK$215)/sgm

The higher the price, the
higher the fair value

BmELH: ARBEISIT
(HBERM18987T) /FH %k

FELi: AR¥172T
(BER2158T) /Frk

BREs ATEES

BRBEREWESRHS

ZEE
?Zi:—zAEfﬂznoooooo;t( 5 5l 48
ERRN_E—XRER_ZET—HF
:ﬂ:+—52n3nﬂm%n&
33,720,000 L) IEXZ T T — 2 @
MEREE 2 BERS LB ALR
REBAET TS EEH - AE
—E—RNF=ZA=t—HIt - ZTER
FZERMAZTKREREEBER
ZE-ARFENRAREYER SR

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %5 | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% [ tr 4> |39 | 47 Ji% 45 B 2 W)

201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

20.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR PREPAID LEASE
PAYMENTS FOR LAND

The amount represents refundable earnest money
of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$29,918,000
and HK$31,223,000 at 31 March 2016 and 2015
respectively) paid to the PRC government authority
for the expropriation of land for auction to be held
by the PRC government authority. The purpose
for acquisition of the land is for development of a
construction material wholesale and logistics park
in Hanzhong City of the PRC. Such earnest money
would be refunded by the relevant authority of
the PRC upon the completion of the auction. The
auction was completed in June 2014. The Group
acquired the land and the refund procedures are
currently processing. The land has been included
as investment properties under construction with
details set out in note 18. At 31 March 2016, as
being informed by the government authority of
the PRC that the refund procedures were still in
progress, the directors of the Company reassess the
expected settlement time and consider the amount
may not be refunded within twelve months from 31
March 2016.

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

20.

Bt BEAEEREXM
ZEE
ZREBEEAPBRBREFHRMZMAZ
AlR B E & A K #25,000,0007C
(DBHEERRZE—AR"FRERZZE
—hRF=H=+—H229,918,000%
31,223,000 70 ) LA 5t 4% /B AR B R AT
B PIER 1T 2 0 E i Bk o W BE
TH B R BEER TR —FEM
HERYEE BEAESEHFTE
HEABFIRBEZTKEBER -HELD
RZE-—NESATK - ANEEE K
Bz T BRAKEF BRI IEEELT
FoZTHBEINAREREKEYWHE H
HBEHRHEIS - RZE—ARF=A
=+—H - &HAE R BT P E A
BRAREFDEET ARAESEHN
M ETERAMNERYRBZRBE TR
—E-RE=ZA=1+—HEB+=@EA
AR E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER
SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from/to former subsidiaries are
unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The amounts due to former subsidiaries with
principal amount of approximately HK$9,536,000
was initially with no fix repayment term and
repayable on demand. Agreements were entered
with former subsidiaries on 31 March 2016 and
agreed that the amounts due to former subsidiaries
are repayable on 31 March 2019. Accordingly,
such balances are classified from current liabilities
as non-current liabilities during the year and using
effective interest rate method of 14%. Adjustments
on amounts due to former subsidiaries of
HK$3,099,000 were credited to profit or loss with
an effective interest rate of 14% per annum.

Amounts due from former subsidiaries do not
have a fixed repayment terms. As at 31 March
2014, the directors of the Company reassessed
the expected settlement time and consider the
former subsidiaries would be able to settle the
amounts due to the Group with principal value of
HK$17,684,000 on 31 March 2016. During the
year ended 31 March 2016, the imputed interest
income of HK$2,172,000 (2015: HK$1,905,000)
arising from principal amount of HK$17,684,000
was recognised to profit or loss. As at 31 March
2016, such amounts due from former subsidiaries
remained unsettled and the directors of the
Company reassessed the expected settlement
time and consider the former subsidiaries would
be able to settle the amounts due to the Group
on 31 March 2019. Accordingly, such balance are
classified from current assets to non-current assets
during the year and using effective interest rate
method of 14%. Adjustments on amounts due
from former subsidiaries of HK$5,747,000 was
charged to profit or loss with an effective interest
rate of 14% per annum. In addition, the remaining
portion of amounts due from former subsidiaries
with principal value of HK$5,793,000 as at 31
March 2016 was expected to be settled by the
former subsidiaries within twelve months from 31
March 2016 and classified as current assets.

21.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FEW BB A AT BB 2 R

fRIE

R 8 A B I 22 B AR IE /5 4 45 4
R&R-

N4 5499,536,000# TT 2 FE < A T /&
DA BRI U & E E B KB A%
EREE-ARIR_ZE—XRF=A
= +—BHEME QR HE 7
EEMAMBARKREAER-Z—N1
FZA=Z+—HEE Eit FAZXLE
BEA14% 2 EBRMNEZARBEE
DEEERDEE-EMNAINE R A
BRIB 7 5 4 563,099,000/ 7T ( BB
FREFTE14% )FIAEBZE -

& U B B B A ) BR TE I & B E E W
H-A-—T—ME=A=+—H" XK
AREZEFTHEHEMER
WREBHHBERARKITRZZ—
FZA=F+—HENGZEREAEEZ
KA (K%L 517,684,000/ 78) ° &
E-E—RF=ZA=+—HILLEE"
N4 %17,684,000 TELE ZHE
A B U A2,172,0008 T (ZFE—H
1,905,000 L) ERNIE=ER
R-TE—RNE=ZA=+—8 EWHA
MB AR zZEREMAREN BAR
ARAEESEMTEERENSRER I
RENMBARGAR T —NEF
A=+ —HENEREAEEZX
He ALY FRAZEHRKEBI14%ZE
BREZERBDEEDEEIRD
BE-EURAHNBAREKEZARS
5,747,000 T (BB X 5T F
14% )RR EBEmAMBR LI RZF
—RNEFE=ZA=+—8 BERATHEA
AIBRIAAR S 45,793,000 7T 2 #8 N 5B
DIEHEHRAFEARRE ZE—
FZA=Z+—HEBF T =-EARL
YD EERBEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

22. INVENTORIES 22. ®FE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T &
Raw materials R 518 883
Finished goods AN 2,733 1,123
3,251 2,006
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN 23. EWEZREREWR
RECEIVABLES BX
Trade receivables e E 5 8k18
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHTT
Trade receivables JEUE FERTA 8,105 72,311
Less: Allowances for bad and B RIEEER
doubtful debts A (1,672) (2,128)
6,433 70,183
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23.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following is an analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) by age,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

23.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FEWE S RERENR

EXR (&)

B e B 5 B O ()
BERBE SR X EA 25 N E 5
BB (MM REEAE) ZERHMMT

2016 2015

—E-XEF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER T T

0 - 30 days TE=1+H 2,519 66,455
31 - 90 days =+—H=At+H 3,607 342
> 90 days N+HBE 307 3,386
6,433 70,183

The Group's credit terms for its major customers of
interior decoration work and international trading
are usually 3 months to 1 year. The credit terms
granted by the Group to other trade debtors of
interior decoration work and international trading
are normally 30 days.

Customers related to financing guarantee services
are required to settle either on monthly instalments
in arrear or upon signing of the financing guarantee
services contracts or relevant consultancy services
contracts. As at 31 March 2016, among the trade
receivables, balances of HK$2,792,000 (2015:
HK$949,000) are related to financing guarantee
services, in which HK$620,000 was aged within
30 days and HK$2,172,000 was aged within 31-
90 days (2015: HK$675,000 was aged within 30
days, HK$274,000 aged within 31-90 days) in the
business of financing guarantee services.

AEBGTHEARMHTIRERBERES 2
TERPZGEEHARA=EAZ -
AEBGTEANRMIRERERES ZH
MHERPZEEM—RA=1TH-

EHRMERRRB 2T FARASHRA
AEXMIRETRERRRB S K SRS
BRREEARXfM - RZT—RF=H
=+—HB REKZESERS 2,792,000
BT (ZZ — A F 949,000/ 70) 2 & &
HERRIRIE AR H - REl & ZRER
BEBF 620,000 THRIBZRRA=TH
W &%2,172,0008 THRIBEZ R A=+ —
HENATB (ZZT—AF:675000%87TK
B2 Rk A=THR 274,000 THIE 2
RikA=+—BAEh+H)-
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's credit terms for its customers related
to logistics services are normally 30 days.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
by investigating their historical credit record and
defines credit limits by customers on individual
basis. Recoverability and credit limit of the existing
customers are reviewed by the Group regularly.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$4,636,000 and HK$68,329,000 as at 31 March
2016 and 2015 respectively, which are neither past
due nor impaired. The directors of the Company
considered that trade receivables which are neither
past nor yet impaired are of good credit quality and
there are continuous subsequent settlements from

these customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,797,000 (2015: HK$1,854,000) which are
past due as at 31 March 2016 for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over trade receivables.
The average age of the receivables is 44 days
(2015: 19 days).

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

23.

B E S RERER
B™X (&)

AEEETEEANRRB 2EP ZEE
H—RR="1H-

EEZEMHEPA AEEgHREHBE
EEZBRMAEZEEEPZERER
KR (8 R B R {5 B R A - AEEE 2R
NBAEBRFZEBRENIREERE - A5H
RZE—ARFRZZTE—HF=RA=+—H
BB SREESRS B S AREES
4,636,000/ 7T 268,329,000/ 7T 2 & i HA
IAREZ EBRIE - RARESREZE
KRB EINRIRE 2 FE W E 5 AR IE (S K RE
Rif WEEFERHBREMNRK-

AEBEEWE ZFERBEASRANZ EKERIE
2R E{E A1,797,0008 L (= — 1
% :1,854,00087L) RZEE—-—RF=A
=+— BB &AL E KRR EES
BIELEE AEBWARMENE ZRER
B ERER R - BB SR BRI T A
m+mB (ZE—RF:+hA) -
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23.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FEWE 5 RIEKREY
B (&)
EBBERAMEZEKE S KRR

e

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

31 - 90 days =f+—H=At+H 1,355 840
91 — 365 days NnNt+—BZ=8,+HH 442 1,014
Total et 1,797 1,854

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, trade
receivables in relation to financing guarantee
services is not significant. For the remaining
balances, the Group has maintained long term
relationship with those existing customers who
have a strong financial position with continuous
subsequent settlement and there is no historical
default of payments by the respective customers
The Group has assessed the recoverability of these
customers and consider that there has not been
a significant change in their credit quality. The
directors of the Company believe that the amounts
are still recoverable.

AEBEZERS BEERREZIE
WEZRRIL TEKR-FLER T BT
FARBEZERAERFRATRY
ERREBER ZEEFPRBHEEMS
MR B FHBREEN RBENK
BRI EERLE - AEEFEZF
EEEFRENURBRREZEEER
AEERNB-ARREEFHENAL
ZRIRAD SRR LAY [ o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

23.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN FEWE 5 REREWK
RECEIVABLES (continued) EX (&)
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful RIZAREEAE
debts B &
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER T
Balance at 1 April R A—B Z &% 2,128 3,013
Impairment losses recognised HIEWE 5 ERIB IR
on trade receivables Z B EEE 329 =
Amounts recovered N [E U [El
during the year ZEE (785) (885)
Balance at 31 March R=A=+—HZ&%HHE 1,672 2,128

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts included
individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of HK$1,672,000 (2015:
HK$2,128,000) which had been in severe financial
difficulties or had significant disputes with the
Group. The directors of the Company make
impairment losses with reference to the present
value of the estimated future cash flows that are
expected to be recovered from these customers
and consider adequate impairment losses has been
made at the end of the reporting period. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

REERELEOHREVHRE K
HALEABEADE 2 @RREZE
WE ZERTBEBEE A1,672,0008 T (=
T —FH:2,128,000/8 7T) c AR A
EEC2RBHTKZERPKRE Z
RKERBHBR SR WERBREMIED
A BB - R A I R E B B )
EHREERM -AEET RHZE
ERIFAEMERR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Apart from the balance disclosed above, as at
31 March 2015, amounts of HK$5,620,000
were classified as trade receivables from related
companies in which the controlling shareholders
of the Company (who is also a director of the
Company) has significant influence to these related
companies. Such balances were in connection
with the logistic services. As at 31 March 2015,
the amount of HK$2,056,000 was aged within 90
days and the remaining amount was aged within
91 to 270 days. Due to business tax reformation
in Xi'an City of the PRC, the balance remains
outstanding for a period longer than the normal
credit term granted. After the completion of the
aforementioned tax reformation in December 2013,
the amounts have been settled progressively. Such

trade receivables have been settled during the year.

There are another amounts of HK$208,000 (31
March 2015: HK$183,000) classified as trade
receivables from related companies in which
the relatives of this controlling shareholder has
significant influence to these related companies.
Such trade receivables are in connection with
the financing guarantee services. As at 31 March
2016, the entire amount of HK$208,000 is aged
within 90 days (31 March 2015: the entire amount
of HK$183,000 was aged within 90).
considered the continuous settlement subsequent
to 31 March 2016, up to the date of authorisation
for issue of these consolidated financial statements,

Having

the directors of the Company consider these

balances are not impaired.

23.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

FEUE 5 BRIE K B
EX (&)
BREXFEREZ2EHIN RZT—H
iiﬁi+—avé@%amammﬁ
THOERERAERR (BARAZ
TR (MABARRES) RNZEH
L@ﬂﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ)Zf%?%%
cAFEHRT YRR B R =
—ﬂi—ﬂ—+—5’2%6%m%
TTRIEZERRABNLTBRA R NRIE
ZEBANT—BE_Bt+H-H
RABEFEL 2 &ERBRE - R A
ARMKEBCERBETZEFEE
HE-R=ZF—=F+=F L fi%
WETHE  ZERHED RS EE -
ZERKRBSERCRAFEEEE-

H fh F1H208,0008 L (— T — A F
—A=+—H:183,0008T) » A
EWEAERR (FAZZERRR 2 HB
RZERERRNBEATEN) ZIE
WEZER - ZEREWE ZRRT)
MEERBRBEA - R=_ZT— X F=
H=-+—H"%2#208,000/% T 5 &
ZERRABNLTAR(ZE—RF=A
=+—H:26183,000/ T B Z IR
BRANTHA) KEBENR_ZT—RF
A=+ RE(EEREZRTZS
REMBHRRZBY) BHFELN K
RAEERBUILFHERLBEE -
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23.

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group granted the same credit terms as those
independent customers related to logistics services
and financing guarantee services. Such balances are
trade in nature, unsecured and non-interest bearing

(see note 40).

Loan receivables of HK$77,381,000 (2015:
HK$10,030,000) represents the outstanding loan
receivables from independent third parties which
are unsecured and carries interest at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate plus 4.0% per annum or fixed-
rates of 12.0% per annum (2015: Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate plus 4.0% per annum). The
weighted average effective interest rate of the loan
receivables is 10.48% (2015: 9.0%) per annum.
Amounts at both 31 March 2016 and 2015 are
repayable within six months from the loan advance
date.

BILLS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 March 2015, bills receivable of
HK$2,332,000 were aged within 60 days from
respective invoice dates. The entire balance of the
bills receivable was discounted bills with recourse,
their corresponding financial liabilities were

included in bank borrowings disclosed in note 29.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

23.

24,

FEUE 5 RE R B

EX (&)
REBBRTHEZEEBYRRSE &
BEERRE2BUEFERZEER
H-BHRLRDBEESHE  ERARK
% 8 (RKEE40) ©

fEUR & 7%77,381,0008 L (—FE— A
£ :10,030,000 7T ) 16 FE W B 7
THZEABEER ZAEAER
BREBFREBRITZEERNEM
4.0%skEERNE12.0% (ZF—h
F BFEREEBRITHZERFNEM
4.0%)EtE ERERZ METHE
BRI AFE10.48% (—B—FHE:
9.0% ) R_ZTE—RER_ZT—HF
A=+ HZFREHERBNER
HERB N A REE-

B RE
R-ZZE-—RAF=A=+—H RBKE
152,332,000 LRIk RBE BT B %
EEHEAARNTRAA-BUREREZR
MERRRERECCHATE H
RSB E B AN FE29 K E 2R
TER-
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25.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash

At 31 March 2016, the entire bank balances
(2015: HK$67,145,000) are current deposits,
carrying interest at market rates ranged from
0.01% to 0.60% (2015: 0.01%) per annum. The
bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the

relevant group entities are set out as below:

25.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

RITEBRRRE
Eﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁm

i TT uFI L
%—ﬁ—ﬁ$:H:+—E'A%ﬁ

HEr (ZZE — A F 67,145,000
m)%ﬁﬁﬁrmv&u TEHF0.01%E
0.60% (ZZE—AHF:0.01%)Z2TMH
FHNEFE -FHEESEEEIUNGEER
BN BT EZRITEGRRS
I mT -

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—hHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

usD Eiv 112 50
RMB AR 59 110
MOP SR TT - 6,039
171 6,199

Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits
placed to certain banks as securities in return for
the banks to provide loans to the Group’s financing
guarantee services customers. These pledged bank
deposits have a maturity of less than one year as
at 31 March 2016 (2015: maturity of less than one

year).

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, all pledged deposits
are denominated in RMB and carry interests at an
average rate of 2.66% (2015: 2.92%) per annum.

B ARITER
EHEMRITFEREFERSE THRITIN
ERZERTAAEE 2@ E ERR
BEFPREERZEREFER KT
—~NF=ZA=1+—H %FECEHR
TEFR—FRIB(ZE—RF : R
—FREE) -

—RNER-_ZTE-—RHE=A
=E4+=18" ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁﬁm)}»&)\&
MBAEREFFEHYFE266% (=ZF
—ThE:292% )t E o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF=H =+—H IL4FF

26. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an analysis of trade payables by

26.

BNESRE

BRERBERRZERAPRINENES

age, presented based on the invoice date at the end BRIBZBRER DA :
of the reporting period:

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—h4E
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FAET
0 — 30 days Tx=+H 2,582 62,804
31 - 90 days =+—H=NAT+H 40 3,502
> 90 days NA+BRE 11,042 8,938
13,664 75,244

The credit periods on purchases of goods are
usually from 1 month to 3 months.

REEnzGENBRER—EAE=

@A -
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27.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND AW FIER
DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM @] 3 7 W EL
TENANTS ZEE
2016 2015
—B-RE —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Receipts in advance from: KBTI EIE 2 TBWGRIE :
— International trading —BERE 5 2,314 755
— Logistics services — i AR 7% 1,153 1,894
— Property investment —MERE 60,309 =
63,776 2,649
Analysed as: I T&EZ D
Current kD) 31,607 2,649
Non-current e ED 32,169 =
63,776 2,649

Receipts in advance and deposits received from
tenants represented the received management
fees in advance under the contracts of provision of
property management services with tenants. The
amounts are non-interest bearing. As at 31 March
2016, receipts in advances are classified as current
and non-current liabilities based on the timing of
performance of the related management services
and the rental period, respectively, as stated on the
relevant contracts.

As at 31 March 2016, deposits received from
tenants are classified as current liabilities based
on the timing of performance of the related
management services and the rental period,
respectively, as stated on the relevant contracts.

B HIBE R AEFWER 2% EEE
FRALZRHMEERRBZAHNE
TRZEWRENEERE - ZERERR
B-RIZB-—RF=ZA=+—RH Hk
AN BIR B AR E R R EITER
EEBorERRBEIFERDEE (K
WAERE S KR -

R-E-—REF=ZA=+t—HB mEP
WERZ 1B E D RIRBEHBEERSEE
TREIRESIBARBEE (HA
A Q) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

28.

29.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 28.

COMPANIES AND A DIRECTOR

Amounts due to related companies in which the
controlling shareholder of the Company (who is
also a director of the Company) has significant
influence to these related companies are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

BNEEQXAR
—REERA

FENRAE AR (RNREZZRBER (T5
RARBEF)RNZEBEQARAE
REEN)REREER 28 RAR

BN—2ESHREAREER 28R
BIRBEREE-

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. MATRHMER
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Bank borrowings RITER
(2015: including discounted —ET-hF BEAERE
bills with recourse), secured MERRER) AHEHA 297,801 9,396
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITE - EE 5,984 =
Other borrowings, unsecured H & 5K m 71,041 =
Bank overdraft RITEX 4,875 -
379,701 9,396
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. MITRHMER
(continued) (%)
2016 2015
AL —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEZREE™
Within one year —F RN 106,209 2,332
More than one year, but not il —F AEA
exceeding two years 4 65,723 -
More than two years, BB E - ET B
but not exceeding five years A 110,551 -
More than five years 3R 1 F 90,973 —
373,456 2,332
Carrying amount of SEREREEGERZ
the bank borrowings RITEREREE
that contains a repayable
on demand clause
— repayable within one year — AR —FNEE 859 832
— not repayable within —EAR—FA
one year (shown under BE(BERERE
current liabilities) BEA) 5,386 6,232
379,701 9,396
Less: Amount due within one W —FRE
year or contains a BHERERE RGBT
repayable on demand WHERR B E
clause shown under BEIHTZ
current liabilities FIH (112,454) (9,396)
Amount shown under ERBEFEET
non-current liabilities Fi7R 2 %A 267,247 =
& The amounts due are based on scheduled 3 FHARRIE TR E K B P S e (B

-
X
repayable dates set out in loan agreements. BrEEBHBEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

29.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
The banks overdraft carried interest at Hong Kong

Prime Interest Rate (2015: nil) per annum.

At 31 March 2016, the Group's variable-rate
bank borrowings of HK$303,785,000 (2015:
HK$7,064,000) carry interest rate at HIBOR plus
2.5% and PBOC Rate plus a premium (2015: HIBOR

plus 2.5%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2016, other borrowings are
unsecured, carry interest at fixed-rate 12.0% and
12.5% per annum and are repayable at maturity
dates ranged from 23 June 2016 — 24 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group discounted bills receivable with recourse in
aggregated amount of HK$2,332,000 to banks for
short term financing. As at 31 March 2015, the
associated borrowings amounted to HK$2,332,000.

There was no such borrowing as at 31 March 2016.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates)
on the Group’s bank and other borrowings are as

follows:

Effective interest rate: BRA =
ERREME
JE [ 55 A 5 4R 17

B E M X RITE

Fixed-rate other borrowings
Variable-rate bank borrowings
Fixed-rate bank borrowings

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

29.

RITREMER

(#&)
RITEXBFRBEBRITREEINE
(ZE—RF:B)FFR-

R—_ZETE—ARNE=ZA=Z+—H8H"
AEEBZHBEMNERITERR
303,785,000 c (=T — A F:
7,064,000/ 7T ) T B F R BB RITRH
ERBEN2.5% KPP EAREITHEM
BE(ZT—RF : FERITEEFE
N2.5% )t 8e

R-ZZE—R"E=ZA=Z+—H8 HEtE
RAEERT ZEEFNE12.0% K
125%st ERERZZT—RFRA
—+=HE-_ZT—+t&=A-+MH
IFHAMAZEIH B EE -

BE_Z—RAFE=A=+—HI#&E
ER AEBACHRESEEHES
2,332,000/ 7T 2 BB REE M EREL
BHYRIT- R_E—RHAEFE=A=1+—
BB &% 52,332,0008 K=
T-AE-A=Z=t+t-BUEE@AE

=5
N

AEBBTREMERZ FERFEX
BE (BIRERAQMEME)MT:

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
12.0% - 12.5% N/A 3 F
2.71% - 8.41% 2.71% - 2.73%
- 1.76%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B SR M T

29.

30.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E % —NF=H =+—H ILFF
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. MITRHMER
(continued) (4 )
At 31 March 2016, the variable-rate bank R-ZE—RNFZA=+—"H ~&EH
borrowings of approximately HK$297,801,000 LA BR T 816,285,000 T (=& —H
(2015: HK$7,064,000) are secured by the Group's F 116,894,000 L) ZME - BWE &
property, plant and equipment with carrying BB N AF{E A1,477,925,0007% 7T
value of HK$16,285,000 (2015: HK$16,894,000) “E-RF B ZREVFEEER
and investment properties with fair value of LAER849297,801,0008 L (=T —H
HK$1,477,925,000 (2015: nil). % 17,064,000/ 7T ) Z I Bl TE 7 & R
TER
DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EEBIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities M EF E N FT iR 2 AR E T IE
recognised and movements thereon during both BEREEHNT :
years:
Tax
allowance
Fair value  on financing
gain on guarantee 1.5%
investment contracts  convertible
properties recognised bonds Others Total
BARE
RENEZ  ERENZ 7.5%
AFERE HUEE  TRRES Hith @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHL FHT TAT FHL
At 1 April 2014 —mEMA—H - 438 7,317 999 8,754
Charge (credit) to profit or loss  #1B B (5 A) Bz 2,649 2,154 (4,906) (937) (1,040)
Exchange realignment 5B (7) - = - )
R-_B-1F
At 31 March 2015 =A=t—H 2,642 2,592 2,411 62 7,107
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B & (5t A) 182 3,567 (1,393) (2,028) (62) 84
Credit to equity STARERR - - (383) = (383)
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—EHEAA
(note 35) (Hrit35) 194,248 - - - 194,248
Exchange realignment R A% (654) (85) = - (739)
RZE-RE
At 31 March 2016 =R=+-H 199,803 1,114 = - 200,917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

30.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$193,381,000
(2015: HK$54,017,000) available for offsetting
against future profits which are subjected to the
confirmation from Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department and the PRC tax Bureau. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31
March 2016, included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$117,671,000 which will expire
in 5 years from the year of origination which is
ranged from 2017 to 2021, the remaining balances
of unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely (2015: HK$3,170,000 expire in 2020
and the remaining balances of unrecognised tax

losses may be carried forward indefinitely).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profits earned by the PRC subsidiary from 1
January 2008 onwards. No deferred taxation has
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,100,525,000
(2015: HK$28,406,000) as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that the profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

30.

EEHIE (&)

RMERAR NEEBERER 2HIE
E518 /4193,381,0008 c (—= T — A
154,017 ooo;%ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

Kah HEGFBHER KT
%M%%ﬁﬁa@:'?‘iﬂf’ﬁﬁoﬂ%mﬁ

FI 15 SR B ZE HE TEDRI - MU 3 AR FE R
BEEBBEEE- R_T—X"E=A
= t+t—HB RAERTEEBERES
$#£117,671,0008 0 &5 B MR &
ERAFRIB (M= —tF=E
ZEZ—F) ABRABEEBZH
THHEERRAZE (S — A F:
3,170,000 7T i 1 = T = T 4 ZI| &
RAERRIBEER 2 &4 ER LA
) o

BEPECEMREHE AZZZN
F—RA—HRAK ETRNBLAHM
FFT B B A1) 5 K A% B 6 - ZBE A TE N
BeARARAIEHETHEMEA
AlZRB KRB AgEA] RERTE
R A B RS ISR R B
ZEFRBNEB2ARZ1,100,525,00078
7T (ZZ—F 4 :28,406,0005 7T) 2
ROMREF 2 EREZBELRTEHIE
B
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AR B SR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Number Nominal
of shares value
vl 4= H{E
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares: AR
Authorised ETE
At 1 April 2014 and RZE—OFHA—B K
31 March 2015 of —hAF=A=+—H
HK$0.0125 each SR ME{E0.0125%8 7T 3,200,000,000 40,000
Increase in authorised #INEE
share capital &N 1,800,000,000 22,500
At 31 March 2016 of RZE-—RF=A=+—8H
HK$0.0125 each SR HEE0.0125%8 7T 5,000,000,000 62,500
Issued and fully paid BEETRER:
At 1 April 2014 of RZZE—WFMA—H
HK$0.0125 each SR MEE0.0125%8 7T 1,928,010,303 24,100
Shares issued for FUER P mEfT 2
goods received (Note iii) R&AD (K1 atiii) 5,656,566 71
Shares issued (Note iv) B EBITRG (A itiv) 350,000,000 4,375
At 31 March 2015 of R_ZE-—AF=A=+—H
HK$0.0125 each SR HE{E0.0125%8 T 2,283,666,869 28,546
Shares issued on conversion REEIAT 5% ] 2 3% (& 5 b
of 7.5% convertible bonds BT Z2IRMH
(Note i) (K1ati) 110,000,000 1,375
Shares issued for acquisition of — FLUEEM B A 7217 2 KD
subsidiaries (Note i) (Kt azii) 398,009,950 4,975
At 31 March 2016 of RZE-RF=A=+—8H
HK$0.0125 each BRMEE0.01258 T 2,791,676,819 34,896
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

During the year ended 31 March 2016,
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of approximately
HK$1,375,000, were issued upon the partial
conversion of 7.5% convertible bonds. Details
are set out in note 33.

During the year ended 31 March 2016,
398,009,950 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of approximately
HK$4,975,000, were issued for settlement of
consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary.
Details are set out in note 35.

Pursuant to an agreement (the “Agreement”)
entered into between Chinlink Hong Kong
Company Limited (“Chinlink (HK)"), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
LTS dated 14 May 2013, LTS was engaged
in the development of Chinlink LMIS for
the Group's logistics projects in Xi‘an City
and Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province, the
PRC. The contract sum of the Agreement
was HK$13,217,000 (the “Contract Sum”)
which will be satisfied by the Company by
allotting and issuing, credited as fully paid,
an aggregate of 26,701,010 ordinary shares,
at issue price of HK$0.495 in three tranches
to LTS. On 29 July 2014, a supplemental
agreement was entered into such that
the contract sum of the Agreement was
revised down to HK$6,765,100 (in which
HK$3,965,100 has been paid by the Company
by the issue of 8,010,303 ordinary shares in
accordance with the Agreement during prior
interim period) and that Chinlink (HK) shall
pay the remaining HK$2,800,000 by way of
procuring the Company allotting and issuing
5,656,566 ordinary shares at the original
issue price of HK$0.495 per share to LTS in
recognition of the services rendered by LTS to
the Group up to the date of the supplemental
agreement. On 4 August 2014, 5,656,566
ordinary shares, with aggregate par value of
approximately HK$71,000, of the Company
were allotted and issued as consideration in
exchange of goods received from LTS. Upon
receipt of the 5,656,566 consideration shares
by LTS, the Agreement was terminated. Details
of the supplemental agreement were set out
in the announcement made by the Company
dated 29 July 2014.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

31.

R (&)

Hiati:

B i

B &t iii:

REE=ZZT—XF=A=+—
BILEFER ARAAEENA
1,375,0005% 7T 2 110,000,0008% &
BB R I A7 5% Al R E 5
BRI BT o SE B H MM FE33 o

REBEE=-ZT—X<"E=ZF=+—H1
FERN  NAFBHEER4,975,000
7 7T 2.398,009,950/% & 3@ A% & it
B E — R B A R Z R BT A
AT o FHBERNMIFE35R ©

RBREARRZEEZEWEB A A
TERS (BB ARAA ([HE
FE(FEB)])BEITSR=_Z—=
FRHATMBRTY 2 W ([ZiH
B UTSHEAAEERF BB
HAALTMEREFMZYMARIER
HELEERSYREREMNRS -
WEZAEHEER13,217,0008
T([EHNELE]) BRARAE
BIRBITEER0.495B LD = H#t
MLTSEE & R FHIT AR AR R 2
4 26,701,010 E B 2 A X
ffeR=—_ZT—NELBE=-+NH"
HWRMBECI N UBZMEZE
4 & B E B 5T R 26,765,100 7T
(EFRAFHHEBIBIRZ =
AN Q R E B3 178,010,303 &
A% 2 113,965,1000% 7T ) % 3 FE
S (BE)ERAREAQRARE
f%0.495% T 2 WA BT B AL % &
%% 175,656,566/% I i I8 FLTSIA
< #:%82,800,000/8 7T ' AEREE
W 7o s 2 B BALTS[A) AN = [ 12 4t
ZRE - R_ZT—WENANEA -
KRB EREELNE71,0008 T2
5,656,566% & AR B A 8% R 31T
AUMEARBRITSER &Rz
B o RLTSW B|5,656,566 A% 1 (& A%
DE Zam DRI - W R 2 5F
BHRARFBHAE-_T—MNFE+
B-thBZA#H-
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
On 28 April 2014, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Wealth

Note iv:

Keeper, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, in relation to the subscription
of 350,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company under the specific mandate at the
subscription price of HK$0.55 per ordinary
share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription
was completed on 26 June 2014 and the
gross proceeds from the Subscription was
HK$192,500,000.

COUPON BONDS

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 15
October 2014, 8.0% coupon bonds with principal
amount of HK$71,000,000 and HK$129,000,000
(collectively referred as the “8.0% Coupon
Bonds"”) were issued by the Company at par to
independent parties on 15 October 2014 (the
“Issue Date 1”) and 31 October 2014 (the “Issue
Date 2"), respectively.

The 8.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 8.0% per annum. Interest is

repayable annually.

31.

32.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

B (&)

Kativ R=ZF—MEFMA=Z+N\B A2
AR R B] 2 S A2 2 IR A B] Wealth
Keepers] Y REEH = AE B HAR
BRI EZE R BR0.558 T
2 A8 B A2 F]350,000,000
Mgk ([RBBE]) - RES
HERZ-ZZT—NFESAZTHE
RIARREEIR 2 TS RIEETE R
192,500,000 7T

REES

BEBHA-ZT—NF+A+THA
ZEEXE ARARDARZ=ZE—H
FTA+TRAB([#THEE]) K=
T-MFE+A=+—H([%TAH
2DIEMERBIALTETASES
71,000,000/ T % 129,000,000/ 7T
M8.0%RBESH (1B [8.0%ELEE
%)

8.0%ERBEHFIAETLFE LIREF
8.0%5 B o M BIRFX [T -
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32.

COUPON BONDS (continued)

The 8.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the date
immediately following twenty four months after
issuance which is 15 October 2016 (the “Maturity
Date 1”) and 31 October 2016 (the “Maturity
Date 2”). The Company can redeem the 8.0%
Coupon Bonds in whole or in part, at par together
with payment of an early redemption premium
calculated at the rate of 9.0% p.a. accrued less any
interests paid by the Company on it, by giving not
less than 10 business days’ notice to the holder(s)
of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds at any time from the
Issue Date 1 to the Maturity Date 1 and Issue Date
2 to Maturity Date 2, respectively.

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 8.0%
Coupon Bonds at the date of issuance, 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015 are insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 8.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$16,159,000 are included in the
carrying amount of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds is

12.13% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, interest
charged on the 8.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$24,063,000 (2015: HK$9,780,000) of which
HK$20,710,000 (2015: HK$7,836,000) was
recognised in profit or loss and HK$3,353,000
(2015: HK$1,944,000) was capitalised in investment

properties under construction.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

32.

SEES (&)

BO%EEEBEHKRERETRZ
—t+tmREAER (B ==—X<&F+ A
+HA) ([APE1)HR_T—XF
+TA=+—RA(T&8#HE2])FH R
BB RSB RBETEE2EE
A2 EHE ARRABERERR
8.O0%ZEBEFIFAEAZLTLRI10ME
EEAMBA UEEERIKI.O%F
FEEFZRFERGEERANQ AR
HAZ A2 EMFE 2R E 5
DEOS0%ESES -

ARBEERR RNEBETHH =

—NEF HE-T— HE=-F— ﬁi—
A=+—H 8.0%FEEEHFEMLH
1 Z&?EITE#{

16,159,000/8C8.0% Z B E45ERE 2

RHEAF A8 0N EEELEBELEMA
B-8.0%ZEEEFMNERNERETE
12.13% °

REZ-_ZEZ—R"F=ZA=+—81t
FEN 80%EBEHMFE T H
£24,063,0008 L (ZF— R F:
9,780,000/ 7t.) + £ #20,710,000/%
L (=T —FH%F:7,836,0008 L)
RIEB= AR K%3,353,0008 7L (=&
— F £ : 1,944,000/ 7T) B & AL R
TEEEMHEN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

COUPON BONDS (continued)

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 15
July 2015, 7.5% coupon bonds with principal
amount of HK$116,000,000 and HK$84,000,000
(collectively referred as the “7.5% Coupon
Bonds”) were issued by the Company at par to
independent parties on 15 July 2015 (the “Issue
Date 3”) and 31 August 2015 (the “Issue Date

4"), respectively.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 7.5% per annum. Interest is

repayable annually.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the issue date which is 15 July 2017
(the “Maturity Date 3”) and 31 August 2017 (the
“Maturity Date 4") respectively. The Company
can redeem the 7.5% Coupon Bonds in whole or
in part, at par together with interest calculated
at the rate of 7.5% per annum accrued thereon
from Issue Date 3 and Issue Date 4 and up to the
date of redemption less any interests paid by the
Company on it, by giving not less than 10 business
days’ notice to the holder(s) of the 7.5% Coupon
Bonds at any time from the Issue Date 3 to the
Maturity Date 3 and Issue Date 4 to Maturity Date
4, respectively.

The director of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 7.5%
Coupon Bonds at the date of issuance and 31
March 2016 are insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 7.5% Coupon
Bonds of HK$16,000,000 are included in the
carrying amount of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds is
11.61% per annum.

32.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

SEES (&)

RERHPR-_FT—AFtA+AA
REFXE RRARSFN-_F—R
FLtATHEA([RTEM3)) K=
Z-RAFNA=+—RB([RTAEH
4 REERABIALETASER
116,000,000 7T 284,000,000/ 7T
M7.5%REE7 (G5 [7.5%RE &
%) -

T5%ZBEANBTAE WIREF
7.5%5T B o F| B F LT -

T5%RBEHF KD RNRETHEE
2E-_RBAFER(AI=_=Z—+tF+A
+EHB) ([APAE3 )R- —+t4F
NA=Z+—B([28MB4])EH - R
BFITRHE R A3 R ETH B4 E
HH4% B HE AR A A BERE AR
7T5%ZEBEHFIFEAZETLR0ME
EEHMBA UAEERIKT.5%F
A EERT 2 8317 A B3R EITHH4
REZEER A2 A ERAR A
HEAZ A2 E@FEZE Lo EE
T5%RBEESH-

ARAEZRS NETEHAR-F
=A

— N =+—H 75%Z2 &%
ZERHEZ ATFELTRERK-

16,000,000/8 0827 5% ZE B &5 G
ZRGKRAF AT SR EBBEEEMA
B 75%REEBHENERMNEREF
11.61% °
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32.

COUPON BONDS (continued)

March 2016,
interest charged on the 7.5% Coupon Bonds
of HK$14,546,000 (2015: nil) of which
HK$13,270,000 was recognised in profit or loss

During the year ended 31

and HK$1,276,000 was capitalised in investment

properties under construction.

Pursuant to the bond certificate and bonds
instrument both dated on 31 August 2015,
12.0% coupon bonds with principal amount of
HK$450,000,000 (“Short Term 12.0% Coupon
Bonds"”) and HK$120,000,000 (“Long Term
12.0% Coupon Bonds"”) (collectively referred as
the “12.0% Coupon Bonds"”) were issued by the
Company at par to the Vendor (as defined in note
35) on 31 August 2015 (the “Issue Date 5”),

respectively.

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 12.0% per annum. Interest
of the Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds and Long
Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds are repayable on

maturity date and annually, respectively.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

32.

SEES (&)

RBE-_T—XR"EF=ZA=+—HBLHF
BN 75%EEBEHFMAEXZ LA
14,546,000 T (— T — L F : &) -
H 113,270,000/ 7t 2 A 1B 25 A FE R
51,276,000/ 70 2 & AL RIERIZRE
MER -

BRIEBHHAE-_ZT—RFENA=ZT—
AzEHFBERESFXE  KXQA]
RZTE—AFNA=+—8 (%1
AEs)ZEERES (E& KT
35) 5 Bl 17 7~ & 8 /450,000,000
BT ([EH12.0%E5E8%]) &
120,000,000 7T ([ R #112.0% &
BEEHF]I)NI20%ZEEH (5
[12.0%Z8 &%) -

12.0%EEEHUBTFE LIES
F12.0%T B - HH120%E B EFH
RERE12.0%EEBEHF 2B 5 FIR
A RIEFEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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COUPON BONDS (continued)

The Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds and Long
Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the
fourth month and on the fifth anniversary of the
Issue Date 5, which is 31 December 2015 (the
“Maturity Date 5”) and 31 August 2020 (the
“Maturity Date 6") respectively. On 31 December
2015, part of Short term 12.0% Coupon Bonds
amounting to HK$32,000,000 was redeemed.
A supplemental agreement was entered with
the Vendor to extend the maturity date of
remaining Short term 12.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$418,000,000 to 30 June 2016 (the “Maturity
Date 7”). The Company can redeem the 12.0%
Coupon Bonds in whole or in part, at par together
with all accrued and unpaid interest calculated at
the rate of 12.0% per annum accrued from Issue
Date 5 and up to the date redemption by giving not
less than 10 business days’ notice to the holder(s)
of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds at any time from the
Issue Date 5 to the Maturity Date 6 and Maturity
Date 7, respectively.

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 12.0%
Coupon Bonds at the date of issuance and 31
March 2016 are insignificant.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, interest
charged on the 12% Bonds of HK$38,935,000
(2015: nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 30
August 2013, 7.5% convertible bonds (the “7.5%
Convertible Bonds”) with aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 were issued by the
Company at par with conversion price of HK$0.75
per share to independent parties on 30 August
2013 (the “Issue Date 6").

32.

33.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

SEES (&)

RE2. 0% EEHFRRE12.0%E
BESFEDIRETES 2 EMNEA
MERARFERB (N —AF+=
A=+—B([E#AS ) R=F=
TFENA=+—H8B (2 A6]))Z|
H-R—_T—RHF+_A=+—8"
4 %8 /32,000,000 7T 2 20 5 %5 =8
NRO%EEEHCER -BHEFE
S ff 76 155 5% DA #% 82 5418,000,000/%8
TTZEE12.0% R EEHF 2B R A
?é%\;:;—/—\i/—\ﬂ:wLEl (258
A7J) - THHSZ R H6 & 5
H;@EWRQHHFTZ!K’ATT&%E%@@@
12.0%RBEHFFBEAZELE TR0
EEEA RN UEAEEREG R
fTHHISHEZ=ER H #1%12.0% F 7
KA E M BREGRARAISFEZS

SHEHEE12.0%ZE 8 E%5 -
KABEERE THHE-Z
—/\E:ﬂ:-i——El 120%71@.;»15

HZERRE L ATFELTEK-

RBE_Z-—R"F=ZA=+—H

HEFEFER 2%EFNFESZE A
38,935,000 L (ZE—AF : E)E
GRS 3

BiEEHA-Z—=4#/\A=1+H

ZEEHEXE ARAR_ZTE—=FN\
A=+8 ([#TAH6))RAAERB
M AT EITARE 8% A300,000,000
EILHT7 5% Al R ES ([7.5% 7 #
RESH|) S EATRRM0.75%8

7T|:o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The 7.5% Convertible Bonds are denominated
in HK$ and carry interest at 7.5% per annum.
Interest is repayable annually. The holders of the
7.5% Convertible Bonds are entitled to convert the
7.5% Convertible Bonds into 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company (“Conversion Shares”)
at initial conversion price of HK$0.75 per share
at any time from the Issue Date 6 to the maturity
date falling on the second anniversary from the
Issue Date 6, subject to the anti-dilutive adjustment
due to change in capital structure of the Company
(including share consolidation, share subdivision
and capitalisation issue and other events which
have dilutive effects on the issued share capital of
the Company as set out in the bonds instrument).
The Conversion Shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding
at the date of the conversion.

The 7.5% Convertible Bonds contains two
components, liability (including closely related
early redemption option) and equity elements.
At initial recognition, the fair value of liability
of HK$241,200,000 was recognised with the
residual value of HK$58,800,000, representing
equity element, presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds and warrants reserve”.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
of HK$14,717,000 are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion. Transaction costs
relating to equity component of HK$3,588,000 are
included in equity. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 22.03% per annum. Deferred
tax liability of HK$9,702,000 was recognised to the
convertible bonds and warrants reserve on initial

recognition.

BE X -ARE=ZA=+—HILFEE

33.

RRES (&)

75% 0] IR EHE LB TEHE TiIRE
F75%Fr B oM BIREZ(T7.5%0]
BMRESFFAEAGERET A Hete
EFTAMemMATE AMEH A &
il e 42 ) 25 85 48 (B 5 iR 0. 7578 7T %
7.5%ﬂ%ﬁ%1§%?§@%400,000,000
fRARANFEBR ([ERRE])

AARRBIRAREZS (B %EHQ{"A
B RO BERMEEITRES B
FRE 8 AR R Rl B 3T IR AN E K E 52
EMEMEMG) MIELREBEHE -
BRRMDERTA 7 E K HEER A BT
EHMIBBERGZHRZEHAL -

T5%AMREFBREEE (BERYD
A IR EO ) RERME D °
R 1] 15 7 SR BF » 241,200,000 JT %
mRAEAEAF(E  #1858,800,000
B (BN =S 5 ) 5 = ol
EIARRESRAREZHEE]
14,717,000 T B EF D B #E 2

REKXATIGTABBER D EEME-
3,588,000/ TR LA BHA LS
AGFAEZ - BEF DK ERF =X
BT E22.03% ° 9,702,000/ 7T K IE
EFIEE BERYVIRERERER AR
% (& % M e AR A 75 o 45 o
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 7.5%
Convertible Bonds at the date of issuance and 31
March 2015 are insignificant.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, part of
the 7.5% Convertible Bonds were converted into
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company with
aggregate par value of HK$1,375,000. Deferred
tax of approximately HK$2,028,000 was credited
to profit or loss during the year with deferred tax
liability of approximately HK$383,000 derecognised
upon conversion of the 7.5% Convertible Bonds.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, interest
charged on the 7.5% Convertible Bonds of
HK$23,613,000 (2015: HK$59,714,000) was

recognised in profit or loss.

The remaining 7.5% Convertible Bonds after the
conversion of approximately HK$233,813,000
(principal amount of HK$217,500,000) was fully
redeemed on 30 August 2015.

On 23 December 2015, the Company and
an investor entered into a convertible bonds
subscription agreement and pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place convertible bonds with
aggregate principal amount of US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,505,000) to
the investor with maturity date on 29 June 2017
(the “10.0% Convertible Bonds”). The issue of
10.0% Convertible Bonds was completed on 30
December 2015.

33.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

RRES (&)

ARBEERR REBETHEHAR-ZF
—RF=A=1+—8 75%08RKE
HFZERRE L ATFELTEK-

REE=-ZE—X<XF=A=+—H81
FEN FBDT7.5% 0 [ & w2
BB A AR #HEE1,375,0008 T 2
110,000,0004% & 38 A% ° 492,028,000
B ZBELERBRAFEE NG AE
% M#)383,000/8 Tt 2 BLEF B A &
ELI7.5% A AR (5 5 I B HA R 4% | | 7

=7
e

RBE-_Z—AF=ZA=+—H1t
FEAN 75%0RBEFHFE X
123,613,000 L (=& — A F:
59,714,000 7T ) E XN Bm N ER

RE®REZHTT7.5%0 8K E
% #9233,813,0008 7T (K& A
217,500,000 ) ER=ZZF—HF N
A=+B%E&ER-

R-ZZE—AFE+-_A=+=8 &R
AE—FREET LA BRRELFRE
Bl ARARREMEESRL
£ KR E 8% 510,000,000E T (HE
7 #977,505,000/8 7T ) Z AT AR (& 5
NBHARAR-_ZT—tF A=+ 1A
([10.0% AR EH]) - 10.0% A 4
REFR-_FT—AF+-_A=+AH%
P BEAT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The 10.0% Convertible Bonds were issued at par
and carried an interest rate of 10.0% per annum,
which was payable semi-annually in arrear from the
date of issue. The holder of the 10.0% Convertible
Bonds has the option to either convert them into
the Company’s ordinary shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.83 per share, subject to conversion price
adjustments, (including share consolidation, share
subdivision, share reclassification, capitalisation
issue and other events which have dilutive effects
on the issued share capital of the Company as set
out in the respective subscription agreements),
at any time during the period commencing from
8 February 2016 up to the close of business on
the date falling ten days prior to the respective
maturity date. The conversion shares shall rank pari
passu in all respects with all other existing shares
outstanding at the date of the conversion.

No early redemption at the option of the holders
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds is allowed except
when (i) the shares of the Company cease to be
listed or admitted to trading, or when the shares
of the Company are suspended from trading for a
period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days; or (i) there is a change of control over the
Company as set out in the respective subscription
agreements and trust deed.

Save as disclosed above, the terms and definitions
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds are set out in the
respective subscription agreements and disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 24 December
2015.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

33.

RRES (&)

10.0% A | EFREERET ALIZ
FHE10.0% 2 BETHHES
FEXMN—IRFE - 10.0%7 # I &
HFLZBBEAAARB-ZT—RF-_AN
FEE=HEIBA+RANEREE
B 6 A R B AT BB S I 121510.0% 7]
BRREFEZROSIB T EHHREE
BRAREZERE EERENE
HE (BEABRHEH BROFE K
MEFIE BACBETREBARE
ek P B AN R ) 2 B AT AR AE K
BEREZHMEMHERARE) -8
BRMEMB T HARKBHZAE
HBREEHTRNZFARFHA -

BREOAQRARBRMDINE LM THR
HEBE HAEARFRNMNEEEERS
iE B RE30EEER S B K(i)&
HARBHEREARBRMKELA
RIFEFIRE R EE B LASN 10.0% A] 2
BEHFBEATTEEBIRTED -

Br EXXFTIE T AN 10.0% ARk E
F 2GR RIEHEEINRSEERER
BATHEBERARRBHA-T—H
F+-_A-F+HMBZRAMHA-
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

In the presence of the conversion option, the
10.0% Convertible Bonds may not exchange a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instrument
for a fixed amount of cash. Therefore, the 10.0%
Convertible Bonds contain two components, the
amortised cost liability component (including closely
related early redemption option) and conversion
option derivative. The fair values of the liability
component and the conversion option derivative
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds were determined
at the respective date of issue. The amortised cost
liability component represented the present value
of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market interest rate
of similar non-convertible instruments and carried
at amortised cost. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the Convertible Bonds
is 24.94%. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
liability component is carried at amortised cost
while the conversion option derivative is measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 10.0%
Convertible Bonds at the date of issuance and 31

March 2016 are insignificant.

33.

BE L -ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

RRES (&)

EREBRBREZBGET  10.0%0] #
BEHFTARXRKEEHRE ZAR A
BamTARDETSERS -Eit-
10.0% AT R EFDSEEKAEE
Ho (REZDERE IR ERSE)
RBPEESTETAMM@EID e 10.0%
MR EFEEDS RBRETET
BEZAFERSHEBEITESREE
BHEKABER D BEARBERELD
o EREUNTT MR T ARITHS
F %= B 3R A IR (B 0 1R 3 S K AR B BR o
TRRELFBBELBIPZEENER
24.94% - R X EREZ  BEEDE
B AT BR - MR ST A T AR
ARFEFE A FELEHREZTRE

o

AAREERAE REBETAHPER=Z
—RNFE=Z=A=+—"H"10.0%a # k&
BEH2ELOHREZ AFELFEK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 R I T

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33.

10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

The movements of the liability component and

conversion option derivative of the 10.0%

Convertible Bonds for the year is set out below:

R ES (&)

10.0% AJ {5 (E 55 (&)

10.0% A 2R ER B EHD Rk kg
TETERFRZESHHIINT :

Amortised Conversion
cost liability option
components derivatives

85 B A R A
=R 415 FTET A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT

At 30 December 2015 (date of RZ-ZZE—HRF+-_A=+H
issue of Convertible Bonds) (AT ES 2 BETEH) 65,307 12,246

Effective interest expense R ERZ

recognised in profit or loss ERMERXE 4,029 =
Change in fair value NEEES) - (4,324)
Exchange realignment PE H % (2,653) (31)
At 31 March 2016 R-E—RF=A=t+—H 66,683 7,891

AVEFEHEASEREREZE
YEERBEXGETSNEEREYMERE
B (FE)BRABHNT

The fair value measurement was carried out by
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not

connected to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 33. AAREZR (&)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued) 10.0% A] A% B 55 (&
Fair values of the conversion option embedded 10.0% AJ #2 f% 15 25 1A R # AR R 1 35 7T
in the 10.0% Convertible Bonds at the date of AR ZZE—A"F=A=+—HB2
issue and at 31 March 2016 are determined using ANFEBRBE GEMER =B H
binomial option pricing model by the independent BEBRAEE WABENT :

valuer, with inputs as follow:

Convertible Bonds

AR & %
30 December 31 March
2015 2016
(date of issue)
—ZET—EF —E-RE
+=ZA=+H =H=+-—H
(ZE{THHE)
Market price of KARBED Z
the Company’s shares (HK$) mE (BT) 0.66 0.61
Strike price of conversion MR 2
option (HK$) B#E (BxT) 0.83 0.83
Risk-free rate (%) 2 2 i M) 2= (%) 0.3125 0.3508
Expected volatility (%) T8 R 18 (%) 56.45 55.62
Dividend yield (%) fi% 2. 8] 7k 2 (%) - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors, eligible employee and

consultants (collectively, the “Grantees”).

On 24 April 2013, 93,100,000 share options
(the “Share Options 1”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 93,100,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.58 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 1 in full.
Share Options 1 granted are exercisable from 24
April 2014 to 23 April 2023 and are vested in five
tranches given that the Grantees remain in service
of the Group at the beginning of each exercisable
period with (i) 20% shall become exercisable from
24 April 2014 to 23 April 2023; (ii) 20% shall
become exercisable from 24 April 2015 to 23 April
2023; (iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 24
April 2016 to 23 April 2023; (iv) 20% shall become
exercisable from 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2023
and (v) 20% shall become exercisable from 24 April
2018 to 23 April 2023.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

34.

iR RSt &l
RARRER=ZZE——FNLA=Z+—
HBB I ARZRRMNBRESZ =
ZEESBES AEARKES RERM
(T IEBAD) -

RZETE—=ZFm"WA=-+HTA:
93,100,000f7 fE l i ([ R #E11) E
BTEABRAN BEBERBEHITFERE
IR 118 1R T EESAR0.58B TR A
REIRAF BREME0.0125FTZE
$£93,100,000/% 37 A% 17 - BT % L B8 A%
BIRZE—NFNAZFTONAE=Z
Z=FMA - +=HA FITELRE
BARSATERANDRERAER
AR TS ABEB  HH(0)20%H
ARZE-—WHFONA=-FTMHNAE=F
“=FOA—F=HITE: (i)20%#&
AR -ZE—RAFNA=-f+MAZE=F
—=FMA=Z+=HTE: ((i)20% 5
AARZE—AFOA-F+EHAZE=_Z
“=FMA -+ =B77E (v)20%#
ARZE—tEtFONA-FTMNAE=ZF
——FMAZ+=ZHTE: X(V)20%
BARZE-\FOA-+tEHAE=
E-=FENMA=-+=BTE-
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 29 November 2013, 15,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 2”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.70 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 2 in full.
Share Options 2 granted are exercisable from 29
November 2014 to 28 November 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service of the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2014 to 28
November 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 29 November 2015 to 28 November 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 29
November 2016 to 28 November 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 29 November
2017 to 28 November 2023 and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2018 to 28
November 2023.

34.

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFEE

iR RSt &l

(#&)
RZTE—=%+—A=+hA8"
15,000,0001p B Rz i ([EE AR #E2 ) B
BTERAN BEBERBHRITER
IR #E21& 1R 1TE B T R0.70/8 TR
RARRARFHREEO0.0125%8 T2
& #£15,000,00008% ¥ i 1 © BT 5 H B8
BE2R—_ZT—NF+— A=+ NAH
BT =F+—HA=Z+N\BHAT
THEERERARSAITERID
RERAEEBZARTYRILEE -
HA()20% BN T —WNF+— A
—t+thBEZE-_=ZF+—A=1+AN
BT (ii)20% AR —AF
+—A-t+hBE-_ZE-_=%+—A8
—HNABTE: (i)20% AR -F
—R"EFt+—AZt+hBEZZT==
F+—AZ+N\BITE: (v20%1
AARZZE—t&E+—A=Z+hB=E
ZTE=F+—-—AZ+ N NBITFE:
RV)20% AR = — N NFE+—A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 17 December 2013, 4,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 3”) were granted to the
Grantee who is entitled to subscribe for a total
of 4,000,000 new shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.68 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 3 in full.
Share Options 3 granted are exercisable from 17
December 2014 to 16 December 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service of the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2014 to 16
December 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 17 December 2015 to 16 December 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 17
December 2016 to 16 December 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 17 December
2017 to 16 December 2023 and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2018 to 16
December 2023.

The table below discloses movement of the
Company’s share options:

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

34.

iR RSt &l

(#&)
R—ZZE—=F+=-_8F+t8"
4,000,000 B Mz 7 ([EB R AE3 1) E
BTERAN BEBERBHRITERE
RE 318 L1 TEEFA0.68B LR A
ANAIRARGREE0.0125B T L&
$£4,000,000 8% 37 i% 17 BT #% i B8 AR 4
SR E—NWMFE+-_A+tHE-_FT
Z=F+Z A+NHA FITEIL R
BARSAITERINRSE R A& R
ZART O A#FEE  EFR(0)20%#
ARZE—WmEF+_HA++EtRAE=ZE
Z=F+ZATABIE: ()20%5
AR E—AF+-_A+tHE_F
Z=F+ZAF+NBTE (ii)20%
AR -_ZE—A"F+_A+tRAE=_F
ZE=EFE+ZA+TRBTE: (v)20% 1
AR—_T—+HE+-_A+tBE_FT
Z=FF+ZATABTE: R(v)20%
BAR=ZE—NF+=_A+EtHE=
T =F+Z A+ NBITE-

TREE AL A2 M RIEE

Number of

share options

BREZAR
At 1 April 2014 R-ZFE—mFMA—H 111,600,000
Forfeited during the year: F R
Share Options A A i
— Staff (Note) —BI (K:#) (1,000,000)
At 31 March 2015 and RZZE-—AF=A=+—HK
31 March 2016 —E-—RF=ZA=+—H 110,600,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. HBRRESHE
(continued) (%)
Note: The share options were forfeited due to M BREE-—E2EINBE—ZT—H
termination of service of a staff during the year F=ZRA=+—HIEFEANLILERE
ended 31 March 2015. i 2 452 I o
The following table discloses movement of and TRFEARRR)Z AT B 2
weighted average exercise prices of the Company's B) R InAETFHITEE

exercisable share option:

2016 2015
“Z2-R% —Z-1f
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average  exercisable average exercisable
exercise price options  exercise price options
mEFH kN T A7
TRE  BREZE I%E  EREHE
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
L Bk
BT BT
Exercisable at the beginning  AJAE 4]
of the year 71 0.600 22,120,000 = =
Share option become RERTFTRL
exercisable during the year ~ BERX 2B - 22,120,000 = 22,320,000
Share option forfeited RERBKZ
during the year BEeE - - = (200,000)
Exercisable at the end ARER
of the year 71F 0.600 44,240,000 0.600 22,120,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

The Consultants provided services related to
the development of logistics services business
and financing guarantee services business. The
consultants who solely rendered services and
reported their duties to the Group during the
current reporting period. Such services are similar
as in nature to those rendered by employees of the
Group.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares on 24
April 2013, 29 November 2013 and 17 December
2013 which are the dates of grant of Share Options
1, Share Options 2 and Share Option 3 respectively,
were HK$0.58 per share, HK$0.70 per share and
HK$0.68 per share respectively.

The fair values of the Share Options 1, Share
Options 2 and Share Options 3 are determined at
the respective dates of grant using the binomial
option pricing model were HK$33,794,000,
HK$6,508,000 and HK$1,689,000 respectively.

BE L -ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

34.

BRERE

(#&)

% F B E R A B YR R X 55 S B
BRERBRBEBERIRE -%ZFRB
B AR B E R A B R MR
REBFEE2BE -ARARFENE
BEERHERBFEEEU-

AARBRHR =T —=FMNA=1+MX
H-ZZE—=F+—A=Z+thBRk=
T—=F+ZA+tB (DR ARER
BRI REREIZRE A
ZWMED R AFRR0.58B L B
0.70/8 7t & & %0.68/8 7T

FRZEAAECEEXNETE 2B
1 BRE2RBEREINSEEEAR
Bz A¥{ED R /33,794,000 7T

6,508,000 7T & 1,689,000/ JT
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate

the fair values of share options at the date of grant:

Grant date share price
BB HRE
Exercise price

TE(E

Expected life

Bt H

Expected volatility

T8 HA R 18

Dividend yield

& BB R &
Risk-free interest rate
£ 2 B A =

Share Options 1
24 April 2013
R
—E—=F
A=+mH

HK$0.58
0.58# 7T
HK$0.58
0.58/ 7T

7.75 years —
8.75 years
7.75% - 8.75%
60.68%
60.68%

0%

0%

0.46% - 0.77%
0.46% —0.77%

The binomial option pricing model has been used

to estimate the fair value of the share options. The

variables and assumptions used in computing the

fair value of the share options are based on the

best assessment of the directors of the Company

on the valuer’s estimation. Changes in variables and

assumptions may result in changes in the fair value

of the share options.
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34. BRESE
(#&)

THRRID AR EBBRERR L A

Bz APE:

Share Options 2
29 November 2013
B IR 2
—E—=F
+—A=t+nhAH

HK$0.70
0.70% 7T
HK$0.70
0.70%& 7T
7.75 years —
8.75 years
7.75%-8.75%
57.50%
57.50%

0%

0%

1.70% - 1.81%
1.70% —1.81%

BREsAFEDRAZEAREE
BREA G -RtEBREZATE
BAAZEBRMBRIDERARAE

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

Share Options 3
17 December 2013
B IR E3
—E—=F
+=HA+tH

HK$0.68
0.68/% 7T
HK$0.68
0.68/% 7T

7.75 years —
8.75 years
7.75% - 8.75%
56.93%
56.93%

0%

0%

2.01% - 2.18%
2.01%—2.18%

T HEN 2 (55 2 B ET -2

RBEERZEDAEERBERE 2 XF

HEB-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

The number of share options granted expected
to vest has been reduced to reflect historical
experience of forfeiture of 0.90% of options
granted prior to completion of vesting period and
accordingly the share option expense has been
adjusted. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in the profit and loss over the
remaining vesting period, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 August 2015, the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) the entire issued share capital
of E-Innovation and (ii) sale loan of a subsidiary
of E-Innovation (the “Sale Loan”) due to Sino
Virtue Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) at a total
consideration of approximately HK$830,846,000.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

34.

35.

iR RSt &l

(#&)

REBHTKA BHEENE R
EHEREZRBED RS UARBZK
0.90%ERHBERENE L &5 [
REREERADEAR -RIEHR
REEEITBAGKEBOMGTER
HEE -EIIREMTHNEE (E)
RHRTHEBEREEEER RSYHE
RIEREELERAE -

WiE— KB AT

R—_ZE—RAFNA=Z+—H A£HEH
5E K DA 48 X B 49830,846,0007% 7T Uk
BE()aalz 23 E BITIRA R (i)tE Al
Z—EHRBRARGEREEERAR
AAI(TBERZHEER([HEER

;1) e
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*

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

E-Innovation is a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands on 7 July 2014 with limited liability
and was then wholly owned by the Vendor. It is
an investment holding company and its principal
asset is its investment in High Express International
Limited (“High Express”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong on 15 January 2014 with limited
liability. High Express in turn holds 73.375% of the
equity interest in FAZFELEXBR A A (Xi'an
Tang Rong Real Estate Limited*) (“Tang Rong")
whose principal activity is leasing of properties, and
73.375% of the equity interest in 7% KA 'S HiG
EMREABRAF (Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao
Furniture and Fixture Limited*) (“Ba Qiao"”) whose
principal activities are operation and management
of commercial buildings.

Tang Rong owns a land parcel situated at the east
side of Banyin Road, Bagiao District, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, PRC (R EIPRFAE AL T B 15
& 3| B HE M) (the “Land”) and the shopping
mall building with a total gross floor area of
approximately 190,000 square meters comprising
seven-storey above ground and two basement
floors, situated on the Land (namely, Daminggong
Construction Materials and Furniture Shopping
Centre (Dongsanhuan Branch)*) (the “Commercial
Complex”) and Ba Qiao owns the fixed assets in
the Commercial Complex and is principally engaged
in operation, and management of Commercial
Complex.

For identification purpose only

35.

*

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

W kg — BB A A

(#&)
BEA—BR_ZE—NFEALHR
EEAERAHRESFMARIZERA
A -HEEBEFZEMB-HA—M
BREZRABREFEEERERSD
BEEERAR([BE] —RARN=
T—ME—-A+RBREB MK
ZBRAR)ZRE =G ENFEAA
TELRBEEAR AR ([ER] H=E
BEXBREEME) 273.375% M 1#
RAZRKAESHEBREMRXEBERAQR]
(W] EXEXBREEREERN
EEF)273.375%0% 1 -

BHEERMNNTRERAEALTHR
E¥SIEEA R ([Zti]) R
EE i RMEEE R E W E A
R T EIE49/4190,000F 5K 2
BYFLEF(BARBEEMKERE
IR e R=IR)E) ([FEXE])-
BREABEABAZEETEEL X
EREFMERECEEREE -

EHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

35.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
signed between the Company and the Vendor
on 18 February 2015, the consideration shall be
partly satisfied by (i) HK$30,000,000 in cash and
paid within two months after signing of the sale
and purchase agreement; (ii) HK$450,000,000
in cash upon completion of the acquisition (the
“Completion”); (iii) HK$120,000,000 settled by
procuring the Company to issue the bond in the
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 carrying
interest rate of 12.0% due on the fifth anniversary
of the date of issue of the bond to the Vendor (or
its nominee) upon Completion; and (iv) allot and
issue of 398,009,950 shares of the Company to the
Vendor (or its nominee) upon Completion. On 31
July 2015 and 31 August 2015, the Company and
the Vendor entered into supplemental agreements
pursuant to which the parties agreed to revise
the means of settlement of the remaining cash
consideration of HK$450,000,000 to be paid
upon Completion with the unsecured bond with
aggregate principal amount of HK$450,000,000.
All these details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 18 February 2015, 31 July
2015 and 31 August 2015 as well as the circular
of the Company dated 6 May 2015. The carrying
amount of the Sale Loan at the Completion is
approximately HK$379,353,000.

BE L -ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

35.

W kg — BB A A

(#&)
BEAAAEELSIR_ZTE—RHF
ZATNBEEZEEHZE RE
HEBRBATARINEHS : (WVRE
30,000,000 L RN EZE BB H#%E
18 B W2 A s (ii)3R 450,000,000
BILTERREXWESE([FTR])F
255 (i) 120,000,000 7T BA R {8 A
ARRIRFTRRRES (KEREBA) B
174 % /4120,000,000/8 ¢ * AR &
120%RREHFETHBHCERBESF
EHIHzESAAIN RV E
RERER (EREA)EERE
17398,009,950 A A A RN c R =F
—hAFtEtA=+—BE=ZZF—HFN
A=+—H XAREEAHFI LT
e - Bt TP E R E SR AT
% {2 # T3 € X {§450,000,000/7%
TS E] & DA AR & #4858 /450,000,000
BT EERES 2 A NEN M
EZEHBIRALRRAH AT
—HEE-"A+NB -—ZE—H&ELA
=—t+t—BFk-_ZE—FRHENA=+—H
ZRAMARKRARBEAE-_T—AF
FARNBZARA REKEFZHE
B EE 4 5379,353,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i R I T

35.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

The directors of the Company considered that
acquisition of equity interest in E-Innovation and
its subsidiaries constitute a business combination
and adopted the acquisition method to account
for the transaction. After re-assessment the
provisional amount of gain on bargain purchase
arising as a result of the acquisition amounting to
approximately HK$309,966,000, was recognised in
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
In the opinion of the directors, the consideration
of the acquisition was mutually agreed between
the parties in an arm’s length basis and the gain
on bargain purchase is mainly attributable to the
immediate exit opportunity offered to the Vendor
and the opportunity provided to the Vendor to
acquire a significant amount of equity shares of the

Company through this acquisition.

35.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

W kg — BB A A

(#&)

RAREERE  WERE R AN B
NEZRIERKEB S O A Y
EARBEAR S REMERBESE
ZEREERERESEE RNER
K B 2 T W 2= B SR £9309,966,000
BT -BEERA WEFELRETH
SAFEATRANBEERE  M&E
WEWRFZHNMEFRE 2R
Riie k@B ARE LKTEA
ERSAAREABEE=RH 2 HE
FTE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. WE—EMNEA A

(continued) (%)

Consideration transferred EEERE

HK$'000
FAT
Bonds consideration BEHFNRE
(details set out in note 32) (FBERHFE32) 570,000
Shares consideration (Note 1) BHBRE (K1) 230,846
Deposit paid of HK$30,000,000 during the HE—ZT—HAF=A=+—HIFEZ
year ended 31 March 2015 B 4% €30,000,0007% 7T 30,000

Total consideration transferred EEEARE 830,846

Assignment of the Sale Loan (Note 2) HRHEER (Wiz2) (379,353)

Amount attributable to the acquisition of — YZBE 14 &ll 2 A% #E fE(h =

equity interest in E-Innovation TR 451,493

Notes: Hat -

(1) The shares consideration is approximately (1 & 19 X {8 49 £230,846,0007% 7T
HK$230,846,000, representing the fair value of BR—_Z2—hENA=+—HZ
398,009,950 new shares at 31 August 2015. The 398,009,950% ¥ A% 19 2 A F1E ° A
fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company AEIEBRR 2 ATFETIZ2ZERTK
was determined by reference to the published HE 2 B 2T EER0.587E T
closing market price of HK$0.58 per share at date EE-
of Completion.

() Upon acquisition date, High Express assigned (2) g = R ERANNGIE 2
the Sale Loan due by the acquiree to the BARIEREAZEESERL
Vendor at carrying amount of approximately 379,353,000/ T 2 SHEE K -

HK$379,353,000 to the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

WiE—EHEAR
(#&)

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 35.
(continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to
HK$3,786,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised

W BB 1BRARK 3,786,000 TE BHE#
EREHR YERAFEESFRERE
m R EMEERERZ [ E AT EE
XIEBRNBER R -

as an expense in the current year, within the

“other administrative expenses” line item in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the
Group at provisional fair value at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

AEERWBRAZER A FEREZ
EERAEZEBNOT:

HK$'000
T T
Interest in an associate (Note 3) N—fAE SRR 2w (fi23) 3,001
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& 2,284
Investment properties LEME 2,218,339
Deposit paid for construction of investment ®lZE& &Y% 2
properties [EENE & 1,516
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 4,913
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments £ {th fE Ug BRI « 3% & N F8 1+ 7z 18 1,420
Tax recoverable R EE 7
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERES 24,482
Other creditors and accrued charges Hith e ERIB N BT B (13,407)
Construction costs accruals JEET SR AN (8,268)
Profits tax liabilities *'J =K (837)
Receipts in advance B W R IE (72,838)
Deposits received from tenants B %ﬂ)iJ%ZEXZ}*A (27,284)
Amount due to the Company AR TKIE (379,353)
Loans from staff pY= ,EIZEW\ (10,869)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMERK (373,443)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 4) BEWRIBEE (A iF4) (194,248)
Less: non-controlling interests (Note 5) B IR R (AT AES) (413,956)
Gain on bargain purchase B UEE s (309,966)
Total consideration transferred EEREARE 451,493
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=

5 WS K

For the year ended 31 March 2016

35.

W E

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(continued)
Consideration transferred (continued)

Notes:

3)

The associate was deregistered in December
2015. Relevant investment cost of HK$3,001,000
has been classified as other receivable as at year
ended 31 March 2016.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from the Land and the Commercial
Complex that are measured using the fair value
model, the concessionary tax rate of 15% is

applied as it is recognised as “Go-west” region
development programme corporate which is
entitled to apply the rate of 15%. The directors of
the Company believe that the Company can keep
applying the 15% concessionary tax rate under

“Go West" region development programme.

The non-controlling interest in Tang Rong and Ba
Qiao recognised at the date of acquisition was
measured by reference to the proportionate share
of the recognised fair value of net assets of Tang
Rong and Ba Qiao.

NEZA=+—HIEFE

35.

W fE —

(#&)

SEE T

3)

& Fff & 2 7]
ZMeE N Na RN —_E—hF+ A%
H-RBE_ZT—R"E=ZA=1+—

HIEFE - R &K 483,001,000
BILTEDBEAHEMEWRE-

RIAERAAFEEEGFEZ L
AP ERBEE ZELEHIEA |
RZARERRREERR]E
HERBELE ERZEH15%2
BE BB RAEERE15%x
H - ARBEERR/ARAR [E#
PRl R R IR B T A AR &
FA15%@EEM R -

RULE B HERR I B R KOS 2 IR iR
iR D2ERRRBRFEEZ
ERBAFEZLLOIDETE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i R I T

35.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of E-Innovation

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

35. WE—REKELQA
(4&)

K B 16 Bl 2 3 & R AF FR

HK$'000

T T

Total cash consideration paid ENBAESRE 30,000
Less: Deposit paid during the year ended JBl:EBE=—ZT—HAF=A=+—H

31 March 2015 IEFREZEMNZRS (30,000)

Add: Bank balances and cash acquired m:RrWEE ZETEFELRS 24,482

24,482

Included in the profits for the year is approximately
HK$5,246,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by property investment
business. Revenue for the year includes
approximately HK$44,888,000 generated from
property investment business. Had the acquisition
been completed on 1 April 2015, total group
revenue for the year and profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$234,097,000 and
HK$156,939,000 respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2015, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.
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RNEERH B IERINILYERE B
EE A& 2 FE 15 % A1 £95,246,0007 7T ©
AEBFERABEVEREEBEL
2 #344,888,000/% t o i I EIEE
R-ZZ—RAFMA—B=K AIEAE
B R ARFE 2 B A K T 5 B4
#234,097,0007% 7t % 156,939,000/
T BEBREEHBRRE MA—E
ERWMKREEEER - —AFNA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. KREHEAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RMERAR NEER A RELE
had future minimum lease payments under non- HEZRRZEBEN KB E B A
cancellable operating leases which fall due as N
follows:
As lessee YERA A
2016 2015
—B-XF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Within one year —F RN 6,670 5,935
In the second to E_FEFELF
fifth year inclusive (PREEEMELEN) 1,224 2,394
7,894 8,329
Operating lease payments represent rental payable KEHENFEASEREINERT
by the Group for its office premises and equipment. BREEOHHES -
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two RELZLMHBTFHRBAME HEHNR
years and rentals are fixed for the lease period. e EFE -
As lessor fER A
2016 2015
—EB-AF —_T-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHETT
Within one year —F R 5,137 =
Operating lease income represent rental receivable AR EIN AR EB RS LN
by the Group for its leasing of retail shop, offices AR BEEMS R AST RIEE
and car park in the Commercial Complex. NI REU 2 FA 4 o
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
the relevant payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500
(HK$1,250 before 1 June 2014) (based on the
choice of employees) to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC
subsidiaries were required to contribute certain
percentages of the monthly salaries of their current
employees to fund the benefits. The employees
were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement
and their length of service in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The PRC
government was responsible for the pension liability
to the retired staff.

The employer’'s contributions to the retirement
benefits scheme charged to profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$916,000
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$712,000).

37.

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

EBIRkE5HE
REBMBFAFEATES S HAT
BB EREERE FEEE
HAEEEENHAFE TUESD
FRABEEAEAER AEEBEBE
LR Z25%8 A1,5008 7T (R ==&
—EANA—RBZAIA1,25087T) B
ER (REBEE) mAEERHMERE
SR EIMEN - EHESRFEMRR-

ARBTEMNBARZETTIHERK
FFFTEER R KRS EIMKE - B
TENBARARRBEETIAFZE
TEDLENR BEZRAKEHEIA -
REBBREG BTAZAZE
REDRELBRKRE 2 EREE MRB
FEAE -PREBFHRIKE THAE
BRAREHEME-

BHE_ZT—RNEZA=+—HILF
S BERBARESHEZERERSE
BakHEM2EKERBEPNRZ
FIEA916,0008 L (Z T — R F:
712,00077T) °

g %
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EARKIE
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TA&T
Capital expenditure contracted B &I B ARG A T IEHRE
but not provided for in EH BB 2 B AR
the consolidated financial
statements
— construction in connection  —HREYE
with the investment Bz
properties i 240,014 437,441
39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 39. FEFBERSH

During the year ended 31 March 2016,
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of HK$1,375,000,
were issued upon the partial conversion of 7.5%
Convertible Bonds. Besides, 398,009,950 ordinary
shares of the Company with aggregate par value
of approximately HK$4,975,000, and 12.0%
coupon bonds with aggregated principal amount
of HK$570,000,000 were allotted and issued as
partial consideration in acquisition of subsidiaries

respectively. Details are set out in note 35.

REBEE-_ZE—X"F=A=+—H01t
FERN ARG HEMEE375000%8
JL2110,000,0000% & @ % B 1 3P
DERT 5% AR EH R AT o
SN 7K A B) 42 H {E #94,975,0007% 7T
2.398,009,9500% & i ik & AN & 48 78
570,000,000/ 7T 2 12.0% % B & %
B o Rl RETUEAKBEREA
Al 2B RE - FFBEHNHFEIS ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
provided logistics consultancy services and financing
guarantee services to the related companies
which are constituted as continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and the
amounts as listed in the table below:

BERA (M)

Related Companies (Note)

Note: Companies in which the controlling shareholder

of the Company (who is also a director of the
Company) or the relatives of this controlling
shareholder has significant influence to these
companies (“Related Companies”).

Apart from the transactions as listed in the
table above, the amount of financing guarantee
provided to the Related Companies for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was RMB21,000,000 (2015:
RMB39,000,000) (equivalent to HK$25,131,000
(2015: HK$48,707,000)). Details of the guarantee
amount are set out in note 41.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group received a
corporate guarantee of RMB9,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,770,000) (2015: RMB14,000,000)
from a related company, in which the controlling
shareholder of the Company (who is also a director
of the Company) has significant influence to this
related company regarding a financial guarantee
provided to one of the Related Companies, in

obtaining a bank loan.

40.

Revenue from logistic
consultancy services

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

BEALXRS

REBZEZZE-—R"F=A=1T—HIF
ER - AEERBEARREYRZL
AR EEEERRS MBE LT
HRA BREARBERFHERERS &
BT RPN :

Revenue from financing
guarantee services

RENREA REMEER
R WA R WA
2016 2015 2016 2015
E-XE “Z2-hF ZE-RE —Z-AhfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FAEL TER FTAEL
- 7,072 1,675 1,614
MizE: ARRIZERBRE (BEITALRARE

F)IRERERZBBEAAE
BEAREBNIZZERA ([BED
al)

B EMEREAINZRGHIN RBEZ
E—RNFEZA=Z1+—BHLEFE AH
BERRIRECHERREBAARE
21,000,000t (ZFE—HF: ARK
39,000,0007t) (48 & 525,131,000
BIL(ZZF — A :48,707,000/%8
TL) ) ERESEZFBEMNMI L o

RZE—RNF=ZA=+—H &~£HE
HFRAEF-—HBEARRHZBEE
REEIRE —HEERR (AARZ
PERBER (MAARRES) Nk HE
REAIFEREEN)IZEEERAR
#9,000,0007T (#H%& # 10,770,000/
L) (ZZE—HRF: ARM 14,000,000
T0) AERBER1TE R
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Balances with Related Companies

Details of the balance with Related Companies
which is trade in nature and non-trade in nature as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are set out in note 23
and note 28 respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel

40.

BEALIRS

(#&)

A B8 N\ B 2 A ER
RZE—RNERZZFE—HF=A
=+—H HEERAR (DA ARESM
BERIFESHHEE) 2 #ERFIED AIE
M 5223 R B 528 o

EEEEABZHE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—FRF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other short-term FehHMEH

employee benefits BB =/ 8,251 8,099
Post-employment benefits ER&EEH 72 70

Equity-settled share-based LA#E 25 45 B DA IR 1 /3 L7
payments Z AT 2,702 4,447
11,025 12,616

All the directors consider as key management of
the Group. During both years, certain managerial
employee have been authorised to plan, direct
and control activities of the Group. Accordingly,
compensation to those managerial employee has
been included as part of compensation of key

management personnel.

The remuneration of key management is
determined by the Company’'s nomination and
remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

MEEEVERASEZIEERE
RMEFER ETEEEREE
EREE BRIREREAREZE
2EP-AiL ZFEEERE ZHE
BEEREREBABZAEZ 9
N

REBABZHFMBEARRZIER
FMEZBE@REBARR LTSS

gET-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. HAREE
Corporate guarantee b E R
2016 2015
—B-XF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Guarantee given to banks SRR AR TR 2 BB R
in respect of financing AR %5 M M ER1TVE 2 B4R
guarantee services
provided to:
— Independent third parties —BYE=F 303,603 378,442
— Related parties —fEATLT 25,131 48,707
328,734 427,149
As at 31 March 2016, excluding the financing RZE—RE=ZR=+—H8 KR@E&
guarantee contracts of approximately ERAEX#2,418,0008 T (=T —H
HK$2,418,000 (2015: HK$2,935,000), the net % 12,935,000/ 7T) 5 BLATER 2
outstanding guarantee given to banks in respect of BEERRBRBTIELD 2-REER
financing guarantee services provided amounted FERIFEER /£326,316,0008 T (=F
to approximately HK$326,316,000 (2015: — R F 424,214,000 ) °
HK$424,214,000).
Details about the management of credit risk by the AEESRZEREEREREERR
Group regarding these financing guarantees are set Z A BEE N6

out in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

42.

43.

W E

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 29 March 2016, the Group has entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent to issue
convertible bonds under general mandate with
principal amount of approximately HK$300,000,000
in two tranches. The Company re-negotiated the
terms with the placing agent and on 16 June 2016,
the Company and the placing agent re-entered into
an engagement letter to continue the Proposed

Placement.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

NEZA=+—HIEFE

Proportion of

Place of ownership interests
establishment and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests
FERERBEZ
BIGHREE EHERELS
B 2 B % 7 EES RREEZLA
2016 2015
“E-XE ZT-0%
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao PRC 26.625% N/A
ERRER ale TEA

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

42.

43.

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

WEHR
=31
RZE—-—R"F=ZA=Z+hAB K&
BEEHEEERETVEESHBEUR
B—MEEIMEZETARASELD
300,000,000 7T 2 AJ AR EH - AR
AHERERBEENERGKR RZ2Z
/\EE/\)E]—'—/\E' K’A\Tﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BEMI L ZRE RGN BEEETES
MEEIE-

BAEEAEER
MiEzH2HE

2

218

TRINRAEEZ EHEERIFERE
HZHFEENBRRZFT:

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

PETFEERES
2B R EERER

2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-xF ZT-HEF ZB-xFE ZT-0%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT THL
1,397 N/A 414,055 N/A
TE A AER

BERARB 28 HEERFERER
ZHWBRRZHBERBLESR S M
T-UTHBENRZHEEEARA
B HAI 2 S8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A7 o 85 i R I T

For the year ended 31 March 2016~ #E _F—RFE=H =+—HILFE

43. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 43. BEEEKRFEER
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE ErzkzrE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Ko NG|
INTERESTS (continued) e (&)

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao

2016 2015

—EB-XEF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FHET

Current assets TENE B 13,712 =

Non-current assets FEMBEE 2,220,445 =

Current liabilities mE B E (187,916) =

Non-current liabilities FERBEE (491,104) =
Equity attributable to ZAN/NCIE7 ZS DN

owners of the Company FE(h 2 #Ew 1,141,082 =

Non-controlling interests FEE IR e A 414,055 =

Revenue WA 49,745 =

Expenses 3 (44,499) =

Profit for the year N 5,246 =
Profit attributable to KRABHEE A

owners of the Company FEAS 2 %5 A 3,849 =

Profit attributable to SRR IR HE =
the non-controlling interests FEAS 2 %5 A 1,397 =
Profit for the year NG S A 5,246 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

43. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 43. BEBEERFEER
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE o2k EE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Ko =N
INTERESTS (continued) e (&)
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued) FEENBE (&)
2016 2015
—B-XAEF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Other comprehensive expense AR AHEA A

attributable to owners of FE b 2 E Aty

the Company 2HEMX (3.576) =
Other comprehensive 1 IR i

expense attributable to FE1h 2 HAth

the non-controlling interests 2HEMAX (1,298) =

Other comprehensive expense  AN4F [ E b

for the year 2HERAXZ (4,874) =
Total comprehensive income KARHEE A

attributable to owners of it z#E2E

the Company I &= 273 =
Total comprehensive income El e

attributable to the non- iz EE2HE

controlling interests g 99 -
Total comprehensive income AEEREH

for the year & 372 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016~ #E _F—RFE=H =+—HILFE

43. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 43. BEBEERFEER
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE EaZHEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Ko =N
INTERESTS (continued) e (&)
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued) FERNEE (&)
2016 2015
—B-XAEF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Dividends paid to EEFE: £
non-controlling interests SR E - =

Net cash inflow from operating #&&EEHBZ
activities RemAFRE 10,581 =

Net cash outflow from investing % & 2152
activities BWERE FEE (853) =

Net cash outflow from financing BIE XM E 2
activities MR (27,268) =

Net cash outflow e mt FE (17,540) =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g2z I\

45 A Bt Btk 2% Mt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 4. X\ Z
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE B 3 AR R &R
COMPANY & #fE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR 2K E 34,899 34,899
Deposit paid for prepaid lease AN T HEERIE
payments for land EfiZe 29,918 =
Amounts due from JE W BT Bt /B A 7
former subsidiaries AR1A 539 -
Amounts due from JE U Bft B8 A F)
subsidiaries AR1A 1,376,274 -
1,441,630 34,899
Current assets mENE E
Deposit paid for prepaid AN T HHEERIE
lease payments for land BEffiEe - 31,223
Other receivables, deposits Hib U ERTE k& &
and prepayments TE T FRIE 418 1,677
Amounts due from former JE W Bl Bt/ A )
subsidiaries BRIE - 701
Amounts due from JiE YR BT B8 72 &)
subsidiaries AR 18 26,653 582,638
Loan receivables from JiE YR B B8 /2 &)
subsidiaries B 87,515 144,511
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERES 969 802
115,555 761,552

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ v 4> [ B % 6 45 PR 23 7 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS e R T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44, AXKRQRTZ
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE B 7 RO 3R
COMPANY (continued) N f#E (&)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT F&T
Current liabilities mBAGE
Amounts due to former FET RIS B A ]
subsidiaries BR I8 - 9,536
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHBT B A A BRIE 33,320 34,547
Amounts due to a director B —REERE 16,320 -
Dividend and other payables e B B L Ath & £+ BR 18
and accruals FERE A 5,143 1,423
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%Z B EH 430,506 =
8.0% coupon bonds 8.0% = B f&EH 201,684 =
7.5% convertible bonds 7.5% A] 2 I & 5 - 294,472
686,973 339,978
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BB EEFE (571,418) 421,574
Total assets less current liabilities & E R e & & 870,212 456,473
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g2z I\

g = /j 4{% qiﬁlfj( %:? M‘J EJI_

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44. ARPTEZ
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE B 7 AR R 3R
COMPANY (continued) K i#fE (&)
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% A] #2 % (& %5 66,683 -
Conversion option derivative A AR B 5 A R
embedded in convertible AR DT £
bonds ITA 7,891 -
8.0% coupon bonds 8.0%EEBEH - 193,621
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%EEEH 128,380 =
7.5% coupon bonds 75%REEH 198,546 =
Deferred tax liability EEFIE B & - 2,411
Amount due to former FEAS RIFT B 2 )
subsidiaries BRIE 6,437 -
407,937 196,032
462,275 260,441
Capital and reserves BEARR B
Share capital fig A 34,896 28,546
Reserves 7 8 427,379 231,895
Equity attributable to KARHEE A
owners of the Company FEAS 2 #e 2R 462,275 260,441
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45 A BB o 3R T EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44, XRTZ
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE B 7 AR R 2
COMPANY (continued) Kf#E (&)
Movement in the Company's reserves NN ER g )
Convertible
Share  bonds and
Share Share options warrants Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total equity
HRRES
BhRE RIREE
R RO RE i & RiER BHAE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

—mEF
At 1 April 2014 MA—H 24,100 99,562 15,390 61,510 (56,295) 144,267
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (90,980) (90,980)
Issue of shares EStan) 71 2,729 - - - 2,800
Recognition of R RE R EE I
equity-settled T’\%%%Z
share-based payments (NE - - 12,169 - - 12,169
Derecognition of expired & IEBEREERZ
warrants RRERE - - - (15,621) 15,621 -
Shares issued under BERBET
subscription i 3) 4,375 188,125 - - - 192,500
Direct transaction costs BERBET RN
of shares issued under ZEERS
subscription £H - (315) - - - (315)
Forfeiture of share options 3% U & ik & - - (173) = 173 =
RZZT—HF
At 31 March 2015 =A=t—H 28,546 290,101 27,386 45,889 (131,481) 260,441
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - (116,267)  (116,267)
Issue of shares upon PREEIAT 5% 7]
conversion of 7.5% R &5
convertible bonds BT 1,375 91,056 - (12,898) = 79,533
Derecognition of deferred A& #47.5% A #
tax liabilities on RES LI
conversion of 7.5% RIELEH A
convertible bonds Bf& - - - 383 - 383
Derecognition of equity A ZIHAR & 1E
component of 7.5% TER7.5% Al ik
convertible honds upon  EH 2B
maturity 7 - = = (32,995) 32,995 -
Issue of shares BIRMG 4,975 225,871 - - = 230,846
Recognition of RIFERZE
equity-settled R AER
share-based payments PANES - - 7,339 - - 7,339
Transfer B - - - (379) 379 =
RZZ—RF
At 31 March 2016 =A=t—H 34,896 607,028 34,725 - (214,374) 462,275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A IS H R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

- NI
UWTARRGRZZE—XRFEFERZT
—HE=A=t—HBzHBRAR 2

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 45,

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

260

Name of company

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations

Paid up
issued capital/
registered capital

:|\$.
g -

Proportion of

nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activity

TEMARL KL K BRERE/ EAREERHEERTER/
AR ER EEME HEMEA & A B 2 b TEXH
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-RF
Acelin Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 4 shares of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI") 4R R 4p REER
RBABRES ([H FRAEBIET
BHEARRE])
Acme Power Holdings Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERBERAR HBABRER 1R &1 REZR
BREEIET
Alpha Yield Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEERAF HBERRES AR AR 17 REER
BREBIET
Alphamount Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
JREERRAA HBABRER 1R &1 REZR
BREEIET
Blessing China Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Property holding
HEBRAA S HK$1 each VIEZSSEC]
1B
SREEIET
Chinlink Alpha Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% Investment holding
EhBEAERAR 9 HK$1 each REER
1B
SREEIET
Chinlink Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% Investment holding
EEFEERABRAR 9 HK$1 each REER
1B
SREEIET
Chinlink E-commerce (Xi'an) PRC RMB 13,500,000 100% 100% E-commerce
Limited (Note () it AR #13,500,0007T ETEH%
EEHLETEN (ER)
BRAA (HEQ)
Chinlink Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
EEDCEEZERERAA 9 HK$1 each TEex
1B
SREEIET
Chinlink Hanzhong Logistics Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited e HK$1 each REER
EERSEFYRERAA 1R E AR
BREEIET
Chinlink International Trade PRC RMB 150,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of logistics
Centre (Hanzhong) Company H AR #150,000,0007C services
Limited (Note () R RS
EERSEBR SR (EH)
BRAR (He()
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45 A BB o 3R T EE

45,

For the year ended 31 March 2016

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name of company

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations

Paid up
issued capital/
registered capital

45.

(#&)

Proportion of

W E

BB A B AR

nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company

NEZA=+—HIEFE

Principal activity

MR B K BRRE/ ERREERHEERTER/
ARER EEME HEMEA & A B 2 TEXK
2016 2015
—-RE —T-hE
Chinlink Hong Kong Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited 7 HK$1 each RERR
EERS (BE)ERAA 1R B
SHEEIET
Chinlink Mega Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
ERkEERAR B HK$1 each LR
1R B R
SHEEIET
Chinlink Real Estate Services Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
(HK) Limited & HK$1 each REER
EEFERS (B8)ERAR R E @R
SREEIET
Chinlink Supply Chain Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
(Hong Kong) Limited &k HK$1 each TEEE
(Note (c)) 1R B R
EEDSHER (HE) AR SREMGBT
(Hizt(c))
Chinlink Supply Chain Services PRC US$4,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of logistics
(Shaanxi) Company Limited H 4,000,000% 7T services
(Note (a)) (Note () REDR RS
EERGMEEER (RA)
BRAR (Hit6) (Hit)
Chinlink Strategic Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEFERBAERAR B HK$1 each RERR
&30
BREBIET
CLI Design (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of furniture and
ERR (BB)BERDA B HK$1 each fixtures
2R EEAR BRANEEZSH
BREEVET
CLI De5|gn (Macau) lelted Macau 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
FRa CRPBRR AP MOP 15,000 each EARMHTRE
2fRE B
BIREE15,0002 %
CLI Design Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
ERREBRAA B HK$1 each ERRMIRE
2R E EAR
BREBIET
E-Innovation Limited (Note (b)) BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
REIBRAR (ML) KBABRES 1R R REZR
FREEIXT
Esteemed Zone Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
REARRA KRABREE AR AR 17 REER
BREEIXT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gz I\
w3

FoF 15 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016

45,

BE_EZ-ARE=ZA=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name of company

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operations

Paid up
issued capital/
registered capital

45. MIEARFIE

(#&)

Proportion of

nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activity

MR KK BRRE/ AQAREFHEERTER/
ARER EELY HMEA HEMEAREEZ LA TEXK
2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-h8f%F
Galactic Power Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Financial services
BRER AR (REAN KBABRES 1R R SRR%
[FHBEEXRERAF] 2 BREMEI1ET
ARETER)
Goal Achiever Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBRERREE 1R REER
HEREARLA BREMEI1ET
Giant Success International BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBERRRES AR AR 17 REER
ERARARAT SREEIET
High Express International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
Limited (Note (b)) B HK$1 each REER
BHERERRAR (HiEb) 1R B
SREAIET
Mega Zone Investments Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
kFGREERDA HBERREE 1R R RERR
BREEIZET
Shaanxi Chinlink Financial PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100% Provision of financing
Guarantee Limited (Note (d)) H 30,000,000 7T guarantee services
RELETREERERAA RERERRRS
(Hiz#a)
Sino Yield Enterprise Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
RREFXERAT KRABREE AR AR 17 REER
BREMEIET
Trillion Up Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
FRERAA HBERREE 1R R RERR
BREEIET
Tian Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
(Note (c)) KRABRES AR AR 17 REER
RERKERD A SREEIET
(Hiit(c)
Xi'an Tang Rong Real Estate PRC RMB320,000,000 73.375% - Property investment
Limited (Note (b)) (Note (e)) H AR 320,000,000 NERE
AREREXERAA
(Hizb)) (Hiitee)
Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao PRC RMB80,000,000 73.375% - Property investment
Furniture and Fixture Limited H AR #80,000,0007C MERE
(Note (b)) (Note (e))
AR NAEBRRNRE
BRAR (fzEb))
(Hizte)
Chinlink Finance Lease Company PRC US$30,000,000 100% - Finance lease
Limited (Note (c)) (Note () H 30,000,000% 7T MERE

EETSRAMEARAA
(HiZ©) (Hit()
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n/J\ /I:l\ Hj‘ 1‘,% ilyj\ %l% I}H Ej{

45,

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ #i%E _F—NF =1 =+—H L4 F

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Notes:

(a) The company was formerly known as Chinlink
Logistics Information and Consulting Services
(Xi'an) Limited in 2014.

(b) The companies were acquired by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

() The companies were set up during the year ended
31 March 2016.

(d) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability
company under the law of PRC.

(e) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability
company (Taiwan, Hong Kong, Macao and
domestic equity joint) under the law of PRC.

All the subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company except for Acelin Investments Limited,
Trillion Up Limited, Chinlink Hong Kong Company
Limited, Sino Yield Enterprise Limited, Goal
Achiever Investments Limited and Esteemed Zone

Limited which are owned directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or at 31 March 2016 and
2015.

45.

M A B R

(#&)

lif:

(@) ERAAR-T-REBAEETS
WMREEEARE (BR)ERA
ale

b) EEATMAEERHRE-T—A
F=A=+—BILFEAKE

© HEATARBE-T-AE=A
=t+—HIEEERY

(d) ZEW B A RRETBAEEM R
BEREFERAF

(e) ZEM B QR R A EM
RERBERAR (RBREREANE
&) e

% Acelin Investments Limited* F{&4&
RAR-EEFS(FB)ERAA
FRMEBRAR REREERAR]
RESRERATBRARTEEESGIN
FEMBAREBHARRRERES -

RAFERNIR_ZE—A"FR_ZF
—hRFE=ZA=+—8 WBRARWwHEsE
TREMEEZS -
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Group Properties
LRYES

MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR REREZEE
INVESTMENT ) %
Location Lot number Existing use Term of lease
B b B 4R 5% BERAR EizR
Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Medium

Weiyi Road, Baohe S00285 for commercial use

Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC

FEBRALAZRFTESREAYMMK  61070200900G- R  HA
B A —BK g — KR ERR S00285 RIEmERE

Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Long
Weiyi Road, Baohe S00286 for residential use

Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC

hERFEEERTESREANYIR  61070200900G- E3EL: 23
ERA -REE - RIER S00286 BIEEERAS

The eastern side of Ban Yin Road, BQ3-4-11 Commercial Complex Medium
Ba Qiao District, Xi‘an City, held for rental purpose
Shaanxi Province, The PRC

HREIRFE A AL T BE R 5 BRRA] BQ3-4-11 FEHBERGRZEEKRE FH
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